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 INTRODUCTION
This study manual has been developed primarily for students on a distance learning course taking accounting. However, it might be useful to other students in the same discipline.

The purpose of this course is to introduce you to the field of accounting. Accounting as a field of knowledge is concerned with the measurement of business activity and communication of the resulting information to the users of financial statements. Accounting constitutes an important segment in the broad study of management. The accounting function is no longer a balance sheet phenomenon only but also now a fundamental decision-making discipline. The course focuses on the accounting principles that can be applied to facilitate the managerial decision-making process in the business environment. This unit therefore is only a foundation course in a much wider range of courses in accounting. The course should give you a firm foundation for further studies in this area.

You should work through all the exercises set to enable you master the principles well and gain the necessary speed required to pass the exams. Remember always, that, “speed is part of the game in all accounts exams”. If you have any questions or difficulties, make a note of them and bring them up during the residential/face-to-face session.

 Methods of Assessment
By written examination. University exams are in two parts; Coursework Exam and Final Exam. Course work Exam accounts for 40% while the Final Exam takes 60%. The overall pass-mark is 50%.

NB: 
Students will have to sit for 3 tests during the Semester and the best 2 will be 
considered to contribute 20% of the Coursework proportion.  In addition, 2 


assignments will be given, each contributing 10% of the Coursework mark. 
The question paper will contain 2 Sections:

Section A:
One or two compulsory questions (25 marks each)

Section B:
Four questions, two or three of which must be answered (25 marks each)

NB: 
You must come with an electronic calculator, but at the same time all the 


necessary explicit workings must be shown.
READING MATERIALS 
Frank Wood & Alan Sangster, (2008). Business Accounting Vol 1 & 2, 11th 

Edition, pearson Education ltd, England 

Robert F. Meigs, Jan R. Williams, Susan F. Hakar, Meigs, Walter B and Mark S. 
Bettner, (2004). 8th edition, Irwin McGraw-hill, new York.  

Jack L. Smith (2006). Accounting Principles, 7th edition, mcgraw – hill company 
inc, new york 

Dauglas Garbutt Carler, (1980). Advanced accounting, pitman publishing England 


Copeland R M and Dascher P E, Financial Accounting Wiley Publishers


Dauglas Garbutt Carter, Advanced Accounts Pitman

Hermanson R. H. Edwards J. D, Accounting Principles and Salmonson R. F.
(Business Publications Inc.)

Karkhanis P. D.  An Introduction to Accounting

Spicer & Pegler, Book-Keeping and Accounts (H. F. K. Ltd)

Joseph Ben Omunuk (Mubs) Financial Accounting Manual Journals
Student Accountant – (Acca Monthly Student’s Journal)

Additional Reading;
Meigs, W. B., Johnson C E and Meigs R. F. Accounting: The Basis for

(2004) Business Decisions. 6th Edition Mc Graw Hill

Journals

· Student Accountant – (ACCA Monthly Student’s Journal)

· Accountancy

· Accountancy Age

· Accounting & Business

· Any other relevant and latest accounting information you come across.

NB:
You are advised to read any one of the reference text books and look up for 

particular points in others when you can find them in a library or otherwise, since they cover different aspects of the course. Use these text books for additional reading particularly where you find difficulty in understanding some of the topics or where you are interested in pursuing a topic in more details. The internet can also provide useful information if you have access to it. 

General Objectives

· To demonstrate an understanding of the theoretical framework of accounting and the principles underlying accounting statements.

· To enable students appreciate the role of accounting in the highly changing competitive business environment.

· To enable students acquire the basic principles in accounting and be able to apply them in their further studies.

· To make you aware of the importance of accounting information in decision making.

· To demonstrate an understanding of the application of accounting principles practically in the business world. 

Unit 1

The Nature and Purpose of Accounting

1.1
Introduction 
This chapter introduces the study of accounting, its nature and purpose, an overview of the accounting methodology and reporting. The fundamental accounting concepts/conventions are discussed, as well as the International Accounting Standards and Financial Reporting Standards.

Objectives
At the end of this chapter, you should be able to;

· Define the term Accounting.

· Describe the nature and objectives of accounting.

· Discuss the importance of accounting conventions and standards in business.   

Accounting is simply defined as the language of business. Like all languages, accounting is a man-made means of communicating certain information. People in the business world such as, Shareholders, Managers, Bankers, and Investors use accounting information. Accounting information describes the events that make up the day-to-day existence of every business. Accounting information is also used for controlling the use of the resources owned by a business. It is also used for measuring the performance of a business entity.  

1.2
The Purpose of Accounting
A business proprietor normally runs a business to make money. He/She needs information to know whether the business is doing well. A number of questions might be in his/her mind, such as;

· How much profit or loss has the business made?

· Do we have sufficient funds to meet our short and long-term commitments?

· How much money is in debts?

The purpose of conventional business accounting, therefore, is to provide answers to such questions by presenting a summary of the business transactions in a standard recommended form, like, a Balance Sheet.

How accounting works
Accounting information consists of a series of financial statements about a particular economic entity or unit expressed in monetary terms. Whatever detailed financial records you keep in your Institution, form an accounting system, and so accounting can also be seen as the activity of designing and operating such a system. Accounting has also been described as a system of recording, classifying, summarizing and reporting financial information relating to an Enterprise. It is a tool which you use to find out how the Organization is getting on and how you can improve it where necessary.

The objective (s) of accounting is (are) to provide information for the following purposes:

· Making decisions concerning the use of limited/scarce resources. For instance, is it cost effective to buy a bus for a University or hiring a vehicle whenever need arises?

· Effectively directing and controlling an Organization’s human and material resources. For instance, should our firm expand into new markets, or we should put more effort in developing what we already have?

· Maintaining and reporting on the care/proper utilization of resources entrusted to an entity. For example, governments have to account for all receipts received and collections from tax payers.

· Facilitating social functions and controls. The accounting function in this area is to assist the operation of organized societies for the welfare of all – social responsibility accounting.

Users of Accounting Information
Accounts are prepared to provide a statement that will meet the needs of the user, subject to the requirements of law (Companies Act; in Uganda’s case CAP 110) and the rules of accounting. The users of financial accounts are;

· Shareholders/Investors who are concerned principally with present and expected future earnings and the stability of these earnings about a trend, as well as comparison with earnings of other companies. They would concentrate their analysis on the profitability of the firm, in ensuring a return on their investment.

· Banks and Other lending Institutions use financial statements to evaluate the ability of the firm to repay the loans (Principal and Interest charged). Accordingly, they are more interested in the cash-flow ability of the firm to service debt over the long run.

· Creditors are interested primarily in the liquidity of the firm. Their claims are short-term and the ability of a firm to pay these claims is best judged by means of a thorough analysis of its liquidity.
· In order to bargain more effectively for outside funds, the management of a firm is interested in all aspects of financial analysis that outside suppliers of capital use in evaluating the firm. Management also employs financial analysis for purposes of internal control.
· Government will use the final accounts to determine the liability of the business for tax purposes.
· Employees of a company would seek to find the stability and security of their jobs.
· Competitors – will compare their own results with those of other companies. A company would not wish to disclose information which would be harmful to its own business. Equally, it would not wish to hide anything which would put it above its competitors.    

Accounting Methodology
This includes various techniques and procedures (rules of accounting) used by Accountants in measuring, describing and interpreting economic/financial data to the users. These techniques/procedures include the accounting concepts/conventions, accounting standards and the legal framework. Accounting methodology generally deals with the activities of acquiring, using and disposing of economic resources.

1.3
Rules of Accounting (Accounting Standards)
As different businesses use different methods of recording transactions, the result might be that financial accounts for different businesses would be very different in form and context. However, various standards for the preparation of accounts have been developed over the years. 

Historical Development of Accounting Standards
This historical perspective is indispensable. You can only understand and more importantly evaluate the accounting principles and practices contained in the standards to the extent that they group historical events that led to their formation. Generally therefore, knowledge of historical developments is an important part of understanding accounting standards.

All the standards have been developed and published by either the Accounting Standards Committee (ASC) or the Accounting Standards Board (ASB).

The Accounting Standards Committee was first established in 1970 as the Accounting Standards Steering Committee (ASSC). The establishment of this committee can be partly attributed to the developments in USA in the 1950’s and 1960’s but its creation was primarily a reaction of the main accountancy bodies to considerable criticisms of the profession, particularly in the 1960s. These criticisms resulted from several financial scandals which highlighted the lack of standardization and consistency in the accounting principles and practices employed by Companies at the time. The establishment of the ASC/ASSC was an attempt to renew confidence in annual reports and the auditing procedures and prevent government interference in the functioning of the profession. 

The role of this standard setting body and therefore the historic foundations, on which standards are set, was, to define accounting concepts, to narrow differences of financial accounting and reporting treatment and to codify generally accepted best practice in the public interest. To date, we have the International Accounting Standards Board which is in charge of all the International Accounting Standards. Countries can develop there own standards but basing on the International Accounting Standards generally.  

International Accounting Standards (IASs)/International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
No

Title







       Issue Date

Preface to International Financial Reporting 
Standards    

IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements ………………………………… …….. Dec 2003

IAS 2
Inventories …………………………………………………………. ………………….Dec 2003

IAS 7
Cashflow Statements …………………………………………………………………Dec 1992

IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors … Dec 2003

IAS 10
Events after the Balance Sheet Date ……………………………………….. ..May 1999

IAS 11
Construction Contracts ……………………………………………………………... Dec 1993

IAS 12
Income Taxes ………………………………………………………………………….. Oct 2000

IAS 14
Segment Reporting …………………………………………………………………… Aug 1997

IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment ………………………………………………….. Dec 2003

IAS 17
Leases ……………………………………………………………………………………. Dec 2003

IAS 18 Revenue ………………………………………………………………………………… Dec 1993

IAS 20
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance …  Jan 1995

IAS 23
Borrowing Costs ……………………………………………………….. ……………. Dec 1993

IAS 24
Related Party Disclosures ………………………………………………………….  Dec 2003

IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements …………………………. Dec 2003

IAS 28
Investments in Associates ………………………………………………… ……….Dec 2003

IAS 31
Interest in Joint Ventures ………………………………………………………….. Dec 2003

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation ……………………… Dec 2003

IAS 33
Earnings per share ……………………………………………………… …………   Dec 2003

IAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting ………………………………………………………. Feb 1998

IAS 36
Impairment of Assets ………………………………………………………………. June 1998

IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets ………………  Sept 1998

IAS 38
Intangible Assets ……………………………………………………………………… Mar 2004

IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement ………………….. Mar 2004

IAS 40
Investment Property ………………………………………………………………….. Mar 2004

IFRS 1
First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards .. June 2003

IFRS 3
Business Combinations………………………………………… ……………………  Mar 2004

IFRS 5
Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations …….. Mar 2004

 Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) – United Kingdom
No
Title








Issue Date
1
Cashflow statements (excluding group cash flow statements) …………Oct 1996

2
Accounting for subsidiary undertakings ………………………………………. June 1992

3
Reporting Financial Performance (excluding Group aspects) ……………Oct 1992

4
Capital Instruments …………………………………………………………………… Dec 1993

5
Reporting the substance of Transactions …………………………………….. Apr 1994

6
Acquisitions and Mergers …………………………………………………………… Sept 1994

7
Fair values in Acquisition Accounting …………………………………………. Sept 1994 

8
Related Party Disclosures ………………………………………………………….. Oct 1995

9
Associates and Joint Ventures …………………………………………………… Nov 1997

10
Goodwill and Intangible Assets ………………………………………………….. Dec 1997

11
Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill …………………………………… July 1998

12
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets …………..…. Sept 1998

14
Earnings per Share ……………………………………………………………….. Oct 1998

15
Tangible fixed Assets……………………………………………………………….Feb 1999 

16       Current Tax…………………………………………………………………………. Dec 1999

18 
Accounting policies………………………………………………………………… Dec 2000

19
Deferred Tax…………………………………………………………………………  Dec 2000

21
Events after the Balance Sheet Date……………………………………………  May 2004

1.4
The Fundamental Concepts of Accounting

These are defined as broad basic assumptions which underline the periodic financial accounts of business Entities. Accounting concepts are also referred to as principles, postulates or assumptions. The various terms used to describe the accounting concepts indicate the many efforts which have been made to develop a satisfactory framework of accounting theory. Today the term ‘assumptions’ has been adopted by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) for use in describing the theoretical framework on which modern accounting should be based. The International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) has identified four fundamental concepts whose acceptance and use are assumed in the preparation of financial statements. These fundamental concepts are; Going Concern, Consistency, Prudence and Accrual Concept.

· Going Concern Concept

The assumption is made that the business entity will continue in existence for the next foreseeable future. It is assumed that the enterprise has neither the intention nor the necessity of going into liquidation or of materially curtailing the scale of its operations. This is an important concept, as the value placed on the assets of a continuing business is different from the value placed on the assets of a closing business. One obvious problem with this concept is that we can never be entirely sure that the business will continue because of uncertainties in the environment. The future is very uncertain
· Consistency Concept

Once a business has decided which accounting methods it is going to apply and how it is going to interpret the various rules of accounting, it should be consistent in these matters from year to year, in other words; it is assumed that accounting policies are consistent from one period to another. This assumption is fundamental in the overall evaluation of financial statements from different periods. Consistency is necessary so that the results of the business, as shown by the accounts, may be compared from year to year. If accounting policies were changed to suit the convenience of an enterprise, this would gravely interfere with the reliability of financial statements. Changes should be adopted only if the old methods, for a good reason, can no longer apply. Consistency applies to a single accounting entity because firms, even those in the same industry, may follow different accounting policies.

· Accrual Concept

Revenues and expenses are recognized as they are earned or incurred, and not when the money is received or paid for goods and services rendered. Therefore, revenues and expenses should be recorded in the financial statements in the period to which they relate.

· Prudence Concept

The Accountant should adopt procedures which do not overstate or anticipate profits and do not understate losses but which do provide for all potential losses. Profit should be included only when it is reasonably certain that cash will be received. Prudence is most useful when matters requiring judgment or estimates are involved. Ideally Accountants should base their estimates on methods which neither overstate nor understate the facts. The Accountant should adopt a cautious attitude toward the inherent risks and uncertainties of the measurement process.  

Other Accounting Concept;

· Historical Cost Concept

Accounting information is quantitative information recorded in monetary value at historical cost. This implies that all accounting transactions should be recorded at their original price, for instance, purchases of stock are recorded at cost price. Ascertain and verify the cost through seeing the payment vouchers.

· Matching Concept

Income/Revenue should be included in the accounts in the same accounting period as the expenses relating to that income.

· Realization Concept

Revenue is considered realized (i.e. earned) and recognized in the period in which the transaction occurs, regardless of the period in which the related cash is collected.

· Materiality Concept

Financial statements should disclose all items which are material enough to effect evaluations or decisions. The basic test that accountants use when making decisions about materiality of a transaction, is whether knowledge of a particular item of information would be likely to affect a decision made by an informed user of financial statements. Materiality decisions may involve quantitative as well as qualitative considerations. Quantitative considerations refer to such factors as the effect of the item on the company’s profits or the relationship between the item and key financial variables such as assets, liabilities, owner’s equity, revenues, expenses and net income. 

Qualitative considerations center around the basic nature of the item, for example, does the item represent an illegal transaction such as bribe? Generally therefore, if it is not worthwhile to record an item in a particular way, or to show an item separately in the accounts, then it should not be done.  If an item is “immaterial”, it may be that the cost of recording it in a particular way outweighs any benefit of doing so.

· Dual Concept

It states that for every debit entry there must be a corresponding credit entry. In other words, all accounting transactions have 2 entries hence the double-entry system of book-keeping.

· Entity Concept

It states that the business is separate from the owners hence the doctrine of ‘separate entity’. The concept is concerned with information regarding the business not the information regarding the owners (Shareholders/Investors).

· Money Measurement Concept

It restricts Accountants to record only those activities which can be expressed in monetary terms.

· Substance over form Convention/Concept

Financial accounting is concerned with the legal as well as the economic effects of accountable events. However, transactions and other events should be accounted for and presented in accordance with their substance and financial reality rather than merely their legal form. Therefore, when an apparent conflict exists between the economic substance and the legal form of a business transaction, accountants should emphasize the economic substance over legal form. For instance, assets on a hire purchase agreement should be recorded as company assets (in the books of the purchasing company) because they will be serviced, and maintained by them rather than taking the legal form that not until the last shilling is paid that the title passes.

In conclusion, the IASC states that financial statements must be clear and understandable. They are based on accounting policies which vary from enterprise to enterprise. Disclosure of significant accounting policies on which the financial statements are based is therefore necessary so that they may be properly understood. Accounting Concepts have shortcomings/weaknesses, like, the contradiction of historical cost and money measurement concepts. A more detailed critique of the conventions will be discussed in your later studies.  

 Review Questions
1. Discuss the importance of accounting conventions/concepts in accounting clearly relating them to the users of financial statements. 
Unit 2

Double-Entry Book-Keeping System

2.1
Introduction

This chapter introduces the basic accounting model which embodies the important procedures in the accounting methodology. The fundamental principles of double-entry system are discussed.

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Logically analyze the nature of accounting transactions.

· Journalize and enter accounting transactions in T-Accounts.

· Understand the principle of the accounting equation.  

It is important to grasp the basic double entry principles in the preliminary stages of accounting. Despite the changing environment (i.e. introduction of computerized accounting systems which capture volumes of repetitive data and the day-to-day recording of transactions automatically), the nature of professional accounting examinations require students to be familiar with the principles of double entry book-keeping even if it is not something you will have to do on a daily basis at work places.

Repetitive transactions may initially be captured in day books (books of prime entry), for example, all the sales invoices may be listed in the sales journal. These day books are not part of the double entry system but enable a number of double entries to be reduced by ascertaining an aggregate. 

The total of the day book or the single transaction is recorded in the double-entry system by being posted to the accounts. Each account (or T-Account) has two sides, the left hand side of which is called the debit side (DR) and the right hand side of which is called the credit side (CR).

A format of the T-Account looks like this;

	Title of the Account (i.e. Bank/Cash Account)

	Date
	Narrative
	Amount ( $ )
	Date
	Narrative
	Amount ( $ )

	The date the transaction is recorded
	Stating        where the double-entry is posted
	
	The date the transaction is recorded
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	This side is the Debit (DR) side
	
	
	This side is the Credit (CR) side
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Accounts are normally opened for each asset and liability and for each type of expense and income. Of course, only transactions capable of being measured objectively in monetary terms can be recorded (this is known as the money measurement concept).

Double-Entry Rules
2.2 Principles of Double-Entry System

To record entries in a double-entry system there are three rules which are important:

· Rule 1: The Duality Rule 

Every transaction has two effects, one of which will be recorded as a debit in one account and the other which will be recorded as a credit in another account. If this rule is broken, the Trial Balance will not agree and a suspense account is opened.

· Rule 2: The when to Debit (DR) and Credit (CR) Rule 

The rules as to when to debit a T–Account and when to credit a T–Account can be summarized in the following table;

	The Debit/Credit Rule

	
	Increase
	Decrease

	Assets
	Debit
	Credit

	Expenses
	
	

	Purchases
	
	

	Drawings
	
	

	Liabilities
	Credit
	Debit

	Income
	
	

	Sales
	
	

	Capital
	
	

	Provisions
	
	


The table is logical in its construction. Starting from the premise that when the effect of a transaction is to increase an asset the entry to be posted to the asset account is a debit, whereas, it is appropriate that a decrease is a credit. Further, as a liability is the opposite of an asset so it is appropriate that it behaves in the opposite way; that to record an increase in a liability, the entry to be posted to the liability account is a credit. Expenses behave in the same way as asset accounts as both will be recorded when they are paid for or a liability incurred.  

· Rule 3: The Debit (DR) is on the left and Credit (CR) is on the right of the 


        T-Account Rule 

Living in Uganda where cars always drive on the left hand side of the road, I can remember this rule by the phrase “Drive on the left and Crash on the right”.
Example 1

On 2nd June, 2006 Land was bought for cash, Shs 10,000,000. The two effects are to;

· Increase the asset of Land which is a DR and an entry on the left hand side of the T-Account (later on known as Ledger Account) – Land Account.

· Decrease the asset of cash which is a CR and an entry on the right hand side of the T-Account (Ledger Account) – Cash Account.

The journal entries to pass will be;

	Date
	Particulars
	DR
	CR

	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	2nd June 06
	Land Account
	10,000,000
	

	
	     Cash Account
	
	10,000,000

	
	To record purchase of land by cash
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


The T-Account (Ledger Accounts) will look like this;

	Land Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	02-Jun-06
	Cash Account
	10,000,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	02-Jun-06
	
	
	02-Jun-06
	Land Account
	10,000,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Example 2

On 5th June, 2006 an item of Plant and Machinery was bought on credit for 

Shs 5,000,000.  The two effects are to;

· Increase the asset of Plant and Machinery which is a DR and an entry on the left hand side of the T-Account (Ledger Account) – Plant and Machinery Account.

· Increase the liability of creditor which is a CR and an entry on the right hand side of the T-Account (Ledger Account) – Creditors Account.

The journal entries to pass will be;

	Date
	Particulars
	DR
	CR

	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	5th June 06
	Plant and Machinery Account
	5,000,000
	

	
	      Creditors Account
	
	5,000,000

	
	To record acquisition of an item on credit
	
	

	
	
	
	


The T-Account (Ledger Accounts) will look like this;

	Plant and Machinery Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	05-Jun-06
	Creditor’s Account
	5,000,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	
	
	
	05-Jun-06
	Plant and Machinery Account
	5,000,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Example 3

On 9th June, 2006 a sale of goods on credit is made for Shs 700,000.  The two effects are to;

· Increase the asset of Debtors which is a DR and an entry on the left hand side of the T-Account (Ledger Account) – Debtors Account.

· Increase the Income Account of sales which is a CR and an entry on the right hand side of the T-Account (Ledger Account) – Sales Account.

The journal entries to pass will be;

	Date
	Particulars
	DR
	CR

	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	9th June 06
	Debtors Account
	700,000
	

	
	      Sales Account
	
	700,000

	
	To record sales on credit
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


The T-Account (Ledger Accounts) will look like this;

	Debtors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	09-Jun-06
	Sales Account
	700,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	
	
	
	09-Jun-06
	Debtors Account
	700,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Conclusion
To gain a proficiency in double-entry book-keeping does require some rote learning but mainly a lot of practice. A firm grasp of double-entry booking is a vital skill to carry forward into further studies and is an invaluable tool in the work place (even when your accounting systems are computerized). Remember, all accounting issues (however complex) can be explained and boiled down to the debit and credit principles. 

2.3
The Accounting Equation
The accounting equation states that; Assets (A) = Capital (C) + Liabilities (L).
This means that what the business owns is equal to what it owes (to any creditors, other lenders and the proprietor). IAS 1: presentation of financial statements recommends a new format of financial statement presentation in the form similar to the accounting equation above; i.e. A = C + L where,

A = Non Current Assets + Current Assets;

L = Short-term Liabilities + Long-term Liabilities;  

C = Total Shareholder’s funds/Total Equity.

Summary;

A = Total Assets.



C + L = Total Equity/Total Shareholders Fund and Liabilities.

NB: We shall see the accounting equation later in the course; Balance Sheets.

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 3
Recording Business Transactions

3.1
Introduction

This chapter covers the basic elements of the accounting cycle at the journal stages all through to the ledgers. It also covers some of the various types of source documents and records found in a typical business with a well established accounting system. Various types of journals are explained and how entries are posted to the ledgers, and finally balanced off, to extract the final accounts figures.

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Define a business transaction

· Distinguish between business transactions that are recorded in the books of accounts and those which are not.

· Explain the use of the various types of journals.

· Post accounting entries from the journals to the ledgers

· Balance off ledgers to ascertain the debit and credit balances to be posted to the final accounts.

· Know how to develop a chart of accounts. 

Accounting information has a flow commonly known as the Accounting Cycle, which runs as follows;  
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From the accounting cycle above, a business transaction occurs (i.e. sale or purchase of a product), business document is prepared (i.e. an Invoice, a receipt, etc), and the transaction is recorded in the journal (i.e. sales journal or purchases journal, or general journal), the entry from the journal is posted to the ledger. Ledger balances are extracted and a trial balance is developed. Finally, final accounts (Income Statement and Balance Sheet) are prepared from the trial balance figures, accompanied with notes to the accounts. The process is continuous everyday as longer as the business exists (Going Concern Concept). 

Business Transactions and Documents
A Business Transaction is an event that causes a change in the assets, liabilities or owner’s equity of a business or organization. That event may be somebody buying goods, selling land, paying rent or processing materials so as to increase their value. There are two broad categories of transactions;

· External Transactions – those between the business entity and another entity.

· Internal Transactions – those occurring within the business entity, such as the expiration or transfer of costs within the organization.

Business Documents
The most important business document for accounting purposes is the Invoice. Other important documents are; Debit and Credit Notes, Receipts, Cheques, Purchase Orders (LPO); Pro-forma Invoice, and Bills of Exchange. One common characteristic with these documents is that they originate from outside parties and therefore constitute evidence of transactions with outsiders. Entries in the journals are prepared on the basis of the information available from the supporting documents; for example a sales invoice supports an entry in the sales journal.

3.2
The Journal
A journal is a book of original entry organized chronologically by transactions. The information shown on business documents is recorded in date order in the appropriate journals. The usefulness of journal entries lies in their clear, concise and analytical portrayal of a business transaction.

· The journal shows all the information about a transaction in one place and also provides an explanation of the transaction. 

· The journal provides a chronological record of all the events in the life of a business.

· The use of the journal minimizes making of errors. Entries in the ledger can be traced back to the journal and any omissions can be easily detected.

Nothing is recorded in the ledger until the transaction is first passed through a book of original entry. In the early history of double-entry book-keeping, the journal was the only book of subsidiary entry which was kept. All transactions were recorded in the journal or “day book” as it was called. Gradually, however, as certain types of transactions become more numerous (such as sales and purchases), the journal was divided into sections and then into separate books. Each section or book was devoted exclusively to recording one particular type of transaction. Now days, the specialized subsidiary books are the cash book (petty cash book), purchases and sales books, and the purchases returns and sales returns books.

General Journal
	
	
	
	
	Page 1

	Date
	Particulars
	Folio
	DR
	CR

	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	1st July 06
	Cash Account
	1
	60,000
	

	
	    Capital Account
	50
	
	60,000

	
	To record the cash invested in the business
	
	
	

	3rd July 06
	Land Account
	20
	21,000
	

	
	    Cash Account
	1
	
	21,000

	
	To record purchase of Land by cash
	
	
	

	5th July 06
	Office Equipment Account
	25
	5,400
	

	
	     Account Payable Account
	30
	
	5,400

	
	To record purchase of Office Equipment on credit
	
	
	


The basic features of a journal are as follows;

· First column shows day, month and the year.

· The name of the account to be debited is written on the first line of the entry, placed at the extreme left next to the date column. The amount of the debit is entered on the same line in the left hand money column found at the right hand side of the page.

· The name of the account to be credited is entered on the line below the debit entry and is indented. The amount credited is entered on the same line in the right hand money column.

· A brief explanation of the transaction is entered on the line next to the last account credited 

· The folio column refers to the ledger account. When the debits and credits are posted to the ledger accounts, the numbers of the ledger accounts are listed in this column.

Example 1 

On 12th March, 2006 a Filing Cabinet was purchased for Shs 800,000 on credit from Kazinga Channel Ltd. On 15th March, 2006 a delivery Van was sold on credit to WB Garages Ltd for Shs 2,000,000.

Required,

Pass the necessary journal entries.

Solution:

	
	
	
	
	Page 1

	Date
	Particulars
	Folio
	DR
	CR

	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	12th Mar 06
	Office Equipment Account
	6
	800,000
	

	
	       Creditors A/c - Kazinga Channel Ltd
	7
	
	800,000

	
	To record a credit purchase of a Filing Cabinet
	
	
	

	15th Mar 06
	Debtors Account - WB Garages Ltd
	14
	2,000,000
	

	
	       Motor Vehicle Account
	5
	
	2,000,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Note the layout of the journal. The narration i.e. explanation is always given and then the entry is ruled off. Amounts entered in the debit column must be equal to amounts entered in the credit column before each entry is ruled off – but these columns are not totaled. The appropriate ledger folio is given and the journal folio entered in the ledger is prefixed “J”.

Special Journals

Business transactions are normally grouped into classes in order to facilitate record keeping. The great majority of transactions fall into the following categories;

Type of transaction





Name of Special Journal
Sale of merchandise on credit




Sales Journal

Purchase of merchandise on credit



Purchases Journal

Receipts of Cash






Cash receipts Journal

Payments of Cash






Cash payments Journal

Other transactions






General Journal

Other transactions are those not directly buying or selling, for instance hire of a 

vehicle or purchase of a vehicle or any asset, on credit.


3.3
Sales Journal

This special journal is used for recording all credit sales. Immediately trade goods are sold, an invoice is made out in duplicate. The original is sent to the customer and a copy is filed for purpose of reference. 

NB: Sales are composed of cash sales and credit sales. Wherever goods are sold for cash, the entry is dealt with through the cash book (Debit Cash and Credit Sales).

Format of the Sales Journal:

	Date
	Name of Debtor/Account Debited
	Folio
	Invoice No
	Invoice Amount
	VAT Amount

	
	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Posting
All those names in the sales journal are Debtors because they buy our products on credit. It will therefore be necessary for us to debit the amounts given against their names, to their personal accounts in the ledger. At the same time credit the sales to complete the double entry. 

It is a general practice for the sales journal to be totaled periodically (either daily or monthly) and it is this total that is credited to the Sales Account in the ledger. The journal entry would be;


DR
Accounts Receivable Account/Debtors Account
xxx

   
CR
Sales Account







xxx


To record the sale of goods on credit.

Sales Returns and Allowances Journal
Every business that buys and sell goods, finds that there are occasional causes for complaint. For example, the goods may be damaged in transit, not of the quality ordered, or not of the correct type. The matter is adjusted between the two parties, either by a return of the goods or by an allowance being made in the price charged.

· Return of goods – where the goods complained of are actually returned to the seller.

· An allowance – where the goods complained of are retained but an adjustment in the price charged is made by the seller.

If customers return the goods, the journal entry necessary to record this transaction is;


DR
Sales Returns Account



xxx

   
CR
Cash/Personal Account



   

xxx


To record return of merchandise by a customer.

However, if the customer agrees to keep the goods and be allowed a reduction in sales price, this sales allowance is recorded as follows; 


DR
Sales Allowance Account





xxx

   
CR 
Personal Account/Accounts Receivable Account



xxx


To record a sales allowance for defective goods.

Generally, the above 2 entries are recorded in one combined account Sales Returns and allowances Account. The account may then appear as follows:


DR
Sales Returns and Allowances Account



xxx

   
CR
Cash Account/Accounts Receivable Account



xxx


To record a refund or adjustment for goods bought by the customer.

Debit and Credit Notes
Returns and allowances are generally treated in one account as seen above. The commercial procedure adopted in the event of a return of an allowance is quite easy to follow. The purchaser prepares what is known as “debit note” (D/N), which corresponds very closely to an invoice, and which is forwarded to the seller who, if satisfied, accepts and gives a “credit note” (C/N) in exchange. In practice, debit notes are often not used, the purchaser writes a letter or makes a call, if there is a complaint; but credit notes are always used, as the amount of an invoice has to be adjusted. However, for tax purposes (where VAT is involved), tax bodies like Uganda Revenue Authority (URA) requires all transactions to be supported by a prime document, such as, purchase invoice, sales invoice, debit or credit note.

Inward and Outward Aspects
Where book-keeping is concerned, there are two aspects to returns and allowances; from the point of view of the seller and from that of the purchaser.

· Returns and allowances inwards

If goods previously sold are returned to the seller, such a transaction is viewed as “inwards” by the seller. A moment’s reflection will show you that the goods move inwards from the purchaser to the seller – and therefore, this entitles the former to receive credit for them.

Note unlike in the case of allowances, “inwards” involve the physical movement of goods and we are guided solely by the movement of liability.

· Returns and allowances outwards

Where goods previously purchased are returned by the purchaser, the transaction is regarded as “outwards” by the purchaser. Where the liability in respect of allowances moves from the purchaser to the seller, in respect of goods previously purchased, such movement is outwards.

· Returns inwards and outwards are also known as sales return and purchase return respectively.

Carriage
Again there are two aspects to this,

· Carriage inwards – that relating to expenses incurred on purchases.

· Carriage outwards – that relating to expenses incurred on sales. 
3.4
Purchase Journal

This is a special journal used exclusively to record purchases of merchandise on credit. The accounting records maintained for purchase transactions are similar to those maintained for sales transactions. However, unlike the sales journal, where the names of customers are largely individuals (Accounts Debited/Name of Debtor), the names appearing in the purchases journal are largely those of companies, because it is companies that normally supply goods for resale to customers.

Format of the Purchase Journal 

	Date
	Name of Creditor/Account Credited
	Folio
	Invoice No
	Invoice Amount
	VAT Amount

	
	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Posting
All those names in the purchases book are creditors, because they yield the benefit of the goods in question. It will therefore be necessary to credit the amounts given against their names to their personal accounts in the ledger; and debit the corresponding double entry to Purchases/Inventory Account. 

3.5
Ledgers

We record the debit and credit business transactions in the book of accounts known as a Ledger. The process of transferring journal entries (debits and credits) from the journals to the proper ledger accounts is called posting (which is simply the recording of transactions in the ledger). Each amount listed in the debit column of the journal is posted by entering it on the debit side of an account in the ledger. A similar procedure is applied for the credit column of the journal. 

Find here below the illustration of ledger Account;   

	DR                                Title of the Ledger Account ie Bank Account                               CR

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


Example 2

John Paul started a business on 1st January, 2004 by depositing Shs 20,000,000 of his personal money into a business bank account. 

The transaction would be entered in John’s books of accounts as follows;







Shs

     

Shs


DR
Bank Account


20,000,000

   
CR
Capital Account





20,000,000


To record the initial capital in the business.

The ledgers would appear as below;

	Bank Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	01-Jan-04
	Capital Account
	20,000,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	
	
	
	01-Jan-04
	Bank Account
	20,000,000


General Ledger

It is a book containing all the accounts that will appear on the Balance Sheet and Income Statement.

3.6
Balancing Off Ledgers
Why do we “balance off” ledger accounts? We shall use an example below to illustrate.

Mrs. P. K. Maureen started business on 1st January, 2004. The summary of her bank account in the ledger appears as follows for the month of January 2004

	Bank Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs '000')

	01-Jan-04
	Capital Account
	2,000
	02-Jan-04
	Purchases
	400

	09-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	320
	04-Jan-04
	Motor Vehicle
	1,200

	17-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	205
	12-Jan-04
	Insurance
	110

	23-Jan-04
	Cash Account
	190
	20-Jan-04
	Purchases
	270

	31-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	380
	24-Jan-04
	Motor Expenses
	90

	
	
	
	
	
	


We can tell from this account the amounts which Mrs. P. K. Maureen has deposited in the bank and the amounts she has drawn. We can also tell from the narrative where each deposit came from (e.g. Sales Account, Cash Account, and Capital Account) and where each amount drawn has gone to (e.g. Purchases, Insurance, and Motor Vehicle Expenses). What else should we know about the bank account?  The simple answer is the Bank Balance as at the close of business.

In order to find out how much is the bank balance, we simply add the amounts deposited in the bank (Shs 2,000,000 + 320,000 + 205,000 + 190,000 + 380,000 = 3,095,000) and subtract the amounts which are paid out of the bank account (Shs 400,000 + 1,200,000 + 110,000 + 270,000 + 90,000 = 2,070,000). Her bank balance at 31st January, 2004 was Shs 3,095,000 – 2,070,000 = Shs 1,025,000.

In this case Mrs. P. K. Maureen has a debit balance of Shs 1,025,000, as the total of the amounts on the debit side of her bank account is greater than the total of the amounts on the credit side.

Procedure for Balancing Off.
In the bank account of Mrs. P. K. Maureen’s ledger we want to show that, at 31st January, 2004 the debit side was greater than the credit side by Shs 1,025,000. We do this by entering the balancing figure on the credit side as follows and totaling the two columns.

	Bank Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs '000')

	01-Jan-04
	Capital Account
	2,000
	02-Jan-04
	Purchases
	400

	09-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	320
	04-Jan-04
	Motor Vehicle
	1,200

	17-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	205
	12-Jan-04
	Insurance
	110

	23-Jan-04
	Cash Account
	190
	20-Jan-04
	Purchases
	270

	31-Jan-04
	Sales Account
	380
	24-Jan-04
	Motor Expenses
	90

	
	
	
	31-Jan-04
	Balance C/d *
	1,025

	
	
	3,095
	
	
	3,095

	01-Feb-04
	Balance B/d * *
	1,025
	
	
	


* “Balance C/d” means balance carried down to the next month i.e. 1st February, 2004

* * “Balance B/d” means balance brought down from the previous month i.e. Jan, 2004 

Example 3

Geoffrey Roberts started business on 1st January, 2005 as a computer consultant. His transactions for his first two months of trading are listed below;

1st Jan       Transferred his Car, value Shs 8,400,000 to the business.

9th Jan      Purchased stationery to the value of Shs 135,000 on credit from Prime

                 Stationers Ltd.

10th Jan    Received a consultancy fee of Shs 400,000 by cheque from a client.

19th Jan     Paid Motor expenses of Shs 90,000 by cheque.

20th Jan    Drew Shs 50,000 from the bank for business use.

2nd Feb      Invoiced William Shs 200,000 for work done.

9th Feb      Paid Prime Stationers Ltd Shs 20,000.

22nd Feb    Drew Shs 40,000 from the bank for personal use.

Required;

Draw up the ledger accounts and balance them off.

Solution:

	Motor Vehicle Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	01-Jan-05
	Capital Account
	8,400,000
	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	8,400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	8,400,000
	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	8,400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	8,400,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	8,400,000
	01-Jan-05
	Motor Vehicle Account
	8,400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	8,400,000
	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	8,400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	8,400,000

	Stationery Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	09-Jan-05
	Creditors A/c - PS Ltd
	135,000
	31-Jan-05
	Profit & Loss Account
	135,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors Account - Prime Stationers Ltd

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	135,000
	09-Jan-05
	Stationery Account
	135,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	09-Feb-05
	Cash
	20,000
	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	135,000

	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	115,000
	
	
	

	
	
	135,000
	
	
	135,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	115,000

	Bank Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	10-Jan-05
	Consultancy Fees A/c
	400,000
	19-Jan-05
	Motor Expenses A/c
	90,000

	
	
	
	20-Jan-05
	Cash
	50,000

	
	
	
	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	260,000

	
	
	400,000
	
	
	400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	260,000
	22-Feb-05
	Drawings
	40,000

	
	
	
	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	220,000

	
	
	260,000
	
	
	260,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	220,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Consultancy Fees Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	400,000
	10-Jan-05
	Bank Account
	400,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	400,000

	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	600,000
	02-Feb-05
	Debtors A/c - William
	200,000

	
	
	600,000
	
	
	600,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	600,000

	Debtors Account - W. William

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	02-Feb-05
	Consultancy Fees A/c
	200,000
	28-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	200,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	200,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Motor Expenses Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	19-Jan-05
	Bank Account
	90,000
	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	90,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	90,000
	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	90,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	90,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	19-Jan-05
	Bank Account
	50,000
	31-Jan-05
	Balance C/d
	50,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Feb-05
	Balance B/d
	50,000
	09-Feb-05
	Creditors A/c - PS Ltd
	20,000

	
	
	
	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	30,000

	
	
	50,000
	
	
	50,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	30,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Drawings Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount (Shs)

	22-Feb-05
	Bank Account
	40,000
	28-Feb-05
	Balance C/d
	40,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Mar-05
	Balance B/d
	40,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


3.7
Chart of Accounts
A chart of accounts is a list of the general ledger account titles and account numbers being used by a particular business. Similar accounts are both numbered by categories and grouped by categories e.g. Assets is a category, Current Assets is a group accounts. The accounts in the general ledger are usually arranged in the financial statement order i.e. Assets, Liabilities, Shareholders Funds/Owner’s Equity, Revenue and Expenses.

A Sample Format of the Chart of Accounts for a Church;

CHURCH OF THE LORD 

P. O. BOX …………

KAMPALA, UGANDA.

CHART OF ACCOUNTS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

100
MOBILE FIXED ASSETS/NON-CURRENT ASSETS

1000
Trucks/Lorries/Buses

1002
Motor Vehicles

1004
Motor Bikes

1006
Bicycles

102
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION – Mobile Non Current Assets

1020
Trucks/Lorries/Buses

1022
Motor Vehicles

1024
Motor Bikes

1026
Bicycles

110
IMMOBILE ASSETS

1100
Land

1102
Buildings

112
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION – Immobile Assets

1120
Buildings

120
MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT

1200
Plant & Machinery

1202
Office Equipment

1204
Furniture & Fittings

1206
Computer Hardware

1208
Computer Software

122
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION – Machinery & Equipment

1222
Plant & Machinery

1224
Office Equipment

1226
Furniture & Fittings

1228
Computer Hardware

1230
Computer Software

130
INVESTMENTS

1300
Investments in Shares

1302
Other Investments

CURRENT ASSETS

140
CASH & BANK

1402
Petty Cash Book 
-
UgShs. A/c

1404
Petty Cash Book
-
US $ A/c (or any other foreign currency)

145
BANK

1452
Stanbic Bank
-
UgShs. A/c

1454
Stanbic Bank
-
US $ A/c

150
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

1500
Debtors Control
-
Local

1502
Debtors Control
-
Foreign

151
STAFF RECEIVABLES

1510
Staff Loans

1512
Staff Advances

152
OTHER RECEIVABLES

1520
Rent Receivable (if any)

160
PREPAIDS

1600
Insurance

1602
Rent

161
ADVANCES

1610
Advance Payments

1612
Advance Income Tax

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

200
SHARE CAPITAL

2002
Share Capital Paid-up (if any)

210
RESERVES 

2100
General Reserves

2102
Capital Reserves

2104
Retained Earnings
-
Profit and Loss

230
UNSECURED LOANS

2300
From Friends (Locally & Abroad)

2302
From Missions/Churches/Organizations/Charities/etc

240
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

2400
Trade Creditors
-
Local

2402
Trade Creditors
-
Foreign

2404
VAT INPUT (on Purchases for VAT registered suppliers only)

2406
VAT OUTPUT (on Income); if the income received is subject to VAT

2408
VAT Control (to determine the VAT to be remitted to the tax Authority)

242
Other Payables

250
PAYROLL PAYABLES

2500
Net Salaries

2502
P.A.Y.E

2504
N.S.S.F (15%; 10% from the Church & 5% from Church Staff)

260
PROVISIONS

2600
Provision for Bad Debts

2602
Provision for Taxation

2604
Provision for Audit Fees

2606
Provision for Interest

270
PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION

2700
Trucks/Lorries/Buses

2702
Motor Vehicles

2704
Motor Bikes

2706
Bicycles

2708
Buildings

2710
Plant & Machinery

2712
Office Equipment

2714
Furniture & Fittings

2716
Computer Hardware

2718
Computer Software

REVENUES

280
REVENUE

2800
Tithes

2802
Offerings

2804
Thanksgiving

2806
Donations

2808
Building/Construction

2810
Land

2812
Others

OPERATING EXPENSES

300
VEHICLE EXPENSES

3000
Vehicle Fuel

3002
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance

3004
Vehicle Insurance

3006
Vehicle Road License

400
SALARIES & WAGES

4000
Gross salary

4002
House Allowance

4004
Staff Travel Allowance

4006
Staff Overtime

4008
Staff Bonus

4010
Staff Terminal Expenses

4012
NSSF Contribution (only the 10% component from the Org., Co., Churches, etc)

405
STAFF BENEFITS

4050
Staff Rent

4052
Staff Medical

4054
Staff Telephone Expenses (eg Mobile Phone Airtime & service fee)

4058
Staff Motor Vehicle Expenses

4060
Staff Uniforms

500
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

5002
Rent

5004
Electricity Charges

5006
Water Charges

5008
Security (if it is applicable to the Church)

5010
Repairs & Maintenance (Buildings, etc)

5012
Equipment Maintenance

5014
Printing & Stationery

5016
Postage & Courier

5018
Newspaper & Periodicals

5020
Advertisement & Publishing

5022
Subscription & Membership

5024
Donations

5026
Insurance

5028
Local Traveling Expenses (Car Hire, Taxi fares, etc)

5030
Overseas Traveling

5032
Telephone, Fax, email & Internet Expenses

5034
Administration Sundry Expenses

5036
Duties & Taxes (eg Ground Rent, Income Tax etc)

600
COMPUTER EXPENSES

6000
Computer Stationery

700
FINANCIAL EXPENSES

7000
Bank Interest on Loan

7002
Bank Charges

7004
Gain/Loss on Foreign Exchange

800
PROFESSIONAL FEES

8000
Audit fees

8002
Secretarial fees

900
DEPRECIATION

9000
Depreciation on Trucks/Lorries/Motor Vehicles

9002
Depreciation on Buildings

1000
LICENCES

10000 Registration of the Church 

1100
RELIEF & DEVELOPMENT

11000
Social Responsibility (Care for the Communities)

11002
Health

11004
Education

11006
Relief/Rehabilitation

11200 MISSIONS 
11202
 Outreach

11204
 In reach

11300 CARE MINISTRY 
11400 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
(these expenses benefit the Church for more







 than one year)

11402
Building

11404
Machinery

11406
Others

NB: The Chart of Accounts should be flexible to changes. Additional Items may be included as well as deleting any the company/organization feels is not necessary.
 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 4

Management of Cash

4.1
Introduction

Management of cash is an important function in any business organization, no matter its size and structure. This chapter describes the internal controls on movement of cash in which bank reconciliation, the voucher system, imprest system and petty cash records play an important role. 

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Explain the need for proper control of cash.

· Prepare a bank reconciliation statement.

· Prepare the vouchers and operate a petty cash system.  

4.2
Nature of the Cash Book
In the previous chapter, we saw that all accounts are opened in the ledger. As cash and bank transactions are numerous, it is more convenient to remove these two accounts from the ledger and give them a book of account of their own, which is known as the cash book. The procedure for posting entries remains the same as previously illustrated; except that the cash account and bank account are kept in the cash book instead of in the ledger.

4.3
The Petty Cash Book 

It is very largely present-day practice for businesses to pay all cash received intact into the bank and to record in the cash book only payments made by cheque. There are, however, numerous small payments for which you would not dream of writing out cheques. 

A separate fund is created to provide for these petty disbursements and this fund is recorded in a petty cash book. A petty cash book has many analysis columns subdivided and headed according to the major payments made from petty cash. A ledger column is also provided to take care of the personal accounts which would not be covered in the analysis columns.

Imprest System

The imprest system is the method of dealing with petty cash transactions. The petty cashier is given a fixed sum of money which is sufficient to cover the petty payments for a stated period such as a week or a month. At the end of the period the total payments are ascertained and additional cash is reimbursed to the cashier to restore the petty cash fund to its original figure. 

For instance, if it were decided that Shs 500,000 sufficiently caters for the weekly petty cash disbursements, and at the end of the first week, petty cash payments amounted to Shs 420,000. Then a cheque for this amount (Shs 420,000) would be drawn in favour of the petty cashier, which, together with the cash balance at hand of Shs 80,000 will restore the petty cash to Shs 500,000 for the following week.

The Petty Cash Book Format

	DR                                                                                                                                            CR

	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Folio
	Amount
	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Voucher No
	Total
	Postage
	Stationery
	Wages  /Casual Labour
	Security
	Transport
	Other Expenses
	Folio
	Ledger

	
	
	
	Shs
	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	
	Shs
	
	Sh

	
	Cash
	CB
	
	
	i.e. Stamps
	
	xxx
	xxx
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Box files
	
	yyy
	
	yyy
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Off loading
	
	ppp
	
	
	ppp
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Gate-man
	
	ww
	
	
	
	ww
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	KIU to K'la
	
	sss
	
	
	
	
	sss
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	
	kkk
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	LP/2
	LP/3
	LP/5
	LP/6
	LP/8
	LP/9
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


A specimen cash book is shown in figure 4.1 and you should review this before continuing.

Fig 4.1: Two Column Cash Book

	DR                                                       CASH BOOK                                                                    CR

	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Cash
	Bank
	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Cash
	Bank

	
	
	Shs
	P
	Shs
	P
	
	
	Shs
	P
	Shs
	P

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


NB: The above cash book is known as a “two column cash book, as there is a column for cash and a column for bank on each side. If the cash book was part of the ledger, as in say a computerized ledger, then “cash in hand” and “cash at bank” would be split into two separate ledgers.
The cash on hand column on the debit side represents all the cash received by the business and retained in the business. The credit side of the cash column represents all the cash payments made out of the cash held on hand in the business.

The bank column on the debit side represents all the cash received by the bank on behalf of the business as when debtors pay directly to the bank, or cash is paid by the business into the bank, or cash is paid by the business into the bank in currency or by cheque. The credit side of the bank column represents all the payments which have been made by cheque or charged by bank such as bank charges or standing orders. These columns represent our transactions with the bank and should agree with the bank records except in certain cases (as we shall see later the need for bank reconciliation).

When a customer pays directly to the bank, this should be recorded in the debit column of the bank. Also when the firm receives cash and all of it is banked, then we need not enter this in the cash on hand column. This should be recorded directly in the bank column. 

Cash transfers between cash on hand and Bank.
When cash is transferred from cash on hand to the bank, the entries should be;

 






     Shs
     Shs


DR
Bank Column



    xxx

   
CR
Cash on Hand Column



     xxx

When cash is withdrawn from the bank to be kept on hand the entries should be reversed as follows;

     Shs
Shs


DR
Cash on hand Column

    xxx

   
CR
Bank Column



              
xxx

The following tables set out the entries which appear in the cash and bank columns of a cash book and the effect of the transaction;

CASH COLUMN

	Debits or Receipts Side
	Credit or Payments Side

	· The opening balance of cash brought down from the previous period.

· All cash received, unless paid into the bank immediately on receipt.

· Receipts of cash from bank for office use. These are referred to as “ contra entries”, which have the effect of increasing cash and decreasing bank


	· There can never be an opening balance of cash on this side, as it is impossible to pay out more than you have in the cash till.

· All disbursements made other than by cheque.

· All transfers from cash to bank. These are classed as “contra entries” which cause a decrease in cash and an increase in bank funds.


BANK COLUMN

	Debits or Receipts Side
	Credit or Payments Side

	· The opening balance in your favour at the bank.

· All cash paid direct into the bank by the firm’s debtors.

· All deposits effected ex-office cash. These are referred to as “ contra entries”, which have the effect of decreasing cash and increasing bank.


	· The opening balance in favour of the bank. This is termed an “overdraft”, and it represents a loan made by the bank for which an interest charge is payable by the firm.

· All payments made by cheque only.

· All withdrawals in favour of office cash. These are classed as “contra entries” which cause an increase in cash and decrease in bank funds.


Rule for posting Cash Book to Ledger
The debit or receipts side of the cash book must be posted to the credit side of all relative ledger accounts. The only items on the debit side of the cash book that are not posted to the ledger are the opening balances.

The credit or payments side of the cash book must be posted to the debit side of all relative ledger accounts. The only items excluded are the closing balances. 

The Three column Cash Book
The cash book in general business use is the three column cash book which incorporates the cash discounts column (discounts received and discounts allowed).

Cash Discounts Column
These are the same as sales or purchase discounts and are inducements given by traders to their customers to encourage them to pay their bills fast. A firm therefore accepts less than the face value of the debt when a customer pays in the given periods. Even when the amount is paid by cheque, we still call this cash discount. This should be distinguished from trade discounts, which are discounts given by a manufacturer to a wholesaler or a wholesaler to a retailer accordingly. Where the cash discounts are given by a firm, this is known as sales discounts or discounts allowed, and when received they are known as purchase discounts or discounts received.
Note:
· Discounts allowed affects the debtors whereas discounts received affects the creditors thus the double entry is completed in the two ledger accounts respectively.

· Discounts allowed should be entered on the debit (receipts) side, because we give discounts when we receive payments from debtors.

· Discounts received should be entered on the credit (payments) side. This is because we receive discounts when we make payments within the discount period.

· Total of discounts allowed (debit) column should be debited to discounts allowed account in the ledger.

· Total of discounts received (credit) column should be credited to discounts received account in the ledger.

· Discounts allowed are expenses or losses in that the price of the goods sold is reduced by the amount of discounts and the rule of debiting expenses and losses applies.

· Discounts received are gains or income in that the price of the goods we buy is reduced by the amounts of the discount and the rule of crediting revenue and gains applies.

Three Column Cash Book Format:
	DR                                                 CASH BOOK                                                                   CR

	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Discount
	Cash
	Bank
	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Discount
	Cash
	Bank

	
	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	
	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


It is however an invariable practice of every business to deposit all the cash receipts into the bank immediately, and to make no cash payments at all (except petty cash payments which are recorded in the petty cash book). Therefore the cash column on the credit side of the cash book can be eliminated and only the discount and bank columns remain. This book is used when an organization follows the most effective cash control policy of banking all the cash and cheques collected and making all the payments by cheque. 

On the debit side there is an amount received column and another one for daily banking. The amount received column details all cash received and the bank column is only entered with the totals on the day when the money is paid to the bank.

On the credit side we have similar columns except that we have a details column which again shows the various payments for the day. The bank column is entered with the daily total payments from the bank. This column records the analysis of cheques drawn during the day. Figures in this book should correspond with the bank statement.  

	DR                                                                 CASH BOOK                                                       CR

	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Folio
	Disc't
	Amt Recv'd
	Daily Totals to Bank
	Date
	Details/  Particulars
	Folio
	Disc't
	Details/  Particulars
	Daily Totals to Bank

	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	
	
	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


4.4
Bank Reconciliation

It is an analysis that explains the difference in the balance of cash shown on the bank statement and the balance of cash shown on the cash account in the depositor’s books (Cash book). Periodically or on request, the bank sends a bank statement to her customers. And the customer is supposed to compare the bank statement with his/her records.

A customer prepares a bank reconciliation statement to verify that the two independent sets of records (Bank Statement and Cash Book) are in agreement. Bank reconciliation is an internal control measure over cash in a bank. The purpose of preparing the statement is to determine the correct figure/amount for cash to be posted to the balance sheet.

What causes the difference between the 2 sets of records?
· Un-presented Cheques
These are cheques drawn by the customer (Depositor/Owner of the Bank Account) and deducted on the customer’s records (cash book) but not yet presented to the bank for payment. In other words the bank will not have debited your account (reduced it by that amount).

· Deposits in Transit
These are deposits which may not have been credited by the end of the day in the bank’s records yet in the customer records have already been taken care of.

· Bank Service Charges

These are charges made by the bank to cover the expenses of handling the account i.e. ledger fees, interest charges on loans and overdraft. 

· Standing Orders

These are instructions given to the bank by the customer to effect payments on his/her behalf, of certain expenses at certain specified dates (e.g. every end of the month). These include such expenses as utility bills (electricity, water, telephone, etc), payment of principal and interest on loans borrowed from banks, etc.

· Credit and Debit Memos

These include collection of accounts receivable or notes receivable on behalf of the customer and vice versa.

Steps in reconciling the two balances (Cash Book balance and bank Statement Balance)
· Check whether items outstanding in the previous reconciliation have cleared.

· Compare deposits and withdraws on the bank statement with the records (Cash Book)

· Add to the balance per Cash Book any credit memo.

· Deduct from the balance per Cash Book any debit memo and all items not previously deducted such as bank charges, and then balance the Cash Book.

· Add to the balance per bank statement any unrecorded deposits i.e. deposits in transit.

· Deduct from the balance of the bank statement any un-presented cheques.

· Determine adjusted balance per customer’s records if it is equal to the adjusted bank balance.

· The resulting balance should be coinciding with that shown in the adjusted Cash Book.  

Reconciliation with Adjusted Cash Book
In practice, it is important to adjust the Cash Book by posting all items not previously entered in the Cash Book e.g. bank charges, debit and credit memos, interest charges, standing orders, then obtain the adjusted cash book balance. It is this balance that is reconciled with the bank statement balance.

Draw up a reconciliation statement starting with the balance given in the bank statement;

Balance as per bank statement 

xxx

Add: Deposits in transit

xxx


xxx

Less: Un-presented Cheques

xxx
Balance as per adjusted Cash Book

xxx
Example 1

Given the following information for B Com Ltd for the month of June 2005; 

	
	Cash Book
	
	
	
	
	

	DR
	
	
	
	
	
	CR

	Date
	Details
	Amount
	
	Date
	Details
	Amount

	
	
	US $
	
	
	
	US $

	1-Jun-05
	Bal B/d
	2,379
	
	5-Jun-05
	D. Blake
	150

	7-Jun-05
	B. Green
	158
	
	12-Jun-05
	J. Gray
	433

	16-Jun-05
	A. Silver
	93
	
	16-Jun-05
	B. Stephens
	88

	28-Jun-05
	M. Brown
	307
	
	29-Jun-05
	Orange Club
	57

	30-Jun-05
	K. Black
	624
	
	30-Jun-05
	Bal C/d
	2,833

	
	
	3,561
	
	
	
	3,561


	
	Bank Statement
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Date
	Particulars/Details
	DR
	CR
	Balance

	
	
	US $
	US $
	US $

	1-Jun-05
	Bal C/d
	
	
	2,379

	7-Jun-05
	Cheque
	
	158
	2,537

	8-Jun-05
	D Blackness
	150
	
	2,387

	16-Jun-05
	Cheque
	
	93
	2,480

	17-Jun-05
	J. Gray
	433
	
	2,047

	18-Jun-05
	B. Stephens
	88
	
	1,959

	28-Jun-05
	Cheque
	
	307
	2,266

	29-Jun-05
	UDT Standing Order
	44
	
	2,222

	30-Jun-05
	Johnson: Traders Credit
	
	90
	2,312

	30-Jun-05
	Bank Charges
	70
	
	2,242

	
	
	
	
	


Required;
a) Write up an up-to-date Cash Book

b) Draw up a Bank Reconciliation Statement as on 30th June, 2005

Solution:
Always first compare the debit side of the Cash Book with the credit side of the Bank Statement and verify whether all items posted are similar. If not, put a mark on all those figures missing on either side. 

Similarly, compare the credit side of the Cash Book with the debit side of bank statement as well.

In example 1 above, on 30th June, 2005 K Black US $ 624 in the Cash Book is a deposit in transit. On 29th June, 2005, Orange Club, US $ 57 represents un-presented cheque. In the bank statement, we have 3 items; UDT standing order US $ 44, Johnson: Traders Credit US $ 90, and Bank Charges US $ 70 which were not reflected in the cash book, hence the need to adjust the Cash Book balance. Find here below the adjusted Cash Book; 

	
	Adjusted Cash Book
	
	
	
	

	DR
	
	
	
	
	CR

	Date
	Details
	Amount
	Date
	Details
	Amount

	
	
	US $
	
	
	US $

	30-Jun-05
	Closing Balance
	2,833
	29-Jun-05
	UDT Standing Order
	44

	30-Jun-05
	Johnson: Traders Credit
	90
	30-Jun-05
	Bank Charges
	70

	
	
	
	30-Jun-05
	Bal C/d
	2,809

	
	
	2,923
	
	
	2,923


B Com Ltd

Bank Reconciliation Statement

As on 30th June, 2005


US $

Balance as per Bank Statement
2,242

Add: Deposit in Transit
   624

2,866

Less: Un-presented Cheques; Orange Club
     57
Balance as per the Adjusted Cash Book
2,809
Example 2

The Cash Book and Bank Statement for B Com II Ltd for the month of December 2006 is as follows:-

	
	Cash Book
	
	
	
	

	DR
	
	
	
	
	CR

	Date
	Details
	Amount
	Date
	Details
	Amount

	
	
	Shs'000'
	
	
	Shs'000'

	6-Dec-06
	J Hall
	155
	1-Dec-05
	Bal B/d
	3,872

	20-Dec-06
	C Walters
	189
	10-Dec-06
	P. Wood
	206

	29-Dec-06
	P. Miller
	211
	19-Dec-06
	M. Roberts
	315

	31-Dec-06
	Bal C/d
	3,922
	29-Dec-06
	P. Phillips
	84

	
	
	4,477
	
	
	4,477


	
	Bank Statement
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Date
	Particulars/Details
	DR
	CR
	Balance

	
	
	Shs'000'
	Shs'000'
	Shs'000'

	1-Dec-06
	Bal B/d
	
	
	(3,872)

	6-Dec-06
	Cheque
	
	155
	(3,717)

	13-Dec-06
	P. Wood
	206
	
	(3,923)

	20-Dec-06
	Cheque
	
	189
	(3,734)

	22-Dec-06
	M. Roberts
	315
	
	(4,049)

	30-Dec-06
	Mercantile: Standing Order
	200
	
	(4,249)

	31-Dec-06
	K. Saunders: Trader's Credit
	
	180
	(4,069)

	31-Dec-06
	Bank Charges
	65
	
	(4,134)

	
	
	
	
	


Required;

a) Write up the adjusted Cash Book.

b) Draw up a Bank Reconciliation Statement as on 31st December, 2006.

Solution:

	DR
	Adjusted Cash Book
	
	
	
	CR

	Date
	Details
	Amount
	Date
	Details
	Amount

	
	
	Shs'000'
	
	
	Shs'000'

	31-Dec-06
	K. Sanders: Trader’s Credit
	180
	31-Dec-06
	Closing Balance
	3,922

	
	
	
	30-Dec-06
	M: Standing Order
	200

	31-Dec-06
	Bal C/d
	4,007
	31-Dec-06
	Bank Charges
	65

	
	
	4,187
	
	
	4,187


B Com II Ltd

Bank Reconciliation Statement

As on 31st December, 2006


Shs ‘000’

Balance as per Bank Statement
(4,134)

Add: Deposit in Transit
     211

(3,923)

Less: Un-presented Cheques; P. Phillips
      84
Balance as per the Adjusted Cash Book
4,007
4.5
Internal Control System:
It is important for any organization’s management to ensure that company policies are adhered to, for the smooth running of the business and long-run survival of the Enterprise (Going Concern Concept). Internal controls will be covered in depth, in Auditing and Assurance Services later in your course. However, in this chapter we shall highlight the objectives of an internal control system generally, which include;

· Enabling management to carry on the business of the Enterprise in an orderly and efficient manner.

· Satisfying management that their policies are being adhered to.

· Ensuring that the Assets of the company are safeguarded.

· Ensuring, as far as possible, that the Enterprise maintains complete and accurate records.

There are many internal controls depending on the Organization, such as, control over customers’ credit worthiness, control over the recording of sales and debtors, control over the issue of stocks and dispatch of goods, control over the invoicing of customers, and control over monies received. We shall limit ourselves and focus on controls over monies received (management of cash).

Controls over monies received (Management of Cash)
· Banking and Payments 

Banking all the cash and cheques collected immediately and making all the payments by cheque (with the exception of petty cash).

· Segregation of Duties

There should be controls to ensure that there’s adequate segregation of duties between those members of staff responsible for updating of the sales records in respect of monies received and those dealing with the receipt of monies, recording and banking of monies.

· The Voucher System

This is one of the methods of establishing control over the making of expenditure and payment of liabilities. The system requires that every liability be recorded as soon as it is incurred and that cheques be issued only in payment of approved liabilities.

A voucher is a written authorization prepared for each item of expenditure, regardless of whether the expenditure covers services, merchandise for sale or assets for use in the business. The essential characteristics of a voucher are that;

· A separate voucher is issued for every incoming invoice.

· Vouchers are consecutively/serially numbered.

· Name and address of the creditor must be on the voucher.

· Description of liability, including amount and terms of payment, must be included.

· Approval signatures are needed for:

· Verification of invoice

· Recording of invoice in accounts

· Payment of liability.

It is fundamental to the successful operation of the voucher system that no cash payment is made except in payment of an approved and recorded voucher.
Voucher Register
This is a journal similar in concept to the purchases journal, where all approved vouchers are recorded. The journal has several debit and credit volumes. Unlike the purchases journal, the voucher register is used to record all types of expenditure such as, plant and machinery expenses, payroll, purchase of merchandise, and loan repayment.

After you have proved the equality of the debit and credit entries in the voucher register (debits and credits being equal), then, the posting to the ledgers should begin.

· Receipts should be serially numbered.

· Authority – All payments should be authorized. 
 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 5
The Trial Balance

5.1
Introduction

This chapter introduces the Trial balance and its use in the accounting system. It is important, for, it checks the accuracy and completeness of the double entry system. Errors which may not be disclosed by the Trial Balance and adjusting entries are analyzed in valuing the Organization’s Assets and measuring the periodic income.  

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Prepare a Trial Balance

· Correct errors that are not disclosed by the Trail Balance.

· Prepare adjusting entries.

The Trial Balance is a two column schedule listing s the names and balances of all the accounts in the order in which they appear on the Ledger. The debit balances are listed under the debit column and credit balances under the credit column. Since double-entry is followed for every transaction recorded (i.e. for every debit entry there must be a corresponding credit entry), the sum of all the debits in the ledger must equal the sum of all credits, if the computation of balances was accurate.

Uses and limitations of the Trial Balance.
The Trial Balance provides proof that the ledger is in balance. The agreement of debit and credit totals gives assurance that;

a) Equal debits and credits have been recorded for all transactions.

b) The debit or credit balance of each account has been correctly computed.

c) The addition of the account balances in the Trial Balance has been correctly performed.

Note that, if the Trial Balance totals do not agree, one error or more must have been made. 

5.2
Errors in the Trial Balance
· Error of Omission
If both the debit and credit entries for a transaction have been omitted, the Trial Balance will not be affected and will not therefore reveal the error. The transaction will be completely omitted.

Assume on 4th July 2006, a sale of goods worth Shs 50,000 cash to Rose was omitted from the books. The journal entry to correct the error will be;


     





  
Shs
           Shs


4th July, 06

DR
Cash Account

 50,000

   
    


CR        Sales Account

           50,000





To record correction of the omitted cash sales

· Compensating Errors

These occur where two or more errors, by chance, cancel each other out. In other words when debits and credits in different accounts are overstated or understated by the same figure. For example, if one account is over-debited by Shs 20,000 and another account is over-credited with Shs 20,000 or two accounts are over-credited with Shs 10,000 each.

Assume that, on 6th July, 2006 the credit balance in the Sales Account is overstated by Shs 15,000 and the debit balance in the General Expenses Account is overstated by the same amount, Shs 15,000.  This type of error would not affect the Trial Balance. However, the two account balances are wrong and need to be corrected. The journal entry to correct the error will be;










    
Shs
     Shs       


6th July, 06

DR
Sales Account

         15,000

   
    


CR        General Expense Account


     15,000





To record correction of the overstatement of the two 





Accounts

· Error of Principle

These are errors involving posting an entry to the wrong type or class of account, for example, debiting the purchase of a Non Current Asset to the Purchases Account instead of the Asset Account. 

For instance, on 7th July 2006 a purchase of a photocopier for Shs 500,000 by Prime Stationers Ltd was included with purchases for resale. 

The journal entry to correct the error will be;










Shs
            Shs


7th July, 06

DR
Office Equipment Account
500,000

   
    


CR      Purchases Account

         

  500,000





To adjust the purchases figure and Office Equipment 




Account

· Error of Commission

This type of error occurs where there is confusion over accounts with similar names. For instance on 8th July 2006 a purchase of Shs 200,000 worth of goods from Kampala International University (KIU) is credited to Kampala University’s Account (KU).  

The journal entry to correct the error will be;










    Shs
            Shs


8th July, 06

DR
KU Account


200,000

   
    


CR     KIU Account


         

200,000





To record correction of entries in the wrong Account

· Error of Original Entry

This error occurs normally where figures are transposed. For example, assuming on 9th July 2006 an expenditure of Shs 66,750 for Office stationery was recorded as Shs 66,570. 

The journal entry to correct the error will be;










    Shs
            Shs


9th July, 06

DR
Office Stationery Account
180

   
    


CR      Cash Account

       

  180





To correct error in Office stationery and Cash Account

5.3
Note on Correction of Errors
Whenever you discover an error, it must be put right, as shown in the examples above. The adjustment to be made will, of course, depend on the type of error involved. When the error involves a miss-posting, you make the correction by using a debit and credit entry, effected through the journal. You must not correct the books by altering or scratching out the entries already made.

Suspense Account
Errors affecting the Trial Balance should be corrected before the final accounts are prepared. Errors must be located and corrected particularly when they are of a material nature. A suspense Account is an account to which you put that aspect of a transaction with which, though lack of information, experience or guidance, you feel unable to deal satisfactorily. For example, you might credit to a suspense account the double entry for cash received (the cash book would be debited), if the source of the funds is not well known. When the information is available later, then a journal would be used to transfer the item out of the suspense account into the account where the entry belongs.

A further use of a suspense account is that of the temporary location for a Trial Balance difference. In order that final accounts can be prepared from an unbalanced Trial Balance, the Trial Balance is made to agree artificially by putting into the suspense account sufficient debit or credit to make the Trial Balance totals agree. When the errors have been found, then the necessary transfers will be made from the suspense account to the accounts in which the error had been made.

If an error can not be found, then the amount of the error is entered on the suspense account and carried forward to the Balance Sheet either as a debit or credit amount, depending on whether the amount making the Trial Balance not balance was a debit or a credit balance.

Only those errors which make the Trial Balance totals different from each other have to be corrected via the suspense account.

NB: Where the balance is a credit balance, it should be included on the Capital and Liabilities side of the Balance Sheet. When the balance is a debit balance, it should be shown on the Assets side of the balance sheet.
Example 1
Assume a difference of Shs 40,000 in the Trial Balance;

i) If it is found after re-checking that sales were underestimated by Shs 40,000. The journal entry to pass would be;

                                                     Shs
  Shs

Dr   Suspense Account               40,000

Cr    Sales Account

40,000

To record sales correctly 

ii) If it is found that sales were underestimated by Shs 30,000 and Shs 10,000 paid by a customer, Mr Musoke was not entered in his account. The journal entry to pass would be;

                                                     Shs
  Shs

Dr   Suspense Account               40,000

       Cr    Sales Account
30,000

       Cr    Debtor’s Account - Musoke
10,000

To record sales and debtor’s accounts correctly 

iii) If on re-checking it was found out that sales were underestimated by Shs 30,000 from customers, Shs 20,000 was not credited in the customers’ accounts and discounts allowed of Shs 10,000 were not recorded. The journal entry to pass would be;

                                                                Shs
      Shs

Dr   Suspense Account                           40,000

Dr   Discount Allowed Account               10,000

       Cr    Sales Account
         30,000

       Cr    Debtors Account
         20,000

To record sales, debtors and discount allowed accounts correctly. 

Example 2
The accounting system of ABC Ltd is not computerized, and on 30th September, 1998 the Accountant was unable to balance the accounts. The Trial Balance totals were;


Debit       Shs 1,796,100,000


Credit       Shs 1,852,817,000

Nevertheless, he proceeded to prepare draft financial statements, inserting the difference as a balancing figure in the Balance Sheet. The draft profit and loss account showed a profit of Shs 141,280,000 for the year ended 30th September, 1998. He then opened a suspense account for the difference and began to check through the accounting records to find the difference. He found the following errors and omissions:

1) Shs 8,980,000 – the total of the Sales Returns book for September 1998 had been credited to the Purchases Returns Account.

2) Shs 9,600,000 paid for an item of Plant purchased on 1st April, 1998 had been debited to Plant Repairs Account. The company depreciates its plant at 20% per annum on a straight line basis, with proportional depreciation in the year of purchase.

3) The cash discount totals for the month of September 1998 had not been posted to the Nominal Ledger Accounts. The figures were:


                                           Shs


Discount Allowed         836,000

Discount Received       919,000

4) Shs 580,000 insurance prepaid on 30th September, 1997 had not been brought down as an opening balance.

5) The balance of Shs 38,260,000 on the Telephone Expenses Account had been omitted from the Trial Balance.

6) A Car held as a Non Current Asset had been sold during the year for Shs 4,800,000. The sales proceeds were entered in the Cash Book but had been credited to the Sales Account in the Nominal Ledger. The original cost of the Car Shs 12,000,000 and the Accumulated Depreciation to date Shs 8,000,000 were included in the Motor Vehicles Account and the Accumulated Depreciation Account. The company depreciates Motor Vehicles at 25% per annum on a straight line basis with proportionate depreciation in the year of purchase but none in the year of sale. 

Required;

a) Open a Suspense Account for the difference between the Trial Balance totals. Prepare the journal entries necessary to correct the errors and eliminate the balance on the Suspense Account. Narrations are not required.

b) Draw up a statement showing the revised profit after correcting the above errors.

Solution:
The approach to the question should be;

· Read the requirement paragraph at the end of the question

· Attack the question – note that narrations are not required (though for your practice you can put them on while doing your revision studies). Begin by opening the Suspense Account. Which side? More debit is needed to balance the Trial Balance, so debit the Suspense Account with Shs 56,717,000 (Shs 1,852,817,000 – 1,796,100,000)

Then deal with the errors in order;

1) Sales returns should have been debited to the Sales Returns Account and they have been credited to the Purchases Returns Account. There are two errors here – the wrong account has been used and an entry which should have been a debit has been entered as a credit. The Suspense Account entry must therefore be for 2 x Shs 8,980,000 or Shs 17,960,000

2) An error of principle – no Suspense Account entry. Depreciation must be adjusted.

3) Items have not been posted; therefore the Suspense Account is involved. 

4) Effectively a posting error – the Suspense Account is again involved.

5) A Trial Balance error must affect the Suspense Account – but no Ledger entry.

6) This one needs thought. Take it one sentence at a time. Is the Suspense Account involved? No, because we have an error of commission followed by some unrecorded transactions.

(a)

	Suspense Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Difference
	56,717
	
	Sales Returns
	8,980

	
	Discount Received
	919
	
	Purchase Returns
	8,980

	
	
	
	
	Discount Allowed
	836

	
	
	
	
	Insurance
	580

	
	
	
	
	Telephone (Trial Balance)
	38,260

	
	
	57,636
	
	
	57,636

	
	
	
	
	
	


Journal Entries (Narrations are not required as per the question)
	Errors as per the question
	Particulars
	Folio
	DR
	CR

	
	
	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'

	1
	Sales Returns Account
	
	8,980
	

	
	       Suspense Account
	
	
	8,980

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Purchases Returns Account
	
	8,980
	

	
	       Suspense Account
	
	
	8,980

	
	
	
	
	

	2
	Plant Account
	
	9,600
	

	
	       Plant Repairs Account
	
	
	9,600

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation (P & L A/C) Account
	
	960
	

	
	       Plant Depreciation Account
	
	
	960

	
	
	
	
	

	3
	Discount Allowed Account
	
	836
	

	
	      Suspense Account
	
	
	836

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Suspense Account
	
	919
	

	
	      Discount Received Account
	
	
	919

	
	
	
	
	

	4
	Insurance Account
	
	580
	

	
	      Suspense Account
	
	
	580

	
	
	
	
	

	5
	Trial Balance (No Ledger entry)
	
	38,260
	

	
	      Suspense Account
	
	
	38,260

	
	
	
	
	

	6
	Sales Account
	
	4,800
	

	
	      Motor Vehicles Disposal Account
	
	
	4,800

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Motor Vehicles Disposal Account
	
	12,000
	

	
	      Motor Vehicles Asset Account
	
	
	12,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Motor Vehicles Depreciation Account
	
	8,000
	

	
	      Motor Vehicles Disposal Account
	
	
	8,000

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Motor Vehicles Disposal Account
	
	800
	

	
	      Profit and Loss Account
	
	
	800

	
	
	
	
	


NB: The date column has been replaced with error numbers for illustrative purposes in this question. It is never the practice always. Dates must be indicated in accounts.

(b)

The most convenient format for the answer is two columns for (–) and (+). Set them up and enter the adjustments appropriately. Which of the errors affect the profit? In fact they all do in this example.

	 
	
	
	-
	+

	
	
	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'

	1
	Profit as in draft Profit & Loss Account
	
	
	141,280

	
	Sales Returns adjustment (2 x Shs 8,980)
	
	17,960
	

	
	
	
	
	

	2
	Plant: reduction in repairs
	
	
	9,600

	
	depreciation - 6/12 x 20% x 9,600
	
	960
	

	
	
	
	
	

	3
	Discount Allowed
	
	836
	

	
	Discount Received
	
	
	919

	
	
	
	
	

	4
	Insurance  - Opening Balance omitted
	
	580
	

	
	
	
	
	

	5
	Telephone Expenses omitted
	
	38,260
	

	
	
	
	
	

	6
	Profit on sale of Car
	
	
	800

	
	Proceeds taken out of sales
	
	4,800
	

	
	
	
	63,396
	152,599

	
	
	
	
	(63,396)

	
	Revised Net Profit
	
	
	89,203

	
	
	
	
	


Some hints on preparing Suspense Account
· Does a correction involve the Suspense Accounts? The type of error determines this.

· Which side of the Suspense Account must an entry go? This is one of the most awkward problems in preparing Suspense Accounts. The best way of solving it is to ask yourself which side the entry needs to be on in the other Account concerned. The Suspense Account entry is then obviously to the opposite side.

· Look out for errors with two aspects. An entry has been made to the wrong account. Both errors must be corrected. It is very easy to fall into the trap of correcting only one of the errors, especially when working quickly under examinations conditions.

Preparing the Trial Balance
The process of preparing a Trial Balance comprises three steps;

1) Balance all the accounts in the books.

2) List all the debit balances and add them up.

3) List all the credit balances and add them up.

If the book-keeping is correct, the two totals should be the same – i.e. the Trial Balance should balance.

Example 3
Let us suppose the following five accounts are the only accounts in the books of Prime Impex Ltd;

	Debtors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Sales
	60,000
	
	Returns
	40,000

	
	Sales
	70,000
	
	Cash
	50,000

	
	Sales
	80,000
	
	Balance C/d
	120,000

	
	
	210,000
	
	
	210,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance B/d
	120,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Returns
	30,000
	
	Purchases
	60,000

	
	Cash
	30,000
	
	Purchases
	40,000

	
	Balance C/d
	40,000
	
	
	

	
	
	100,000
	
	
	100,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	40,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Debtors (Returns)
	40,000
	
	Debtors
	60,000

	
	
	
	
	Debtors
	70,000

	
	Balance C/d
	170,000
	
	Debtors
	80,000

	
	
	210,000
	
	
	210,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	170,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Purchases Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Creditors
	60,000
	
	Creditors
	30,000

	
	Creditors
	40,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	70,000

	
	
	100,000
	
	
	100,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance B/d
	70,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash/Bank Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Debtors
	50,000
	
	Creditors
	30,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	20,000

	
	
	50,000
	
	
	50,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Balance B/d
	20,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


We can now prepare a Trial Balance by extracting the Ledger balances above:

Prime Impex Limited

Trial Balance as at ………

	Particulars/Details
	DR
	
	CR

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Debtors
	120,000
	
	

	Purchases
	70,000
	
	

	Cash/Bank
	20,000
	
	

	Creditors
	
	
	40,000

	Sales
	
	
	170,000

	Totals
	210,000
	
	210,000


Accruals and Prepayments

At the end of an accounting period it is likely that an Organization will find that some expenses have been paid which relate to the next accounting period, while other amounts which relate to the current period remain outstanding. In order that the accounts show a true picture of the Organization’s financial performance, adjustments for accruals and prepayments are necessary. 

A prepayment is in effect an advance payment of an expense. It occurs when an expense is included in the current accounting period, but some or all of the charge relates to the next accounting period. If we do not make an adjustment, profit for the current year will be understated while next year’s profit will be overstated.

Items which normally need to be prepaid include; rates, insurance, and rent. The accounting entry requires the prepayment to reduce the relevant expense in the Profit and Loss Account thereby increasing profit. Since technically the prepayment represents an amount owing to the business from a third party, it is included under Current Assets in the Balance Sheet. 

                                                     
Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Prepayment (Balance Sheet)
xxx

Cr    Expenses (Profit & Loss)


xxx

An accrual is the exact opposite of a prepayment. It represents an item the use of which the business has already benefited from during the current accounting period, but which it will not pay until the next accounting period. If we do not make an adjustment, the profit for the current year will be overstated, while for the next year, profit will be understated. Examples of items which need to be accrued for include utilities such as electricity, water, telephone, since it is unlikely that these bills will exactly coincide with the business’s year end. 

The accounting entry for an accrual is:


Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Expenses (Profit & Loss)
xxx

Cr    Accruals (Balance Sheet)


xxx

In this case the relevant expense in the Profit and Loss Account is increased by the amount accrued, In the Balance Sheet accruals appear under current liabilities reflecting an amount owing by the business.

5.4
Adjusting Entries 

Almost every adjusting entry affects both a Balance Sheet and Income Statement. This reflects two important aspects:

a) Proper valuation of Assets and Liabilities

b) Proper measurement of Income.

Adjusting entries can be classified into the following major groups:

1) Apportionment of Recorded Costs
The allocation of periodic depreciation expenses is an example of a cost apportionment adjusting entry.


     Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Depreciation Expenses Account            
xxx

Cr    Accumulated Depreciation Account


xxx

Assume Shs 50,000 worth of Office Supplies was acquired during the year. End of year stock/inventory (physical) shows items worth Shs 6,000.

At the time the supplies were acquired, the Shs 50,000 purchase may have been debited to;

i) An Asset Account i.e. Office Supplies Account

ii) An Expense Account i.e. Office Supplies Expense Account

In case (i), 

     
 Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Office Supplies Expense Account           44,000

Cr    Office Supplies Account



44,000

In case (ii), 

     
 Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Office Supplies Account              
6,000

Cr    Office Supplies Expense Account



6,000

2) Apportionment of Recorded Revenue.
When cash is received, the original entry may be recorded in either of two ways.

i) A Liability Account may be credited.

ii) A Revenue Account may be   credited.

Assume that New Vision customers pay Shs 500,000 for newspapers subscriptions during the year 2006. However, Shs 75,000 of this represents payments for copies to be delivered the following year 2007.

If a Liability Account is credited, adjusting entries would be; 




Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Unearned Subscription Revenue Account     

425,000

Cr    Subscription Revenue Account




425,000

If a Revenue Account is credited, adjusting entries would be; 




Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Subscription Revenue Account     


75,000

 Cr    Unearned Subscription Revenue Account


75,000

3) Accrual of Unrecorded Expenses

In order to achieve a realistic measurement of the expenses of the period, an adjusting entry is necessary to record accrued expenses and the corresponding liability. 

Assume interest of 6% is paid on Shs 600,000 Note Payable semi-annually on 1st March and 1st September of each year. The adjusting entry for this expense at 31st December (assuming the firm’s accounting period ends on 31st December) would be;




Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Interest Expense Account     


12,000

Cr    Interest Payable Account




12,000

(Shs 600,000 x 6% x 4/12 = Shs 12,000) – 4 months remaining to the end of the year (i.e. 1st September to 31st December).

4) Accrual of Unrecorded Revenue

In order to measure income properly during each operating period and to avoid shifting of income between periods, revenue should be recognized in the period it is earned.

Assume rent for Shs 100,000 for the month of October has been earned but neither collected nor recorded. The following adjusting entry will be necessary for a complete reporting of revenue and assets.




Shs
  
Shs

Dr   Rent Receivable Account     


100,000

Cr    Rent Revenue Account




100,000

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 6
Final Accounts 1: The Income Statement

6.1
Introduction

This chapter focuses on the preparation of the Income Statement. The purpose of accounting is to provide information (relevant information) which is used to arrive at decisions. Financial data recording we have seen in the previous chapters drives us to production of final accounts, like, the Income Statement. The Income Statement has two components; The Trading Account and the Profit and Loss Account. 

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Prepare the Income Statement.

· Distinguish between Income Statement items and the Balance Sheet Items.

The income which a business derives from its trading activities can be simply defined as the difference between the revenues and expenses incurred during that period. Every business enterprise wants to know the result of its trading operations, whether a profit has been made (profit is the measure of performance and it’s the life blood of any business) or a loss has been sustained, and whether the enterprise is still financially solvent.

6.2
Trading Account
The purpose of this account is to ascertain the gross profit of a trading business. This is derived at by comparing the net revenue from the sale of goods and the cost of acquiring those goods (cost of sales/cost of goods sold). The main items in the trading account are; sales, sales returns and allowances, opening stock/inventory, purchases, purchase returns and allowances, carriage inwards/transportation inwards, and closing stock/inventory. Further, note also that these accounts are opened in the ledger and posted, as all other accounts.

NB: Carriage inwards/Transportation inwards i.e. on purchases, and custom duties on purchases, etc, are expenses incidental to acquisition by the business of the goods which  are intended for re-sale and are therefore debited to the trading account. 

Fig 6.1: Format of the Trading Account

X Ltd

Trading Account for the period ……………..

Shs

Shs

Shs


Sales




xxx

Less: Sales Returns and Allowances




xxx
Net Sales (Turnover)




xxx

Cost of goods sold:

Opening Stock/Inventory


xxx

Purchases
xxx

Less: Purchase Returns and Allowances
xxx


 


xxx

Add: Carriage inwards/Transportation inwards
xxx

xxx



xxx

Less: Closing Stock


xxx
Cost of Sales




xxx
Gross Profit / (Loss)




xxx
NB: Note how sales returns and allowances are deducted from gross sales and purchase returns and allowances deducted from purchases.  

Stock/Inventory
When a business starts, a value for opening stock is debited to the Stock/Inventory Account from the journal. No further entry is made in the Stock Account until the Trading Account is prepared, and then the figure in the Stock Account is transferred to the Trading Account as opening stock. 

Stock at the end of the year is valued and this credit value is entered in the Trading Account, and the double entry is completed by debiting the Stock Account. In other words, the Stock Account shows only the opening and closing balances of stock, and is not concerned at all with the amount of stock held at any time in the course of a year.

Example 1:

A retailer starts business on 1st January, 2005 with a stock worth Shs 10,000,000. On 14th March, 2005 she purchases goods worth Shs 20,000,000 and on 15th September, 2005 further goods worth Shs 15,000,000. On 31st December, 2005 she estimates that her shop contains Shs 12,000,000 worth of stock. Sales for the year amounted to Shs 40,000,000. 

Required;
Prepare her Ledger Accounts accordingly.

Solution

	Purchases Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	14-Mar-05
	Sundry Creditors
	20,000,000
	
	
	

	15-Mar-05
	Sundry Creditors
	15,000,000
	31-Dec-05
	Trading Account
	35,000,000

	
	
	35,000,000
	
	
	35,000,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Stock/Inventory Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	01-Jan-05
	Opening Balance
	10,000,000
	
	Trading Account
	10,000,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	31-Dec-05
	Trading Account
	12,000,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Trading Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	 
	Stock at 1st Jan 05
	10,000,000
	
	Sales
	40,000,000

	 
	Purchases
	35,000,000
	
	Stock at 31st Dec 06
	12,000,000

	 
	Gross Profit
	7,000,000
	
	
	

	 
	
	52,000,000
	
	
	52,000,000


Note the double entries carefully.  At the beginning of the tear the balance on the Stock Account is Shs 10,000,000. This is transferred to the Trading Account by crediting Stock Account and debiting Trading Account. The Stock at the end of the year is valued at Shs 12,000,000 so debit Stock Account and Credit Trading Account.

A more prudent Trading Account format (Vertical format which is used practically and in examinations) will be; 

                                                       Shs                          Shs

Sales                                                                         40,000,000

Cost of goods sold:

Opening Stock                             10,000,000

Purchases                                    35,000,000


                                                    45,000,000

Less: Closing Stock                      12,000,000           33,000,000

Gross Profit / (Loss)                                                   7,000,000

Private Drawings of Stock
When goods are withdrawn from stock by the proprietor for his or her own consumption, always credit Sales Account at selling price, not Stock Account. This is because consumption of goods increases the amount sold on behalf of the business. Any value of closing stock you are given takes account of the fact that goods withdrawn are no longer in stock.

Dr   Drawings Account     


xxx

Cr    Sales Account (at selling price)




xxx

               To record the goods taken by the proprietor.

When closing stock is destroyed by fire
In any business enterprise, a significant loss of stock is not a normal recurring feature although it can, and sometimes does, happen under unexpected and unfortunate circumstances. Such a risk of loss caused by fire, theft etc, may be avoided with the help of proper insurance cover. If the company does not arrange any insurance, it has to absorb the entire impact of the loss should there be such an occurrence. The accounting treatment for abnormal loss of stock would be different depending on whether the items were insured or not. 

As a general rule, a Trading Account is prepared to show the gross trading result of the Organization under normal circumstances. This facilitates a comparison of gross profit with what was budgeted for, assuming there were no abnormal stock loss.

If indeed there is any abnormal loss, it would be charged to Profit and Loss Account like any other business expenses/losses. Any major stock destruction by fire would be credited to Trading Account as though the items were still there. The corresponding debit would go to Profit and Loss Account to the extent it is not covered by insurance. The amount claimed/due from the Insurers would be debited to the Insurance Company’s Account and shown as an Asset (Current Asset) like any other Debtor.  

Generally the journal would be:

Dr   Profit and Loss A/c (Loss of Stock – the part of which was not insured)  
xxx

Cr    Trading Account (i.e. less: Closing Stock and Stock Loss)           

xxx

In the Balance Sheet the portion which is claimed from the Insurers (if any) will be represented under Current Assets as ‘Insurance Receivable’.

6.3
Profit and Loss Account
Every business functions, while incurring overhead expenses like, salaries, rent, stationery, utility bills, vehicle repairs, transportation and other incidentals which must be met out of the gross profit made. In addition, a business may earn a small income out of the gross profit after taking into the corporation taxes, dividends and interest on investments.

The purpose of the Profit and Loss Account is to ascertain the net profit and loss made during the period by aggregating the total revenue less the total overhead expenses.

Preparing the Profit and Loss Account
The Profit and Loss Account is a Ledger Account and forms part of the double-entry process.  The Ledger Account balances for all Accounts that are used in calculating the profit are transferred to the Profit and Loss Account. Examples of the Accounts transferred are; rent, salaries and wages, administrative costs, utility bills, bank financial charges, etc.

Net profit is computed as follows;

Net profit   =     Gross profit (from Trading Account)

                          Add: Any revenue income received other than from sales

                          Less: Operating Expenses

NB: Remember always the matching convention/concept that revenues and expenses for the period should be related/matched together in order to determine the profits for the period.
Credits
The items credited to the Profit and Loss Account include:

· The gross profit on trading

· Rent received in respect of property let.

· Interest and dividends received in respect of investments owned by the business.

· Bad debts recovered

· Other items of profit or gain, other than of a capital nature, including profits on the sale of Assets (Disposal of Assets)

Debits
Debited to the Profit and Loss Account are all revenue expenses of the business. These charges are often described as overhead expenses and may be grouped as follows:

· Administration Expenses – These cover, rent, rates, lighting, heating and repairs of office buildings, director’s remuneration and fees, salaries, utility bills, etc. Generally, all the expenses incurred in the control of the business and the direction and formulation of its policy.  

· Sales Expenses – Sales commission, warehouse rent, rates and expenses, advertising and any expenses connected with the selling of the goods.

· Distribution Expenses – Here we have costs of carriage outwards, freight charges, motor vehicle and wages of the drivers, wages of packers, and any other expenses incurred by the distribution or delivery of the goods.

· Financial Expenses – These include interest on loans, hire purchase agreements, debentures, bank overdrafts, etc.

NB: No capital items, such as, the purpose of Plant and Machinery must be debited to the Profit and Loss Account (as we shall later see – on capital expenditure)

6.4
Special Items
There are several items which do not occur in the normal course of the business, but which must be carefully considered at the end of each trading period. These include:

· Bad Debts  which are known at the end of the period and are written off in the Profit and Loss Account 

· Depreciation of Non Current Assets such as Buildings, Plant and Machinery, Office Furniture and Equipment, Motor Vehicles, etc.

· Expenses paid in advance (prepayments) or in arrears (Accruals)
Bad Debts
If all the debtors of a firm paid their accounts, no mention of this item would be made. Unfortunately however, they do not, and many firms incur what are known as bad debts expenses. These situations occur where debtors are declared bankrupt, or they disappear and others stubbornly refuse to pay/clear up their bills. Their debts may not be worth the trouble of court action, hence the debts must be written off. The Debtor’s Account is credited with the amount of bad debts written off, thus closing the account. To complete the double entry, the Bad Debts Account is debited.

Dr   Bad Debts Account     


xxx

       Cr    Debtors’ Account




xxx

               To record the bad debts written off.

At the end of the period, the Bad Debts Accounts is closed off to the Profit and Loss Account.  

Dr   Profit and Loss Account (P & L A/c)     


xxx

Cr    Bad Debts Account     




xxx

               To close off the bad debts to Profit and Loss A/c.

Provision for Bad Debts
In addition to writing off the bad debts as they occur or when they are known to be bad, a business should also provide for any losses it may incur in the future if its debtors are unable to meet their obligations (Prudence Concept). Provisions for bad debts are estimated out of experience from debt collections. If any debts are ‘doubtful’, it should be estimated how much the debtor is likely to pay. The balance of the debt is potentially bad and the provision should be the total of such potentially bad amounts. The Debtor’s Account will not, however, be written off until it is definitely known that it is bad. The provision is formed for the purpose of reducing the value of sundry debtors on the balance sheet to an amount which is expected will be received from them.

Example 2:

At 1st January, 2005 the provision for bad debts was Shs 4,000,000. During the year, bad debts incurred were Shs 3,670,000. On 31st December, 2005 it was decided to write off the bad debts and increase the provision to 5% of the debtors. The balance of debtors was Shs 100,000,000 after writing off the bad debts.

Required
Show the Ledger entries necessary to record the above transactions.

Solution 

	Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	31-Dec-05
	Debtors
	3,670,000
	
	
	

	31-Dec-05
	Provision for Bad Debts
	1,000,000
	31-Dec-05
	P & L Account
	4,670,000

	
	
	4,670,000
	
	
	4,670,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provision for Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	01-Jan-05
	Balance B/d
	4,000,000

	31-Dec-05
	Balance C/d
	5,000,000
	31-Dec-05
	Bad Debts
	1,000,000

	
	
	5,000,000
	
	
	5,000,000


Depreciation

It is the allocation of a cost to a Non Current Asset (Fixed Asset). In other words, depreciation is the measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other loss of value of a Non Current Asset whether arising from use, passage of time, or obsolescence through technology and market changes. It should be allocated to accounting periods so as to charge a fair proportion to each accounting period during the expected useful life of the Asset (we shall discuss this topic later in details). However, you should put in your mind the fact that depreciation expenses have to be ascertained for each Asset and consequently debited to the Profit and Loss Account.

6.5
Allocation or Appropriation of Net Profit
This involves the distribution of net profit according to the type of ownership of the business concerned i.e. Sole Trader, Partnership and Limited Company. Sometimes the Appropriation Account is drawn up as a separate Account. For a Limited company items such as dividends paid, corporation tax, director’s fees, are deducted from the net profit to arrive at retained earnings carried forward to the next period.

6.6
IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements – Income Statement.
IAS 1 considers the issue of presentation of the Income Statement. The standard distinguishes the function of expense (“by function”) and nature of expense (“by nature”) formats. The “by function” format is also referred to as the cost of sales method. The standard states that it “requires a choice between classifications based on that which most fairly presents the elements of the enterprise’s performance” (Para 84). 

A significant feature of the standard which will aid financial analysts with inter-firm comparisons is the requirement to disclose additional information when a “by function” format is used. The standard states that “enterprises classifying expenses by function should disclose additional information on the nature of expenses, including depreciation and amortization expense and staff costs”. This would enable analysts to determine value added and other ratios from the financial statements.

The “by nature” format also provides information from which value added can be determined, together with the ratio of value added per currency of employee costs, which is a significant measure of productivity. 

“By Function Format”
                                                 Shs

Revenue                                      xxx

Cost of Sales                              (xx)
Gross Profit                                xxx

Other Operating Income            xxx

Distribution Costs                      (xx)

Administrative Costs                  (xx)
Profit from Operations               xxx

Net Interest Cost                      (xx)
Profit before tax                        xxx

Income Tax Expense                   (xx)
Net Profit for the Period            xxx
“By Nature Format”

                                                                      Shs              Shs

Revenue                                                                            xxx

Other Operating Income                                                  xxx

Changes in Inventories of 

finished goods and work in progress                xxx

Raw Materials and Consumables used              xxx

Staff Costs                                                     xxx

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses        xxx

Other Operating Expenses                              xxx            xxx
Profit from Operations                                                     xxx

Net Interest Cost                                                             xxx 

Profit before tax                                                               xxx

Income Tax Expenses                                                        xxx
Net Profit for the period                                                  xxx
Example 3:

The following is an extract of balances in the accounts of Samson Company Limited as at 31st December, 1998.

                                                                                    Shs (millions)

Cost of Sales                                                               3.6

Sales Revenue                                                              9.1

Distribution Costs                                                        1.3

Loan Note Interest                                                      1.4

Administration Expenses                                              2.1

An analysis of the costs other than interest 

(i.e. Shs 7,000,000; 3.6 + 1.3 + 2.1) showed the following:

                                                                                    Shs (millions)

Raw Materials and consumables                                     2.1

Increase in Inventories Finished goods 

and Work-in-Progress                                                   (0.2)

Depreciation                                                                  1.8

Staff Costs                                                                   2.9

Other Operating Expenses                                            0.4 

The provision for income tax expense had been agreed at Shs 200,000.

Prepare the Income Statement in both formats; by function and by nature.

Solution:

a) By “Function” Format
Samson Co Ltd

Income Statement

For the year ended 31st December, 1998

	
	Shs (millions)
	
	Shs (millions)

	Revenue
	
	
	9.1

	Cost of Sales
	
	
	3.6

	Gross profit
	
	
	5.5

	Distribution Costs
	1.3
	
	

	Administration Expenses
	2.1
	
	3.4

	Profit from Operations
	
	
	2.1

	Interest Payable
	
	
	1.4

	Profit before tax
	
	
	0.7

	Income tax expenses
	
	
	0.2

	Net profit for the period
	
	
	0.5


b) By “Nature” Format
Samson Co Ltd

Income Statement

For the year ended 31st December, 1998
	
	Shs (millions)
	
	Shs (millions)

	Revenue
	
	
	9.1

	Increase in Inventories of Finished goods

and work-in-progress
	
	0.2

	
	
	
	9.3

	Raw Materials and Consumables
	2.1
	
	

	Staff Costs
	2.9
	
	

	Depreciation
	1.8
	
	

	Other Operating Expenses
	0.4
	
	7.2

	Profit from Operations
	
	
	2.1

	Interest Payable
	
	
	1.4

	Profit before tax
	
	
	0.7

	Income tax expenses
	
	
	0.2

	Net profit for the period
	
	
	0.5


NB: Other Examples of the Income Statement will be seen after the next chapter.

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 7
Final Accounts 2: The Balance Sheet

7.1
Introduction

This chapter presents the second part of final accounts; the Balance Sheet. Our focus will be on the components of the Balance Sheet, namely, the Assets, Liabilities and Shareholder’s Funds. We shall also discuss about the distinction between capital and revenue expenditures. Finally, the preparation of a Balance Sheet basing on the recommended standards will be discussed. 

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Identify the components of the Balance Sheet.

· Categorize the components as they should be presented in the Balance Sheet.

· Distinguish between capital and revenue expenditures

· Prepare the Balance Sheet as per IAS 1.

7.2
Nature of the Balance Sheet
A Balance Sheet is a statement showing the Assets owned and the Liabilities owed by the business on a certain date. The Balance Sheet should be presented in a vertical format, regardless of the type of a business; Sole Trader, Partnership or Limited Companies (IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements). In the vertical format, all Assets are shown first, with a total, and then Shareholder’s Funds or Equity (Capital) of the business, with its own sub-total and all the Liabilities (Long-term and Short-term Liabilities) with their own sub-total as well. When all the totals are obtained, they should confirm to the accounting equation that; A = C + L (refer to Chapter 2).

At the end of the trading period it is customary to extract a Trial Balance (refer to Chapter 5). It is from the Trial Balance that final accounts are prepared.

Note the following differences between the Balance Sheet, the Trial Balance and Ledger Accounts.
· A Trial Balance is a list of all the Ledger balances, not only Assets and Liabilities, but also gains and losses. A Balance Sheet is a cost of a part only of the Ledger balances, i.e. those remaining after the profit and loss items have been dealt with, the Assets and Liabilities.

· A Trial Balance is prepared before the revenue accounts are compiled. A Balance Sheet is prepared after the revenue accounts have been dealt with. 

Functions of a Balance Sheet
a) Financial position of a business
It is very useful, now and then, to reckon up what we posses in form of Furniture, Books, Cash and amounts owing to us by other people, and to contrast this total with what we owe. If we posses more than we owe, then we are solvent, and the difference between the two totals represents our worth or capital. If we have spent more than our income we are then insolvent, the difference this time being a deficit. 

Therefore, the Balance Sheet is drawn up in order to give a picture of the financial position of the business. It reveals whether the business is solvent or insolvent. It shows how much is invested in different forms of property, and it provides an incentive to the proprietors/shareholders/management to ensure that the Assets shown by the books are actually in the firm’s possession.   

b) Arithmetical accuracy of account
The agreement of the Balance Sheet also provides a check on the accuracy of the revenue accounts in much the same way as the agreement of a Trial Balance provides prima facie evidence of the arithmetical accuracy of the books.

c) Bridge between financial years
The Balance Sheet is also a ‘bridge’ between one financial year and the next. All accounts which remain open after the Manufacturing, Trading, Profit and Loss Accounts have been prepared, are summarized in the Balance Sheet. 

d) Summarized Statements
Summaries of Ledger balances are shown in the Balance Sheet in order to give a more intelligible financial position of the business. It would be very illogical to list each Asset, Liability or Capital items separately, thus the Balance Sheet would be extremely long. Thus, if the enterprise has 5 debtors (with different amounts outstanding each) totaling to Shs 200,000 then it is this aggregate figure of Shs 200,000 which is shown under Current Assets in the Balance Sheet as follows;

Current Assets:                               Shs

Sundry Debtors                          200,000

Generally therefore, summarization entails giving as much information in as little space as possible.

7.3
Assets
Assets are debit balances, and may be divided into Non Current Assets (originally known as Fixed Assets) and Current Assets.

· Non Current Assets

These are assets which are retained in a business, more or less permanently, for the purpose of earning revenue only and not for sale. Examples include; Plant and Machinery, Land, Buildings, Vehicles, etc.  Some Non Current Assets are consumed by the passing of time, e.g. Leases. Non Current Assets are subject to depreciation over a period of time.

· Current Assets

Cash and those other Assets which have been made or purchased merely to be sold and converted into cash are known as Current Assets. It is form the turnover of Current Assets that a business makes its trading profit. Examples include; Stock/Inventory in trade, Sundry Debtors, Prepayments, other Receivables, Bank/Cash and any temporary Investments. All these Assets are held for a short period of time, i.e. Stock is sold often, Debtors keep paying up their debts, Cash at hand and in the Bank is used to meet the day-to-day business commitments, etc.

It is important to know the determination of whether as Asset is Non Current or Current. It all depends entirely upon the kind of business which holds the Asset. What is Non Current in one firm may be a Current Asset in another. For instance, Machinery is a Non Current Asset when held by a firm which manufactures shoes or produces sodas, but, in the hands of a firm which sells Machinery, like Gailley & Roberts, Spear Motors, Toyota, etc, it will be a Current Asset (it is taken as Stock/Inventory).

The rule to be applied is this; is the Asset concerned held merely until a buyer can be found, or is it held permanently for use in the business? If the former case obtains, the Asset is a Current Asset; but, if the latter case obtains then the Asset is a Non Current Asset. Also, even Assets which are not easily realizable such as debts outstanding are still categorized under Current Assets.

Valuation of Assets
The distinction between Non Current Assets and Current Assets is of utmost importance, for a variety of reasons.

a)  Non Current Assets
Generally, Non Current Assets represent money which has been spent in the past on items, e.g. Buildings, Plant, Machinery, Motor Vehicles, etc, and are intended to be used to earn revenue for the firm. In many cases, these Assets depreciate over a period of years and may finally have to be ‘scrapped’. Therefore the money/amount spent originally on a Non Current Asset should be spread over the number of years of the estimated ‘life’ of the Asset. An item representing depreciation will be debited to the Profit and Loss Account annually, and the provision account (Accumulated Depreciation Account) will be credited. The fact that we deduct depreciation from the cost of the Asset, the Non Current Asset is shown as a diminishing figure in the Balance Sheet each year unless, if there are additions to the Asset during the year. The decrease in the value (to the business) of the Non Current Asset is also thus shown as an expense in the annual Profit and Loss Account (i.e. depreciation expense).

On the contrary, not all Non Current Assets are consumed by the passing of time. Some in fact appreciate e.g. Freehold Land. Hence, this gives rise to the critique on the historical cost concept (Chapter 1). If an increased valuation (due to appreciation of the Asset) is to be made, then great care must be taken to ensure that the Asset is not overvalued.

b) Current Assets
As we have already pointed out, Current Assets are normally held for a relatively short period, i.e. until they can be realized. For this reason, Current Assets are not valued on the same basis as Non Current Assets. Current Assets should generally be valued at cost or market price, whichever is the lower. 

Tangible and Intangible Assets
Assets which can be possessed in a physical sense, e.g. Plant, Machinery, Land and Buildings, etc, are Tangible Assets. On the other hand, Assets which can not be possessed in a physical sense are Intangible. Examples include; Goodwill, Patent Rights, Leases, Copy Rights, Trade Marks.

Order of Assets in the Balance Sheet

The Assets in the Balance Sheet must be arranged in a clear and logical order. The order usually adopted is;

        Shs

Non current Assets                                                   xxx                                                              

Current Assets                                                          xxx            

Total Assets                                                              xxx                                                                       

In each “group” Assets are arranged in an order “from most Non Current (Fixed) to most fluid” as the illustration below;

	Non Current Assets
	Current Assets.

	Freehold Land and Buildings

Leasehold Land and Buildings

Plant and Machinery 

Motor Vehicles

Furniture and Fittings 

Other Investments
	Stock in trade/Inventory 

Work in Progress

Sundry Debtors

Other Receivables 

Prepayments 

Bank /Cash in hand.




7.4
Liabilities 
Liabilities can be categorized into parts;

a)  Long-term or Current Liabilities

· Long-term Liabilities are those which would not normally be repaid within 12 months. 

· Current Liabilities (Short-term liabilities)

Current Liabilities consist of current trading debts due for payment in the near future. It is essential that long-term and current liabilities should be stated separately in the Balance Sheet, so that it is possible for shareholders and third parties to judge whether the Current Assets are sufficient to meet the Current Liabilities and also provide sufficient working capital. Current liabilities also include accrued expenses/payable.

b)  Secured and Unsecured Liabilities
· Secured Liabilities 

Liabilities for which a charge has been given over certain or all of the assets of the firm are said to be secured. In such cases, the creditor, in default of payment, can exercise rights against the assets charged, to obtain a remedy (an Asset is charged when the creditor gives a loan on condition that he or she acquires the ownership of the Asset if the loan is not repaid by the agreed date. The asset is security for the loan). This is similar to a mortgage on a private house. The charge may be either fixed or floating. A fixed charge is one which relates only to one particular asset, such as building. On the other hand, a floating charge can be exercised over the whole of the assets of the company which issued the debentures.

The floating charge does not crystallize until the charge is enforced, i.e. the creditor goes to court to obtain payment of his debt. When this occurs, the firm which granted the charge may not deal in any way with any of the assets included in the charge.

A floating charge is convenient to both borrower and lender. The borrower is allowed to deal as he/she chooses, in the ordinary course of the business, with the assets covered by the charge, without having to obtain the permission of the lender. Also the lender is satisfied because he knows that his loan is well secured. With a fixed charge, however, the borrower can not sell the asset charged without the permission of the lender.

· Unsecured Liabilities
Such liabilities are not secured in anyway by a charge over any of the assets of a firm. In the event of a company winding-up, the secured creditors are satisfied out of the proceeds of the asset(s) over which they have a charge. Any surplus, together with the proceeds of uncharged assets, is reserved to satisfy, first the preferential liabilities and then the unsecured liabilities. 

c) Preferential Liabilities
On the bankruptcy of a sole trader or partnership, or on the winding-up of a company, certain liabilities enjoy preference over other liabilities.

d) Contingent Liabilities
Liabilities which might arise in the future, but which are not represented in the books of the firm concerned, at the date of drawing up the Balance Sheet are said to be contingent. Such liability can not be shown in the Balance Sheet properly as it is not represented by a credit balance in the Ledger of the firm. It is necessary to disclose contingent liabilities of the firm, and a note should be put henceforth to the Balance Sheet, giving particulars of these transactions. An example of a contingent liability is where the firm concerned is involved in a law action at the date of the Balance Sheet. If there is a possibility that damages and/or costs will be awarded against the firm, a note to this effect should be added to the Balance Sheet.   

7.5
Distinction between Capital and Revenue Expenditures.
One of the fundamental principles of correct accounting is the proper distinction between capital and revenue, both for expenditure and income. The importance lies in the fact that revenue expenditure constitutes a charge against profits and must be debited to Profit and Loss Account; whereas capital expenditure comprises all expenditure incurred in the purchase of Non Current Assets for the purpose of earning income and is shown in the Balance Sheet. Failure to observe the distinction inevitably falsifies the results of final accounts. For example, if a Motor Vehicle is purchased and the cost is charged to Profit and Loss Account as Motor Vehicle expenses, or if a building is sold and the proceeds credited to Profit and Loss Account as again, then both the Profit and Loss Account and the Balance Sheet would be incorrect.

Capital Expenditure
These are expenditures incurred in the acquisition of Assets which will be used in the business for more than one accounting period, which is, normally one year. In other words, capital expenditure are expenses incurred in acquiring, or increasing the value of, a permanent asset (Non Current Asset) which in the process of generating revenue would definitely benefit the enterprise more than one accounting period. Examples of capital expenditure include legal expenses in acquiring or selling Land and Buildings, survey expenses in connection with the acquisition of Land, the initial costs/outlay and the costs of developing property to an income-earning stage.

Revenue Expenditure
This represents all other expenditure incurred in running a business, including the expenditure necessary for the maintenance of the earning capacity of the business and for the up keep of Non Current Assets in a fully efficient state. Revenue expenditure is normally written-off to Profit and Loss Account in the period in which it is incurred. The measurement of business income is restricted to a period of one year. All expenses incurred during that year are matched with the revenues earned during the same period (matching Concept).

However, there are some types of expenditure which, although incurred during one accounting period, will nevertheless enable the enterprise to reap benefits in future years. Such expenditure is known deferred revenue expenditure, and can be treated quite legitimately as an asset until it is completely written off. It should be equitably spread over the useful life of the asset. An example of a deferred expenditure would be an enterprise which spends a large sum of money advertising a new brand of product. After the brand has become popularized, the advertising can be reduced considerably, but the sales will go on. It is not strictly correct to write off the whole of this initial advertising expenditure in the year in which it is incurred, as the benefit from the advertising is not confined to the first year only, but is felt for several years afterwards. This expenditure is therefore written off over a number of years, and the balance remaining at the end of each year is included in the Balance Sheet as a Current Asset.

Note, deferred revenue expenditure should not be confused with payments in advance (prepayments). Prepayments are carried forward to the following period, and must, therefore, be included in the Balance Sheet as a current Asset.

7.6
Preparation of a Balance Sheet
In the previous chapters, we studied the theory and practice of double-entry system, including all records up to the extraction of a Trial Balance. At the same time, we looked at the preparation of a Trading, Profit and Loss Account.

At this time, we now focus on how Final Accounts are prepared from a given Trial Balance, taking into consideration accruals, prepayments, etc, and the International Accounting Standards (IASs). In this chapter and throughout the text, all Final Accounts will be presented as per the. International Accounting Standards; specifically IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements. 

7.7
IAS 1: presentation of financial statements.

In September 1997, the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) issued a revised standard on the presentation of financial Statements (IAS 1) which was effective from July 1998. The standard contains a number of such accounting principles and conventions that there is a necessity to follow in the preparation of financial statements. These include;

· Fair presentation

· Going concern

· Accrual basis

· Consistency

It is clear that for financial statements to be fairly presented, compliance with the IASs would ensure that the reporting entity would achieve the underlying objective of this concept.

· The going concern concept has been defined as follows; “the enterprise will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This implies in particular that the Income Statement and Balance Sheet assume no intention or necessity to liquidate or curtail significantly the scale of the operation. 

· The accrual concept has been defined as follows; “revenue and costs are accrued (that is, recognized as they are earned or incurred, not as money is received or paid); matched with one another, so far as their relationship can be established or justifiably assumed and dealt with in the Profit and Loss Accounts for the period to which they relate; the accrual concept implies revenue and profits dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account will be matched with related costs and expenses where these are material and identifiable. 

· The consistency concept has been defined as “there is consistency of accounting treatment of like items within each accounting period and from one period to the next”.

Balance Sheet Format
In addition to the accounting concepts and policies outlined above IAS 1 focuses on the structure and content of the Balance Sheet and Income Statement. It recommends formats for these Final Accounts and requires that a statement of changes in Equity and a CashFlow Statement (IAS 7) should also accompany the Balance Sheet and Income Statement.

Suggested format;
ABC Co Ltd

Balance Sheet

As at ………………………..








Cost

Acc Dep

NBV








Shs

Shs


Shs



Non Current Assets




xxx

xxx


xxx 


+

Current Assets




xxx

xxx 


xxx

=

Total Assets




xxx

xxx


xxx
Financed by:

Equity and Liabilities;

Capital and Reserves








xxx


+

Non Current Liabilities





xxx 


+

Current Liabilities






xxx 


xxx 


=

Total Equity and Liabilities







xxx
NB: Total Assets = Total Equity and Liabilities.
Notes to the Accounts

Explanatory notes to the policies, and methods adopted are essential most especially on the valuation of stock, computation of depreciation, revaluation of Assets, etc. 

Depreciation and Final Accounts

Deprecation is fundamental in the preparation of Final Accounts. As we discussed earlier, Non Current Assets depreciate over a period of time, hence the need to allocate a cost annually (in form of depreciation expenses) to the Profit and Loss Account. 

Refer to Chapter 10 on the methods of computing depreciation and the corresponding entries before preparing the Final Accounts. 

Depreciation is taken as an expense which is debited to the Profit and Loss Account while at the same time; the Provision for Depreciation (Accumulated Depreciation) is credited and posted to the Balance Sheet.  

A comprehensive Example (next page) on how the Income Statement and Balance Sheet is prepared from a given Trial Balance with additional information.

	Below is the Trial Balance extracted from the books of Prime Impex (U) Ltd, a  

	 trading Company dealing in Hardware as at 31st December, 2002. 

	
	 DR (Shs) 
	
	 CR (Shs) 

	 Cash/Bank 
	       1,265,000 
	
	

	 Accounts Receivable 
	         550,000 
	
	

	 Provision for Bad Debts 
	
	
	         100,000 

	 12% Treasury Bills 
	       1,090,000 
	
	

	 Inventory 1. 1. 2002 
	         640,000 
	
	

	 Prepaid Insurance 
	         300,000 
	
	

	 Office Supplies 
	         350,000 
	
	

	 Equipment at Cost 
	       2,500,000 
	
	

	 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 
	
	
	        500,000 

	 Motor Vehicles 
	       1,200,000 
	
	

	 Accumulated Depreciation - Motor Vehicles 
	
	
	        700,000 

	 Accounts Payable 
	
	
	        400,000 

	 Capital 
	
	
	     4,800,000 

	 Dividends Paid 
	          910,000 
	
	

	 Retained Earnings 
	
	
	        975,000 

	 Sales 
	
	
	      3,810,000 

	 Sales Discounts 
	          150,000 
	
	

	 Purchases 
	       2,000,000 
	
	

	 Sales Returns and Allowances 
	         200,000 
	
	

	 Purchase Discounts 
	
	
	          90,000 

	 Purchase Returns and Allowances 
	
	
	        650,000 

	 Transportation - in 
	         450,000 
	
	

	 Miscellaneous Revenue 
	
	
	         815,000 

	 Rent Expense 
	         205,000 
	
	

	 Salaries Expense 
	         265,000 
	
	

	 Bad Debts Expense 
	          105,000 
	
	

	 Delivery Expenses 
	         405,000 
	
	

	 Interest Expense 
	           25,000 
	
	

	 Utilities Expense 
	         230,000 
	
	

	
	  12,840,000 
	
	 12,840,000 


Additional Information:
a) Inventory on Hand at 31st December, 2002 was valued at Shs 425,000.

b) Of the Insurance Prepaid Shs 150,000 has expired during the year.

c) Of the rent expense, Shs 55,000 relates to 2003.

d) It was decided to increase the provision for bad debts to Shs 350,000.

e) Shs 265,000 of Office Supplies remained on hand at 31st December, 2002.

f) Miscellaneous income earned but not received, neither the clients billed amounts to Shs 155,000.

g) Interest on Treasury Bills has accrued for one year, but not yet received.

h) Of the Utilities, Shs 95,000 is outstanding on account of electricity and Shs 37,000 has accrued on account of telephone expenses.

i) The annual depreciation is computed as 10% and 15% on Equipment and Motor Vehicles respectively on the declining/reducing balance method.

j) The company paid an Interim Dividend on 30th June, 2002. A final Dividend of Shs 300,000 was proposed to be paid to the Shareholders in January, 2003.

Required;
a) Give Journal Entries for all the adjustments with narrations.

b) Prepare an Income Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2002 and a Balance Sheet as at that date.

Solution:
Prime Impex (U) Ltd

Journal

As at 31st December, 2002

	
	
	
	
	Page 1

	Date
	Particulars
	Folio
	DR
	CR

	
	
	
	Shs
	Shs

	31-Dec-02
	Inventory Account
	
	425,000
	

	
	       Trading Account
	
	
	425,000

	
	To record the closing stock
	
	
	

	
	Insurance Expense Account
	
	150,000
	

	
	        Prepaid Insurance
	
	
	150,000

	
	To record the expired insurance
	
	
	

	
	Prepaid Rent Account
	
	55,000
	

	
	        Rent Expense Account
	
	
	55,000

	
	To record the prepaid rent
	
	
	

	
	Bad Debts Account
	
	250,000
	

	
	        Provision for Bad Debts Account
	
	
	250,000

	
	To record an increase in the provision for bad debts
	
	
	

	
	Office Supplies Expense Account
	
	85,000
	

	
	        Office Supplies Account
	
	
	85,000

	
	To record the Office Supplies used up
	
	
	

	
	Miscellaneous Revenue Receivable Account
	
	155,000
	

	
	        Miscellaneous Revenue Account
	
	
	155,000

	
	To record the revenue earned but not yet received
	
	
	

	
	Interest Receivable Account
	
	130,800
	

	
	        Interest Income Account
	
	
	130,800

	
	To record the Interest earned but not yet received
	
	
	

	
	Utilities Expense Account
	
	132,000
	

	
	        Utilities Payable Account
	
	
	132,000

	
	To record Utilities accrued
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation Expense Account - Equipment
	
	200,000
	

	
	        Accumulated Depreciation Account
	
	
	200,000

	
	To record the depreciation expenses for the period on Equipment
	
	
	

	
	Depreciation Expense Account - M/Vehicle
	
	75,000
	

	
	        Accumulated Depreciation Account
	
	
	75,000

	
	To record the depreciation expenses for the period on Motor Vehicles
	
	
	

	
	Dividends Account
	
	300,000
	

	
	        Dividends Payable Account
	
	
	300,000

	
	To record dividends payable
	
	
	


NB: It is important to work out the Ledgers concurrently as you post the journals, in order to save time in examinations.
Workings and the Ledgers

	Insurance Expense Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Prepaid Insurance A/c
	150,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	150,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid Insurance Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	300,000
	
	Insurance Expense A/c
	150,000

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	150,000

	
	
	300,000
	
	
	300,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rent Expense Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Bank/Cash
	205,000
	
	Prepaid Rent A/c
	55,000

	
	
	
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	150,000

	
	
	205,000
	
	
	205,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Prepaid Rent Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Prepaid Insurance A/c
	150,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	150,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Debtors
	105,000
	
	
	

	
	Provision for Bad Debts
	250,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	355,000

	
	
	355,000
	
	
	355,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provision for Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	100,000

	
	Balance C/d
	350,000
	
	Bad Debts
	250,000

	
	
	350,000
	
	
	350,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Office Supplies Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	350,000
	
	Office SS Expense A/c
	85,000

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	265,000

	
	
	350,000
	
	
	350,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Office Supplies Expense Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Office Supplies A/c
	85,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	85,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Miscellaneous Revenue  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	815,000

	
	Trading Account
	970,000
	
	Misc. Revenue Receivable A/c
	155,000

	
	
	970,000
	
	
	970,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Miscellaneous Revenue Receivable  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Misc. Revenue A/c
	155,000
	
	Balance C/d
	155,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest Receivable  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Interest Income A/c
	130,800
	
	Balance C/d
	130,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	NB: 12% Treasury Bills; Shs 1,090,000. It implies interest will be Shs 1,090,000 x 12%    = Shs 130,800.

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest Income  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Trading Account
	130,800
	
	Interest Receivable A/c
	130,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Utilities Expense Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Bank/Cash
	230,000
	
	
	

	
	Utilities Payable A/c
	132,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	362,000

	
	
	362,000
	
	
	362,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Utilities Payable Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance C/d
	132,000
	
	Utilities Expense A/c
	132,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation Expense Account - Equipment

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Accumulated Depreciation A/c
	200,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	200,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated Depreciation Account - Equipment

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	500,000

	
	Balance C/d
	700,000
	
	Depreciation Exp A/c
	200,000

	
	
	700,000
	
	
	700,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Depreciation Expense Account - Motor Vehicles

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Accumulated Depreciation A/c
	75,000
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	75,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated Depreciation Account - Motor Vehicles

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	700,000

	
	Balance C/d
	775,000
	
	Depreciation Exp A/c
	75,000

	
	
	775,000
	
	
	775,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Dividends Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Bank/Cash
	910,000
	
	
	

	
	Dividends Payable A/c
	300,000
	
	Appropriation A/c
	1,210,000

	
	
	1,210,000
	
	
	1,210,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Dividends Payable Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance C/d
	300,000
	
	Dividends Expense A/c
	300,000

	
	
	
	
	
	


	Prime Impex (U) Ltd 

	 Income Statement 

	 for the year ended 31st December, 2002 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Shs
	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Sales
	
	
	
	
	3,810,000

	Less: Sales Returns and Allowances
	
	
	(200,000)
	
	

	         Sales Discounts
	
	
	(150,000)
	
	(350,000)

	Net Sales
	
	
	
	
	3,460,000

	Less: Cost of Goods Sold
	
	
	
	
	

	         Inventory
	
	
	640,000
	
	

	         Purchases
	2,000,000
	
	
	
	

	Less: Purchases Returns and Allowances
	(650,000)
	
	
	
	

	         Purchase Discounts
	(90,000)
	
	
	
	

	
	1,260,000
	
	
	
	

	Add: Transportation - in
	450,000
	
	1,710,000
	
	

	
	
	
	2,350,000
	
	

	Closing Inventory
	
	
	425,000
	
	

	Cost of Sales
	
	
	
	
	1,925,000

	Gross Profit
	
	
	
	
	1,535,000

	Add: Miscellaneous Revenue
	
	
	970,000
	
	

	        Interest Income
	
	
	130,800
	
	1,100,800

	Gross Revenue
	
	
	
	
	2,635,800

	Less: Operating Expenses
	
	
	
	
	

	         Insurance
	
	
	150,000
	
	

	         Office Supplies Expense
	
	
	85,000
	
	

	         Rent Expense
	
	
	150,000
	
	

	         Salaries
	
	
	265,000
	
	

	         Bad Debts
	
	
	355,000
	
	

	         Delivery Expenses
	
	
	405,000
	
	

	         Interest Expense
	
	
	25,000
	
	

	         Utilities Expense
	
	
	362,000
	
	

	         Depreciation - Equipment
	
	
	200,000
	
	

	         Depreciation - Motor Vehicles
	
	
	75,000
	
	2,072,000

	Net Profit
	
	
	
	
	563,800


	Prime Impex (U) Ltd 

	 Appropriation Account/Statement 

	 for the year ended 31st December, 2002 

	
	Shs
	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Net Profit for the year
	
	
	
	
	563,800

	Add: Retained Earnings B/d
	
	
	
	
	975,000

	
	
	
	
	
	1,538,800

	Less: Dividends
	
	
	
	
	1,210,000

	Retained Earnings C/d
	
	
	
	
	328,800


NB: Always start the Final Accounts on new pages i.e. the Income Statement, Appropriation Account, Balance Sheets should be separate.

	Prime Impex (U) Ltd 

	 Balance Sheet 

	 as at 31st December, 2002 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cost
	
	Acc Dep
	
	NBV

	Non Current Assets:
	Shs
	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Equipment
	2,500,000
	
	700,000
	
	1,800,000

	Motor Vehicles
	1,200,000
	
	775,000
	
	425,000

	
	3,700,000
	
	1,475,000
	
	2,225,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	12% Treasury Bills
	
	
	
	
	1,090,000

	
	
	
	
	
	3,315,000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	
	
	

	Inventory
	
	
	425,000
	
	

	Accounts Receivable
	550,000
	
	
	
	

	Provision for Bad Debts
	(350,000)
	
	200,000
	
	

	Interest Receivable
	
	
	130,800
	
	

	Miscellaneous Revenue Receivable
	
	
	155,000
	
	

	Prepaid Insurance
	
	
	150,000
	
	

	Prepaid Rent
	
	
	55,000
	
	

	Office Supplies
	
	
	265,000
	
	

	Cash/Bank
	
	
	1,265,000
	
	2,645,800

	Total Assets
	
	
	
	
	5,960,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	
	
	

	Shareholder's Funds:
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital
	
	
	
	
	4,800,000

	Retained Earnings
	
	
	
	
	328,800

	
	
	
	
	
	5,128,800

	Current Liabilities:
	
	
	
	
	

	Accounts Payable
	
	
	400,000
	
	

	Utilities Payable
	
	
	132,000
	
	

	Dividends Payable
	
	
	300,000
	
	832,000

	Total Equity and Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	5,960,800


 Review Questions
Question. 1  

Below is the Balance Sheet of JIM LTD as at 31st December, 2001.

	 
	DR.
	CR.

	 
	 Shs 
	 Shs 

	 Cash 
	336,000
	 

	 Trade Debtors 
	320,000
	 

	 Inventory ( 1st January, 2001 ) 
	400,000
	 

	 Office Supplies 
	32,000
	 

	 Office Equipment 
	144,000
	 

	 Acc. Depreciation - Office Equipment 
	 
	48,000

	 Motor Vehicles 
	1,600,000
	 

	 Acc. Depreciation - Motor Vehicles 
	 
	160,000

	 Land 
	720,000
	 

	 Trade Creditors 
	 
	240,000

	 Corporation Tax Payable 
	 
	80,000

	 Notes Payable 
	 
	480,000

	 Capital 
	 
	1,120,000

	 Sales 
	 
	4,592,000

	 Sales Returns & Allowances 
	160,000
	 

	 Sales Discounts 
	80,000
	 

	 Rent Income 
	 
	336,000

	 Purchases 
	2,400,000
	 

	 Carriage Inward 
	48,000
	 

	 Purchase Returns 
	 
	128,000

	 Purchase Discounts 
	 
	32,000

	 Salaries & Wages 
	320,000
	 

	 Insurance Expenses 
	48,000
	 

	 Advertising Expenses 
	192,000
	 

	 Delivery Expenses 
	368,000
	 

	 Supplies used. 
	48,000
	 

	 TOTALS 
	7,216,000
	7,216,000


Further information is availed as follows:

a)
Inventory at 31st December, 2001 was valued at Shs. 280,000.

b)
Three quarters of the Insurance expenses expired during the year.

c)
Interest of Shs. 91,000 accrued on Notes payable at the year end.

d)
Half percent of Net Sales is expected to become bad.

e)
Depreciation is 20% Straight line on Office Equipment, and 30% on the 
Reducing Balance on Motor Vehicles.

Required;

i)
Give Journal Entries for all the adjustments 



(5 marks)
ii)
Prepare an Income Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2001 and a Balance Sheet as at that date.

(10 marks,)
Unit 8

Manufacturing Accounts

8.1
Introduction

In the pervious, chapters we considered accounting principles and procedures applicable in trading businesses; Enterprises engaged in buying and selling merchandise, or services. Equally important in a business is a manufacturing concern. All of the accounting principles and procedures discussed earlier apply in a manufacturing selling. However, manufacturing firms face some special accounting problems and require additional accounting procedures to measure, control, and report factory production costs. 

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Distinguish between the costs involved in a manufacturing firm.

· Prepare the statement of cost of goods manufactured.

· Define manufacturing costs

· Prepare factory profits and provision for unrealized profits.

Manufacturing firms are those firms which convert raw materials into finished goods before selling them to obtain revenue. These firms add value to the inputs. Accounts for manufacturing firms are therefore different from those for retailing firms. Manufacturing firms must maintain cost accounts which are not maintained by retailing firms. 

8.2
Manufacturing Costs 

Manufacturing costs are broadly divided into two;

· Direct Costs 

These include direct raw materials, direct wages (labour costs), and direct expenses.

· Indirect Costs

These include indirect raw materials, indirect labour costs and indirect expenses (overheads).

 
Direct Costs 

A cost is said to be direct if it can be traced to, or identified with, a particular cost centre or cost unit. Examples are direct material or raw material costs. 

Direct material or raw material is that material that can be traced to a particular cost centre or cost unit and becomes part of the finished product, e.g. timber/wood for furniture Industries, water for soft drinks Industries. In many manufacturing firms raw material or direct material costs account for more than 50% of total business costs.

Another example is the direct labour cost at times called the direct wages. This is that kind of labour traceable to a particular cost centre or cost unit. Direct wages are the wages paid to direct workers who are directly involved in the manufacturing process. Direct wages are paid to workers who physically run production machines. In Industries they are known as the blue-collar jobs/workers.

The other examples are the direct expenses which can be traced to a particular cost centre.

The total of direct costs is called prime cost.

Indirect Costs (Overhead Costs)

Overhead Costs or Indirect Costs are those costs that cannot easily be traced, or identified with, a particular cost centre or cost unit. They are shared or joint costs. Examples include indirect material costs that cannot be traced to cost centres or cost units, e.g. in timber manufacturing firm, indirect material may include vanish, glue, nails, sand paper etc.

Another example is indirect labour cost which is a cost for that type of labour which is not unique to a particular cost centre or cost unit. These are mostly salaries paid to supervisors and administration personnel, e.g. watchman’s wages, accountants.

Also indirect expenses are an example and they are expenses that are not traceable to particular centres or cost units. These include rent, electricity, depreciation, etc. There are also known as period expenses which are written-off in the Profit and Loss Account. 

In many manufacturing firms overheads are petty when compared with elements of prime cost. Since overhead costs are shared or joint costs, they must be apportioned to various production cost centres, and between production and other functions such as office and administration, selling and distribution etc. 

For manufacturing firms, cost of sales is composed of manufacturing or production costs which include direct material cost, direct labour costs, direct expenses and production or manufacturing overheads. 

Manufacturing Costs format:









Shs

Shs

Raw Materials Inventory:

Opening Inventory





xxx

Add Purchases (Net)




xxx
Raw Materials Available




xxx

Less: Closing Raw Material Inventory


xxx 

Cost of Raw Materials Inventory





xxx

Direct Labour








xxx

Factory Overheads:

Indirect Labour





xxx

Indirect Materials





xxx

Factory Rent






xxx

Factory Power





xxx

Plant and Equipment Depreciation


xxx

Plant Insurance





xxx

Plant Repair and Maintenance



xxx

xxx
Total Manufacturing Costs for the period



xxx
· Cost of goods manufactured = Opening work-in-progress add Manufacturing Costs for the period less Ending work-in-progress.

· Cost of goods sold = Opening finished goods Inventoryadd cost of manufactured goods less closing finished goods Inventory.

Simple Income Statement Format for a Manufacturing Firm









Shs

Shs

Sales 









xxx

Less: Cost of Sales 


Direct (Raw Material) Costs


xxx


Direct labour Costs (Wages)


xxx 


Direct Expenses




xxx 


Production or Manufacturing Overheads

xxx 
Cost of Goods Sold







xxx 

Gross profit 








xxx

Less: Office and Administration Costs 


xxx

         Selling and Distribution Costs 


xxx

xxx
Net Profit








xxx
Besides Manufacturing or Production Costs, manufacturing companies also incur Office and Administration Costs, and Selling and Distribution Costs, which are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

Manufacturing Account or Statement 

This is a statement which shows total Manufacturing or Production Costs during a specified period.

The Format or Structure of Manufacturing Statement:










Shs

Shs

Direct or Raw Material Costs: 

Opening Stock of Raw Materials 




xxx                                                                    

Add: Purchases of Raw Material




xxx                            

Total of Raw Material Available




xxx                                                         

Less: Closing Stock 






xxx                                                                                       
Cost of Raw Materials consumed 






xxx                                                                         

Add: Direct Labour Costs (Wages)





xxx           

        Direct Expenses 







xxx                                                                                          

Prime Costs 









xxx                                                                                                       

Add: Manufacturing or Production Overheads

          Electricity     Only manufactured and 


xxx 
 


Rent
            benefited Factory


xxx

xxx











xxx

Add: Opening Work-in-Progress                                                             xxx
                                                                                                          xxx
                                                                                   

Less: Closing Work-in-Progress                                                              xxx                      

Cost of goods completed or manufactured                                             xxx
                                                          

The Format or Structure of a Manufacturing Trading, Profit and Loss A/C 










Shs

Shs

Sales 










xxx                                                                                                                      

Less: Discount Allowed 





xxx

xxx











xxx

Less: Cost of Goods Sold

Opening Stock (Finished Goods)




xxx                               

Add: Cost of Goods Manufactured Completed



        (See Manufacturing Statement)  



xxx             

Cost of Goods Available





xxx                                         

Less: Finished Goods Closing Stock  



xxx                        

Cost of Goods Sold                                                                                xxx  

Gross Profit                                                                                           xxx                                                                                                          

Less: Office and Administration Costs                                  xxx                                                         

         Selling and Distribution Costs





xxx 

         Financial Charges      





xxx                           

         Bank Charges, Bad Debts 





xxx                   

         Interest on Loan Account 



xxx 

xxx                     Net Profit





xxx
                                           

NB: Some costs incurred by a manufacturer may need to be apportioned between the factory costs and operating expenses. Examples of these include, factory rent, factory electricity, etc

Example 1

ABC Ltd is in the business of manufacturing and retailing plastic products. The following balances were extracted from the business Ledger Accounts as at 31st December, 1996.

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Sales (Turnover)
	400,000
	
	

	Purchases of Raw Materials
	100,000
	
	

	Factory Wages
	50,000
	
	

	Manufacturing Expenses
	20,000
	
	

	Depreciation of Factory Premises
	1,000
	
	

	Repairs of Plant
	2,000
	
	

	Factory Insurance
	3,000
	
	

	Advertising
	500
	
	

	Salesmen Commission
	4,000
	
	

	Head Office Salaries
	10,000
	
	

	Carriage Outwards
	1,500
	
	

	Electricity - Factory
	4,500
	
	

	Electricity - Office
	500
	
	

	Ground Rent for Factory Space
	2,500
	
	

	Head Office Insurance
	5,000
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Stocks at Cost
	1st Jan 1996
	
	31st Dec 1996

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Raw Materials
	6,000
	
	5,000

	Finished Goods
	10,000
	
	15,000

	Work-in Progress
	3,000
	
	4,000


Required;

Prepare the companies Manufacturing, Trading, Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st December, 1996. 

Solution:

	ABC Ltd 

	 Manufacturing, Trading, Profit and Loss Account 

	 for the year ended 31st December, 1996 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	 Shs '000' 
	
	 Shs '000' 
	
	 Shs '000' 

	Direct Costs:
	
	
	
	
	

	Raw Materials Opening Stock
	
	
	6,000
	
	

	Add: Purchases of Raw Materials
	
	
	100,000
	
	

	Cost of Raw Materials available
	
	
	106,000
	
	

	Less: Raw Materials Closing Stock
	
	
	5,000
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	101,000

	Add: Factory Wages
	
	
	
	
	50,000

	Prime Costs
	
	
	
	
	151,000

	Add: Factory /Production/Manufacturing Overheads:
	
	
	
	
	

	Manufacturing Expenses
	
	
	20,000
	
	

	Repairs of Plant
	
	
	2,000
	
	

	Factory Insurance
	
	
	3,000
	
	

	Electricity
	
	
	4,500
	
	

	Ground Rent
	
	
	2,500
	
	

	Depreciation
	
	
	1,000
	
	33,000

	
	
	
	
	
	184,000

	Add: Opening Work-in-Progress
	
	
	
	
	3,000

	
	
	
	
	
	187,000

	Less: Closing Work-in-Progress
	
	
	
	
	4,000

	Cost of Goods Manufactured/Completed C/d
	
	
	
	
	183,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sales
	
	
	
	
	400,000

	Less: Cost of Goods
	
	
	
	
	

	         Finished Goods Opening Stock
	
	
	10,000
	
	

	Add: Cost of Goods Manufactured B/d
	
	
	183,000
	
	

	Cost of Goods available for sale
	
	
	193,000
	
	

	Less : Finished Goods Closing Stock
	
	
	15,000
	
	

	Cost of Goods Sold
	
	
	
	
	178,000

	Gross Profit
	
	
	
	
	222,000

	Less: Office and Administration Costs:
	
	
	
	
	

	        Head Office Salaries
	10,000
	
	
	
	

	        Electricity
	500
	
	
	
	

	        Insurance
	5,000
	
	15,500
	
	

	Selling and Distribution Costs:
	
	
	
	
	

	       Advertising
	500
	
	
	
	

	       Salesmen's Commission
	4,000
	
	
	
	

	       Carriage outwards
	1,500
	
	6,000
	
	

	Total Expenses
	
	
	
	
	21,500

	Net Profit
	
	
	
	
	200,500


Example 2 
ATA Manufacturing Company Limited’s extracted Ledger balances for the period ending 31st December, 2004
	
	Shs

	Inventories (at the beginning of the period):
	

	Raw Materials
	250,000

	Work-in-Progress
	125,000

	Finished Goods
	370,000

	Inventories (at the end of the period):
	

	Raw Materials
	400,000

	Work-in-Progress
	265,000

	Finished Goods
	415,000

	Raw Material Purchases (Net)
	500,000

	Direct Labour
	680,000

	Indirect Labour
	120,000

	Indirect Raw Materials
	50,000

	Factory Maintenance
	70,000

	Factory Rent
	80,000

	Factory Insurance
	100,000

	Factory Depreciation
	20,000

	Sales
	2,400,000

	Administration Expenses
	132,000

	Selling Expenses
	211,000

	Sundry Expenses
	176,000


Required;

a) Prepare a schedule showing the cost of goods manufactured for the period.

b) Prepare an Income Statement for the year ended 31st December, 2004.

Solution:

	ATA Company Limited 

	 Statement of Cost of Goods Manufactured 

	 for the year ended 31st December, 2004 

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	 Shs  
	
	 Shs  
	
	Shs

	Opening Raw Materials: Work-in-Progress
	
	
	
	
	125,000

	Raw Materials Used;
	
	
	
	
	

	Opening Inventory - Raw Materials
	250,000
	
	
	
	

	Add: Purchases
	500,000
	
	
	
	

	Raw Materials Available
	750,000
	
	
	
	

	Less: Closing Inventory - Raw Materials
	400,000
	
	350,000
	
	

	Direct Labour
	
	
	680,000
	
	

	Factory Overheads:
	
	
	
	
	

	Indirect Labour
	120,000
	
	
	
	

	Indirect Raw Materials
	50,000
	
	
	
	

	Factory Maintenance
	70,000
	
	
	
	

	Factory Rent
	80,000
	
	
	
	

	Factory Insurance
	100,000
	
	
	
	

	Factory Depreciation
	20,000
	
	440,000
	
	

	Total Manufacturing Costs
	
	
	
	
	1,470,000

	Total Work-in-Progress
	
	
	
	
	1,595,000

	Less: Closing Work-in-Progress
	
	
	
	
	265,000

	Cost of Goods Manufactured
	
	
	
	
	1,330,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	ATA Company Limited

	Income Statement

	for the year ended 31st December, 2004

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Shs
	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Sales
	
	
	
	
	2,400,000

	Less: Cost of Goods
	
	
	
	
	

	Opening Inventory Finished Goods
	
	
	370,000
	
	

	Add: Cost of Goods Manufactured B/d
	
	
	1,330,000
	
	

	Cost of Goods available for sale
	
	
	1,700,000
	
	

	Less : Closing Inventory Finished Goods
	
	
	415,000
	
	

	Cost of Goods Sold
	
	
	
	
	1,285,000

	Gross Profit
	
	
	
	
	1,115,000

	Less: Operating Expenses:
	
	
	
	
	

	        Administration Expenses
	
	
	132,000
	
	

	        Selling Expenses
	
	
	211,000
	
	

	        Sundry Expenses
	
	
	176,000
	
	519,000

	Net Profit
	
	
	
	
	596,000


Question for Practice:

The following information was taken from the books of ACE Manufacturers, at the close of the financial year which ended 31st December, 1994.

	
	1st Jan 1994
	
	31st Dec 1994

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Inventories:
	
	
	

	Raw Materials
	305,000
	
	424,000

	Work-in-Progress
	192,000
	
	140,000

	Finished Goods
	665,000
	
	690,000

	Others:
	
	
	

	Gross Sales
	
	
	5,170,000

	Direct Labour
	
	
	1,120,000

	Indirect Labour
	
	
	412,000

	Office Expenses
	
	
	80,000

	Sales Returns
	
	
	37,000

	Depreciation : Factory
	
	
	73,000

	Telephone Expenses
	
	
	34,000

	Depreciation : Delivery Equipment
	
	
	42,000

	Sales Commissions
	
	
	396,000

	Advertising
	
	
	184,000

	Discounts on Raw Materials
	
	
	23,000

	Utilities
	
	
	240,000

	Delivery Expenses
	
	
	173,000

	Factory Supplies Used
	
	
	161,000

	Administrative Salaries
	
	
	120,000

	Office Salaries
	
	
	181,000

	Insurance Expenses
	
	
	68,000

	Raw Materials Purchased
	
	
	1,092,000

	Depreciation: Office Equipment
	
	
	90,000

	Rental Expenses
	
	
	160,000

	Factory Repairs
	
	
	16,000

	Office Equipment Repairs
	
	
	4,000


Additional Information:

1) The Utilities are allocated as follows; 80% Factory, 10% Selling, 10% Administrative

2) Insurance is to be allocated as follows; 75% Factory, 20% Selling, 5% Administrative.

3) Rental Expenses are to be allocated as follows; 60% Factory, 15% Selling, 25% Administrative.

Required;
a) Prepare a schedule showing the cost of goods manufactured.

b) Prepare an Income Statement for the year ended 31st December, 1994.

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 9
Partnership Accounts

9.1
Introduction

This chapter introduces the partnership form of business organization and outlines the challenges it provides the Accountant. It contrasts the Partnership Act of 1890 and a range of key considerations which may form part of the Partnership Agreement. Further, the chapter uses worked examples to illustrate the way in which profit is appropriated in the Partnership’s Profit and Loss Account; and shows how the investment made by each partner is represented in the Balance Sheet. 

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Define what a Partnership is. 

· Distinguish between a Sole Trader, Partnership and Limited Company.

· Distinguish between Partnership Capital and Current Accounts.

· Know how to compute and apportion the profits of partners.

· Prepare partners Final Accounts.

· Revalue and dissolve Partnerships. 

9.2
Nature of Partnership - the basics.

According to the Partnership Act of 1890, a partnership is the relationship which exists between persons carrying on business in common with a view of profit. The Act specifies a minimum of two partners and a maximum of twenty, though professional firms, the Companies Act 1967 as amended thereafter, relaxed such upper limits. Essentially, partners work together to achieve a common objective and undertake to share the risks and rewards of a joint operation. 

Types of Partnerships

We can distinguish differences in both; kinds of Partnership and kinds of Partners. 

· Kinds of Partnership
There are two kinds of Partnership: 


a) Ordinary or General Partnership 

There are a number of ordinary partners each of whom contribute an agreed amount of capital; is entitled to take part in the business (but is not entitled to a salary for doing so, unless specifically agreed) and to receive a specified share of the profits ad losses. Each partner is jointly liable for all the debts of the Partnership. 


b) Limited Partnerships 

Limited partnerships were introduced by the Limited Partnership Act 1907. These must consist of at least one general partner to take part in the business and to be fully liable for all debts as though it were an ordinary partnership. The remaining partners are limited partners who may take no part in the business and who are liable for the debts of the partnership only to the extent of the capital they have agreed to put in. The limited liability partnership seeks to amalgamate the advantages of the company’s corporate form with the flexibility of the partnership form. These partnerships are not very common in the business environment. 

· Accounts for Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs)



The same provisions that apply to limited companies with regard to 
auditing, equally apply to limited liability partnerships. Therefore limited liability partnerships will be required to submit properly audited accounts which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the limited liability partnership.

· Kinds of Partners

There are basically four kinds of partner 

a) Active Partner 

One who takes an active part in the business. 

b) Dormant or Sleeping Partner 

One who retires from active participation in the business but who leaves capital in the business and receives a reduced share of the profits. 

c) Quasi Partner

One who retires and leaves capital in the business as a loan. Interest, based on proportion of the profits, is credited to the retired partner’s account each        

year and debited as an expense is Profit and Loss Account. 

d) Limited Partner

One who is excluded from active participation and who is liable only up to the amount he has contributed as capital.

9.3
Partnership Vs Sole Trader Vs Limited Company

It is important to consider the merits of a partnership form of business organization relative to that of the sole trader and limited company. 

The overriding reasons for bringing fresh talent into the ownership of the entity would be to overcome the main drawbacks of the sole tradership, namely its implicit lack of resources. For the business to grow, additional finance may be required. While banks may provide some capital, it would be unwise for a sole trader, given their unlimited liability, to be entirely dependent upon such borrowing. There may also be a need for additional expertise. Although the sole trader may be proficient in one particular field, expansion may require an entirely different mix of skills, such as marketing the product, managing people, or more complex financial decision-making. Moreover, additional managerial resources may be required as expansion places too large a burden on just one person to plan, make decisions and control the operations of a growing organization. The desire to spread risk and provide access to new partners’ network of contacts may be further motives leading to the formation of a partnership. 

The major disadvantages of the partnership form of organization compared to that of the sole trader revolve around personnel issues. Whilst new partners serve to spread risk, the sole trader admitting partners must not only share profits, but also dilute control of the business. This loss of freedom may create disputes between the partners. 

Partnerships seek to incorporate and form limited liability companies because of the risk which lies in the forms of organization (earlier discussed) to their owners. If a sole trader or partnership run into financial difficulties, the owners are personally liable for an unlimited amount of debt that the business may accumulate. Thus, if the business is unable to pay its debts, it falls upon the proprietors to discharge the debts, which may necessitate them having to sell their private possessions and lead them to financial destruction.

In contrast, the liability of shareholders in a limited company is restricted to the uncalled amount of share capital (if for example, a company collapsed after its shareholders had subscribed Shs 750 for each Shs 1,000 Ordinary Share, the shareholders’ liability would be limited to the uncalled amount of Shs 250 per share). Given that the majority of shares are fully paid up, it is very rare for shareholders to be called upon to meet the debts of a limited company. 

Further, the increased ability to raise finance and the fact that the death or retirement of an owner doesn’t necessity dissolution and reformation of the organization, as is the case with the partnership. Arguments against incorporation are essentially administrative. In return for being granted limited liability, companies must have high levels of accountability. They must comply with the Companies Acts, having to prepare annual accounts, which must be audited; they must file annual returns and keep statutory books. They must comply with an ever-expanding series of accounting standards. 

The Partnership Agreement

Usually, though not always, a partnership will be established formally through a Partnership Agreement, or Deed of Partnership. However, providing that individuals act as though they are engaged in a partnership, even where there is no written agreement, it will be presumed in law that a partnership does exist and that its terms of agreement will be those laid down in the partnership Act, 1890.

The Partnership Agreement is designed to protect the interests of partners by setting out the terms of the partnership, principally of a financial nature.

· Capital 

Each partner is a co – or joint – owner of the entity, contributing to the business capital. A typical Partnership Deed may provide for a minimum amount of capital to be provided and/or a minimum amount that each partner should retain in the business.

· Profit Sharing 

Logic may suggest that profits should be shared equally between partners. However, where partners input different levels of workload, expertise, ability, capital, etc, different levels of reward (output) would be warranted. One way of rewarding those who put most into the partnership is to give them a greater share of profits. The disadvantage with this policy is that, in bad years those who contributed most to the partnership would suffer in terms of bearing the larger share of losses. To get around this, before sharing profits (appropriation of the net profits), many Partnership Deeds specify salaries and interest to be paid on capital.

· Salaries 

Part of the appropriation of profit, not a profit and loss expense like wages and salaries in a limited company, salaries should represent the utility of each partner to the entity, by way of skill, expertise, contacts and work undertaken. Essentially they represent an opportunity cost - the salary that each partner could command outside the partnership. 

· Interest on capital 

Partners may reward themselves for the provision of capital into the business. If so, the Partnership Deed will sate the applicable rate of interest. Like the salary mechanism, this serves as a means of redistributing profits away from low-contributors (in terms of labour and capital) to high-contributors. The terms of the Deed may also strive to penalize those who draw heavily on the partnership’s funds.

· Drawings 

While partners may draw their share of profits out of the business, by charging partners’ interest on all drawings made during the year, the Deed of Partnership may seek both; to minimize and deter such withdrawals. Again, the Deed will specify precise terms with respect to dates, amounts (e.g. a maximum level of drawings) and prevailing interest rates. 

In the absence of any formal agreement between partners, the terms of the     Partnership Act 1890 are presumed to apply.

This states that;

· Residual profits will be shared equally between partners. 

· Salaries will not be awarded to partners. 

· Interest on capital will not be paid to partners

· 5% per annum interest will be paid to partners on any loans advanced to the business, in excess of their agreed capital. 

NB: 
In examination, you should be aware of the requirements of the Partnership Act 
in appropriating profit in case no specific provisions are made. 

9.4
Preparing Partnership Accounts 

The accounts of a partnership are very similar to those of a sole trader. The major differences reflect the different contributions made by partners to the entity. In the Balance Sheet, therefore, the funds provided by each partner must be shown separately. Similarly, in the Profit and Loss Account, the appropriation of profit between partners, in accordance with the Partnership Agreement must also be shown.
Capital Accounts

Capital Accounts are used in Partnership Accounts to record the permanent injections of capital made by each partner into the business. Given that each partner is entitled to repayment of capital at some stage in the future, it is necessary to record how much the partnership owes each individual partner. Given that these amounts are liabilities of the partnership, the balance brought forward on the Partners’ Capital Accounts will always be a credit entry. 

Where the Deed of Partnership provides for interest on capital, it refers to the balance on each Partner’s Capital Account. The cash and assets contributed by each partner constitute his/ her capital. 

When capital is introduced the double entry is;








        Shs              Shs

Dr      Cash/Bank                                         
        xxx

Cr       Partners’ Capital Accounts                                  

xxx

To record the capital introduced. 

If the Partnership Agreement provides that capitals are to remain fixed (i.e. unaltered), a separate Current Account must be opened for each partner to record share of profits, salary, interest on capital and loans, drawings (transferred from drawings account) and interest on drawings. 

Current Accounts
Current Accounts indicate the amount of profit that each partner has retained in the business. They increase in value when the partnership makes profits and fall when partners make drawings and losses are incurred. Separate Drawings Accounts may be maintained for each partner, with the total on these accounts for the period being debited to the Current Accounts. Whereas the Capital Account remains more or less static over time (varying only when permanent injections of capital are made), the Current Account fluctuates up and down according to the success of the business and the personal needs of the partners with respect to their drawings. 

Loans by Partners 

If an existing or previous partner makes a loan to the partnership, she or he becomes a creditor of the entity. The amount of the loan is shown in the liabilities section of the balance, not in the partners’ funds section. For administrative convenience, interest on loans made by partners is credited to the Partners’ Current Account, even though the interest is not an appropriation of profit, being shown in the Profit and Loss Account as an expense. 

9.5
Profit and Loss Appropriation Account 

The sharing out of partnership profit is shown in the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, in accordance with the terms laid down in the Partnership Agreement. The Appropriation Account follows on from the Profit and Loss Account itself. 

The steps required in appropriating profit are;

1) Establish the net profit for the period (after interest paid to partners on loans).

2) If interest is charged on drawings, debit the Partners’ Current Accounts and credit the Appropriation Account, serving to increase the amount to be shared between partners. 

3) Appropriate interest on capital and salaries.

4) Share out residual profits (Residual Profit = Net Profit after Loan Interest + Interest on Drawings – Interest on Capital – Salaries) in the agreed profit- sharing ratio. 

5) Credit each Partner’s Current Account with his or her share of profits. 

6) Debit each Partner’s Current Account with the balance on his or her Drawings Account for the period. 

Example 1
Rogers, Smith and Mathew have just completed a successful year in partnership, which yielded a net profit of Shs 193,000,000. Their Deed of Partnership provides the partners to;

· Receive 15% Interest on their Capital at the beginning of each year. 

· Pay 10% Interest on their Drawings during the year.

· Receive Salaries of Shs 15,000,000 (Roger), Shs 20,000,000 (Smith), and Shs 30,000,000 (Mathew) p.a.

· Share profits in the ratio 2:1:2

Details of each Partner’s Capital and Drawings are as follows;

	Partner
	Capital
	
	Drawings

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Roger
	200,000
	
	10,000

	Smith
	400,000
	
	30,000

	Mathew
	200,000
	
	30,000

	Total
	800,000
	
	70,000


Required;
Prepare the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account for the past year and show the Partners’ Capital and Current Accounts. Show how the appropriation of profits would differ, if no Partnership Agreement existed.

Solution:
Compute the interest components on capital and drawings.



Interest on Drawings


Interest on Capital
Roger

10% x 10,000,000 = 1,000,000
15% x 200,000,000 = 30,000,000

Smith

10% x 30,000,000 = 3,000,000
15% x 400,000,000 = 60,000,000

Mathew
10% x 30,000,000 = 3,000,000
15% x 200,000,000 = 30,000,000
Totals


    Shs 7,000,000

   
     Shs 120,000,000

	Roger, Smith and Mathew 

	 Profit and Loss Appropriation Account 

	
	
	
	

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Net Profit for the year
	
	
	193,000

	Add: Interest on Drawings
	
	
	7,000

	
	
	
	200,000

	Less: Salaries;
	
	
	

	      Rogers
	15,000
	
	

	      Smith
	20,000
	
	

	      Mathew
	30,000
	
	65,000

	
	
	
	135,000

	Less: Interest on Capital
	
	
	

	      Rogers
	30,000
	
	

	      Smith
	60,000
	
	

	      Mathew
	30,000
	
	120,000

	
	
	
	15,000

	Residual Profits:
	
	
	

	      Rogers (2/5 x Shs 15,000)
	6,000
	
	

	      Smith (1/5 x Shs 15,000)
	3,000
	
	

	      Mathew (2/5 x Shs 15,000)
	6,000
	
	15,000

	
	
	
	15,000


Partners’ Current Accounts
	
	Rogers
	Smith
	Mathew
	
	Rogers
	Smith
	Mathew

	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'

	Interest on Drawings
	1,000
	3,000
	3,000
	Salary
	15,000
	20,000
	30,000

	Drawings
	10,000
	30,000
	30,000
	Interest on Capital
	30,000
	60,000
	30,000

	Balance C/d
	40,000
	50,000
	33,000
	Residual Profits
	6,000
	3,000
	6,000

	
	51,000
	83,000
	66,000
	
	51,000
	83,000
	66,000

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	40,000
	50,000
	33,000


Partners’ Capital Accounts
	
	Rogers
	Smith
	Mathew
	
	Rogers
	Smith
	 Mathew 

	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	 Shs '000' 

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	200,000
	400,000
	     200,000 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 


The Capital Section of the Balance Sheet would be as follows:

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Capital Accounts:
	
	
	

	Rogers
	200,000
	
	

	Smith
	400,000
	
	

	Mathew
	200,000
	
	800,000

	
	
	
	

	Current Accounts:
	
	
	

	Rogers
	40,000
	
	

	Smith
	50,000
	
	

	Mathew
	33,000
	
	123,000

	
	
	
	923,000


Example 2
Ronald and Brandt have been in partnership for several years, compiling their financial statements for the year ended 31st March, and sharing profits in the ratio 60:40 after allowing for interest on Capital Account balances at 5% per year.  Extracts from their Trial Balance at 31st March, 2003 are as follows; 

	
	Notes
	
	Shs '000'

	Capital Accounts:
	
	
	

	Ronald
	
	
	50,000

	Brandt
	
	
	50,000

	Current Accounts:
	
	
	

	Ronald
	
	
	3,800

	Brandt
	
	
	(2,600)

	Drawings:
	
	
	

	Ronald
	
	
	48,400

	Brandt
	
	
	36,900

	Office Equipment: Cost
	(1)
	
	48,300

	Acc Depreciation 1st April 2002 - Office Equipment
	
	12,800

	Stock 1st April 2002
	(2)
	
	15,600

	Trade Debtors
	(3)
	
	68,400

	Provision for doubtful debts 1st April 2002
	(3)
	
	3,800

	Sales Revenue
	
	
	448,700

	Purchases
	
	
	184,600

	Rent Paid
	(4)
	
	30,000

	Salaries
	
	
	88,000

	Insurance
	(5)
	
	4,000

	Sundry Expenses
	
	
	39,400


Notes:
(1) Office Equipment should be depreciated at 20% per year on the reducing balance basis.

(2) Closing Stock amounted to Shs 21,400,000.

(3) Debts of Shs 2,400,000 are to be written off, and the provision for doubtful debts is to be adjusted to 5% of Trade Debtors.

(4) Rent paid of Shs 30,000,000 is the amount for nine months to 31st December, 2002. From that date rent was increased by 10%.

(5) Insurance paid in advance amounted to Shs 1,500,000.

Required;
a) Prepare the Partnership’s Trading, Profit and Loss Account and Appropriation Account for the year ended 31st March, 2003.

b) Write up the Partners’ Current Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2003.

Solution:
Care is needed on several points;

1) The drawings figures are given. They go into the Current Accounts and do not appear in the Profit and Loss Account or Appropriation Account.

2) Adjust the Provisions for Bad debts, Bad Debts and Trade Debtors.

	Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Debtors
	2,400
	
	Provision for Bad Debts
	500

	
	
	
	
	Profit and Loss A/c
	1,900

	
	
	2,400
	
	
	2,400

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Provision for Bad  Debts  Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Bad Debts
	500
	
	Balance B/d
	3,800

	
	Balance C/d
	3,300
	
	
	

	
	
	3,800
	
	
	3,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	NB: New provision will be 5% x (Shs 68,400,000 - 2,400,000)            = Shs 3,300,000
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Trade Debtors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Balance B/d
	68,400
	
	Bad Debts
	2,400

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	66,000

	
	
	68,400
	
	
	68,400

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	NB: Charge 5% for the new provision on the balance carried down. i.e.  Shs 66,000,000
	


3) Note 4, explains the rent; Shs 30,000,000 is the cost for nine months. That means Shs 10,000,000 per quarter. The fourth quarter must therefore be (Shs 10,000,000 + Shs 10,000,000 x 10%) = Shs 11,000,000. Therefore total rent up to 31st March, 2003 will be Shs 30,000,000 + Shs 11,000,000 = Shs 41,000,000.

	Ronald and Brandt

	Trading Profit and Loss Account

	for the year ended 31st March, 2003

	
	
	
	

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Sales Revenue
	
	
	448,700

	Less: Cost of Sales
	
	
	

	Opening Stock
	15,600
	
	

	Purchase
	184,600
	
	

	
	200,200
	
	

	Less: Closing Stock
	21,400
	
	

	
	
	
	(178,800)

	Gross Profit
	
	
	269,900

	Less: Operating Expenses
	
	
	

	Salaries
	88,000
	
	

	Rent (Shs 30,000 +11,000)
	41,000
	
	

	Insurance (Shs 4,000 - 1,500)
	2,500
	
	

	Sundry Expenses
	39,400
	
	

	Bad Debts
	1,900
	
	

	Depreciation (Shs 35,000 x 20%)
	7,100
	
	179,900

	Net Profit
	
	
	90,000


	Ronald and Brandt

	Appropriation Account

	for the year ended 31st March, 2003

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Ronald
	
	Brandt
	
	Total

	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'

	Net Profit
	
	
	
	
	90,000

	Interest on Capital
	2,500
	
	2,500
	
	(5,000)

	
	
	
	
	
	85,000

	Balance of Profit to be shared (60:40)
	51,000
	
	34,000
	
	(85,000)

	
	53,500
	
	36,500
	
	-


b) Partners’ Current Accounts
	
	Ronald
	Brandt
	
	Ronald
	Brandt

	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'
	
	Shs '000'
	Shs '000'

	Balance B/d
	-
	2,600
	Balance B/d
	3,800
	-

	Drawings
	48,400
	36,900
	Share of profits
	53,500
	36,500

	Balance C/d
	8,900
	-
	Balance C/d
	-
	3,000

	
	57,300
	39,500
	
	57,300
	39,500

	
	
	
	
	
	


Goodwill

In broad terms, goodwill is defined as good reputation, quality of goods, quality of services, etc. To an Accountant, goodwill relates to the difference between the value of a business as a whole and the aggregate of fair values of the separate net assets. For examples, if the business can be sold as a going concern for Shs 200,000 while the net assets sold would only realize Shs 175,000, then the goodwill would amount to Shs 25,000. 

It may be worth paying more for an existing business than it would cost to buy the equivalent amount of net assets individually, for reasons such as the following;

· The acquisition of an existing reputation with customers, which may be preserved, thus avoiding the need to build up such a reputation from nothing. 

· The acquisition of an existing clientele, thus saving time. 

· Location

· The taking over of an existing skilled labour force. 

· Easier access to materials/labour/markets. 

Note that it is the potential of the business in terms of likely future profitability which is important in assessing the value of goodwill. It’s important to recognize that the value of goodwill may change fairly dramatically overtime. This is one of the reasons way goodwill is not typically included in accounts unless it is purchased. Even then purchased goodwill is typically written off quite quickly, and sometimes immediately.

In practice, a number of methods for valuing goodwill are found, the most common being;

1) The Average Profit Method, in which goodwill is valued at a certain number of years of average profits for the last few years (specified). 

2) The Average Revenue Method, in which goodwill is valued by multiplying average revenue over a specified number of years by some kind of factor e.g. twice the average revenue for the last three years. 

3) The Super-Profits Method, in which goodwill is calculated on the basis of past profits above agreed figure. 

Example 3
A company has the following figures relating to its last three years of trading. 


Year

Revenue

Profits



  
Shs


    Shs


19x1
500,000

100,000


19x2
600,000

120,000


19x3
700,000

140,000

Required;
Compute, goodwill using the following methods:

i. Assuming goodwill is based upon 2 years purchase of average profits for the last 3 years. 

ii. Assuming goodwill is based upon 50% of average revenues over the last 3 years. 

iii. Assuming the super-profits method is to be used, based upon 3 years purchase of average super-profits for the last 2 years. A salary allowance of Shs 30,000; Interest on Capital of 10%. Capital in 19xI, 19x2 and 19x3 amounted to Shs 300,000 Shs 350,000 and Shs 400,000 respectively.

Solution
i. Average Profit Method. 

Shs 120,000 (i.e. Total Profits for 3 yrs; Shs 360,000/3). Two years purchase means that the Shs 120,000 needs to be multiplied by 2, giving Shs 240,000. 

ii. Average Revenue Method

Shs 600,000 (i.e. Total Revenue for 3 yrs; Shs 1,800,000/3). Goodwill will be, Shs 600,000 x 50% = Shs 300,000.

iii. Super-Profits Method





  19x2


  19x3






    Shs


   Shs

Profits



120,000

140,000

Less: Salary


(30,000)

(30,000)

Interest



(35,000)

(40,000)

Super Profits


55,000

70,000
Average profits {(Shs 55,000 + 70,000)/2} = Shs 62,500

3 yrs purchase gives a goodwill figure of 3 x Shs 62,500 = Shs 187,500.

9.6
Revaluation Method
Some kind of adjustment process is necessary when a partnership changes, in order to reflect changes in the value of Assets and the incorporation of a figure for goodwill. This method effectively changes Balance Sheet items to reflect Assets and claims as at the time of a partnership change.

The problem with revaluation method is that figures do not have the same level of objectivity as historic cost. They do, however, reflect figures agreed by the old and new partners.

The essence of this method is that, increases in Assets, are debited to the appropriate Asset Account, with corresponding credits being made to the existing Partners’ Capital Accounts in the existing profit sharing ratio.

For decreases in Assets debit Partners’ Capital Accounts in the existing profit sharing ratio and credit the appropriate Asset Account.

Increases in Liabilities will result credits to the appropriate Liability Account and debits to the existing Partners’ Capital Accounts. For decreases, the Liability Account will be debited and Capital Accounts credited.
In practice (and in examinations), where several Assets or Liabilities are to be revalued, a Revaluation Account is used and the following procedures are adopted.

1) Debit any increase in Assets to the appropriate Asset Account and credit a Revaluation Account.

2) Credit any decreases in Assets to the appropriate Asset Account and debit the Revaluation Account.

3) Credit any increases in Liabilities to the appropriate Liability Account, and debit the Revaluation Account.

4) Debit any decreases in Liabilities to the appropriate Liability Account, and credit the Revaluation Account.

At this stage, all the Asset Accounts (including Goodwill, if applicable) and Liability Accounts will have revised balances on them, reflecting the desired position, while the Revaluation Account, when balanced off, will have a balance which represents the total effect on the claims of the owners. This amount needs to be transferred to the existing Partners’ Capital Accounts in their profit sharing ratio. The net effect is to close off the Revaluation Account and update the existing Capital Accounts. At this stage a new partner can be brought in without disadvantaging the position of any of the existing partners.

Example 4
The Balance Sheet of Jim and Hanifa as at 31st December, 19x2 was as follows:

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Non Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Land and Buildings
	
	
	50,000

	Plant and Machinery
	
	
	20,000

	
	
	
	70,000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Inventory
	10,000
	
	

	Debtors
	10,000
	
	

	Cash
	5,000
	
	25,000

	Total Assets
	
	
	95,000

	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	

	Capital - Jim
	40,000
	
	

	Capital - Hanifa
	47,000
	
	87,000

	
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	

	Creditors
	
	
	8,000

	Total Equity and Liabilities
	
	
	95,000


On this date, Jim and Hanifa agreed to admit Charles, provided that he brings in Shs 25,000 cash, and that property is revalued to Shs 100,000, Plant and Machinery to Shs 25,000, Debtors to Shs 8,000 and that goodwill amounting to Shs 200,000 is incorporated into the accounts. Jim and Hanifa share profits and losses equally.

Required;
The Ledger Accounts to reflect the necessary changes and the Balance Sheet thereafter.

Solution:
	Land and Buildings Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	50,000
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation Account
	50,000
	
	Balance C/d
	100,000

	
	
	100,000
	
	
	100,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Plant and Machinery Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	20,000
	
	
	

	
	Revaluation Account
	5,000
	
	Balance C/d
	25,000

	
	
	25,000
	
	
	25,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Debtors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	10,000
	
	Revaluation Account
	2,000

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	8,000

	
	
	10,000
	
	
	10,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	5,000
	
	
	

	
	Capital - Charles
	25,000
	
	Balance C/d
	30,000

	
	
	30,000
	
	
	30,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Revaluation Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Debtors
	2,000
	
	Land and Buildings
	50,000

	
	
	
	
	Plant and Machinery
	5,000

	
	Balance C/d **
	73,000
	
	Goodwill
	20,000

	
	
	75,000
	
	
	75,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Capital - Jim
	36,500
	
	Balance B/d
	73,000

	
	Capital - Hanifa
	36,500
	
	
	

	
	
	73,000
	
	
	73,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	** NB: This balance has to be shared as per the partners' sharing ratios.
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account - Jim

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	40,000

	
	Balance C/d
	76,500
	
	Revaluation Account
	36,500

	
	
	76,500
	
	
	76,500

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account - Hanifa

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	
	
	
	Balance B/d
	47,000

	
	Balance C/d
	83,500
	
	Revaluation Account
	36,500

	
	
	83,500
	
	
	83,500

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account - Charles

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance C/d
	25,000
	
	Cash
	25,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Jim, Hanifa and Charles

	Balance Sheet

	as at 31st December 19x2

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Non Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Land and Buildings
	
	
	100,000

	Plant and Machinery
	
	
	25,000

	
	
	
	125,000

	Goodwill
	
	
	20,000

	
	
	
	

	Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Inventory
	10,000
	
	

	Debtors
	8,000
	
	

	Cash
	30,000
	
	48,000

	Total Assets
	
	
	193,000

	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	

	Capital - Jim
	76,500
	
	

	Capital - Hanifa
	83,500
	
	

	Capital - Charles
	25,000
	
	185,000

	
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	

	Creditors
	
	
	8,000

	Total Equity and Liabilities
	
	
	193,000


Dissolution of a Partnership
Subject to any agreement between the partners, a Partnership can be dissolved either with or without any court order – it all depends on the circumstances.

Accounting Entries for a Partnership Dissolution
Upon dissolution of a Partnership, all the Assets are disposed of, and cash is retained in their place. This cash is then used to pay off the obligations of the firm. Whatever agreement is made by the partners, the debts due to persons who are not partners must always be paid first. Thereafter the partners may make any agreement they wish as regards sharing out the remaining cash.

Subject to any different agreement being made, the procedure on dissolution of a Partnership is as follows:

1) Dispose off Assets, other than cash, any profit or loss being transferred to the Partners’ Capital Accounts, in the profit sharing ratio.

2) Pay off the Creditors

3) Pay off any Partner’s Loans.

4) Pay off the Partners’ Capital balances.

In details the accounting treatment will be as follows;

1) a) 
Open up a Realisation Account in the Partnership books to which all the Assets 
excluding Bank and Cash are closed.

     
  DR
Realisation Account

  xxx

   with the book value of 


   
  CR
Asset Account (Individually) xxx

    the Asset.

       b)   The provisional Accounts are similarly closed down and transferred to the 


Realisation Account i.e. Provision for Bad Debts, Provision for Depreciation, etc.


    DR
   Provision Account

  xxx

   


   
    CR
  Realisation Account
  

xxx

2) When the Assets are sold by cash


    DR
Cash/Bank Account

      xxx
 with the proceeds from the

   
    CR
 Realisation Account
     


xxx
sales.

3) In case of Partnership Assets taken over by Partners themselves


DR
Partners’ Capital Account
    xxx

   with the agreed take-over

   
CR   Realisation Account
    
      xxx 
  value. In case of incurring 

       costs on dissolution i.e. dissolution costs or expenses 


DR
Realisation Account
    xxx

           

   
CR   Cash/Bank Account
    
      xxx 
    

4) Settle external Liabilities


DR
Liabilities Account
    xxx

          with actual amount paid to the 

   
CR   Cash/Bank Account
    xxx

creditors.

5) In case Liabilities are taken over by Partners


DR
Liability Account
                  xxx

   with actual value to be        

   
CR   Partners’ Capital Account
          xxx
   taken-over.

6) In case of allowances on creditors


DR
Liability Account
    xxx

                       with the discount/

   
CR   Realisation Account
    
xxx 
    
   allowance extended.

7) Detemine the profit and loss on closure. The balance on Realisation Account representing either surplus (CR) side or deficit (DR) side is transferred to the Profit and Loss Account in the profit and loss sharing ratio.

      a) 
In case of a profit,

     
  DR
Realisation Account
  xxx

              with the profit on 


   
  CR
Partners’ Capital Account
  xxx

    realization.

       b)   In case of a loss,


    DR
   Partners’ Capital Account
  xxx

   
  with the loss on

   
    CR
  Realisation Account
  
  xxx              realisation

8) Transfer Current Accounts to the Capital Accounts then the Capital Accounts are balanced such that partners with debit balances will have to pay into the Partnership Bank Account a sufficient amount to cover for their debit balances.


DR
Cash/Bank Account
                         xxx

           

   
CR      Partners’ Capital Account
    
      xxx

In case of credit balances on the Partners’ Capital Accounts,


DR
Partners’ Capital Account                    xxx

           

   
CR      Cash/Bank Account
    
           xxx    

9) In case the partner(s) fails to pay the debit balances, there is a rule in the case of Garner Vs Murray which applies.

Example 5
Tim and Lyn who have been in Partnership for sometime, sharing profits and losses in the ratio 3:4, decided to dissolve their Partnership. At the date of dissolution their balance Sheet is as follows:

	Tim and Lyn

	Balance Sheet

	as at 31st Decemeber 19x4

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Non Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Property - Lease
	
	
	30,000

	Equipment
	
	
	5,000

	
	
	
	35,000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Inventory
	10,000
	
	

	Debtors
	5,000
	
	

	Cash
	10,000
	
	25,000

	Total Assets
	
	
	60,000

	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	

	Capital Accounts:
	
	
	

	Tim
	20,000
	
	

	Lyn
	30,000
	
	50,000

	Current Accounts:
	
	
	

	Tim
	5,000
	
	

	Lyn
	(10,000)
	
	(5,000)

	Loan - Tim
	
	
	10,000

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	

	Creditors
	
	
	5,000

	Total Equity and Liabilities
	
	
	60,000


The Lease is sold for Shs 40,000 and the stock for Shs 9,000. Tim takes over the equipment for Shs 4,000. The Debtors realize Shs 4,500. The Creditors are settled for Shs 4,500 and Realisation Expenses of Shs 1,000 are paid.

Required;
The Ledger Accounts to record these transactions.

Solution:

	Realisation Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Property - Lease
	30,000
	
	Cash - Lease
	40,000

	
	Equipment
	5,000
	
	Cash - Inventory
	9,000

	
	Inventory
	10,000
	
	Cash - Debtors
	4,500

	
	Debtors
	5,000
	
	Equipment -Tim
	4,000

	
	Cash - Realisation Exps
	1,000
	
	Creditors - Gain
	500

	
	Capital - Tim (Profit)
	3,000
	
	
	

	
	Capital - Lyn (Profit)
	4,000
	
	
	

	
	
	58,000
	
	
	58,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	10,000
	
	Creditors
	4,500

	
	Realisation - Lease
	40,000
	
	Realisation - Expenses
	1,000

	
	Realisation - Inventory
	9,000
	
	
	

	
	Realisation - Debtors
	4,500
	
	Balance C/d
	58,000

	
	
	63,500
	
	
	63,500

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account - Tim

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Realisation - Equipment
	4,000
	
	Balance B/d
	20,000

	
	
	
	
	Current Account
	5,000

	
	Balance C/d
	24,000
	
	Realisation - Profit
	3,000

	
	
	28,000
	
	
	28,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Capital Account - Lyn

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Current Account
	10,000
	
	Balance B/d
	30,000

	
	Balance C/d
	24,000
	
	Realisation - Profit
	4,000

	
	
	34,000
	
	
	34,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Loan Account - Tim

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Cash
	10,000
	
	Balance B/d
	10,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Cash
	4,500
	
	Balance B/d
	5,000

	
	Realisation - Gain
	500
	
	
	

	
	
	5,000
	
	
	5,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	58,000
	
	Loan - Tim
	10,000

	
	
	
	
	Capital - Tim
	24,000

	
	
	
	
	Capital - Lyn
	24,000

	
	
	58,000
	
	
	58,000


9.7
Procedure where a Partner is insolvent – The Rule in Garner Vs 
Murray

If any partner is insolvent, and thus unable to bring in sufficient cash to clear a debit balance on his account, then the other partners must make up this deficit (share of the deficiency). If all partners are insolvent the creditors would be paid a proportion of their debts, subject to preferred or secured creditors being paid first, in full.

If there is more than one partner to share in the deficit of any other partner, the problem arises as to how the deficit should be shared. The partners may make any agreement they wish in order to cover this point. Where no such agreement exists the case of Garner Vs Murray (1904) applies.

In this case, the Court ruled that, subject to any agreement to the contrary, such a deficiency was to be shared out by the solvent partners, not in their profit sharing ratio (as you might have expected), but in proportion to their last agreed capitals. The reasoning behind this case appears to be that a loss due to the insolvency of one partner is not a normal trading loss, and should not therefore be borne in the normal profit sharing ratio. It should be borne in accordance with each partners’ risk (i.e. his or her capital in the firm).

There is considerable doubt in the accountancy profession as to the wisdom of this decision. Indeed, it is possible that if this case was brought before a Court today, the decision would be different. While this may be true, the precedent has been set by Garner Vs Murray. In fact most Partnership Agreements are drawn up to cover this point, thus avoiding the problem. In the absence of any clear agreement on this point being specified in the examination question, the rule of Garner Vs Murray should thus be applied always.

Example 6
Sharon, Lillian, and Allan are in Partnership, sharing profits and loss in the ratio 3:2:1 respectively. They decided to dissolve the Partnership, when the Partnership Balance Sheet as at 31st March 19x5 was as follows; 

	Sharon, Lillian and Allan

	Balance Sheet

	as at 31st March 19x5

	
	
	
	

	
	Shs
	
	Shs

	Non Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Property
	
	
	40,000

	Equipment
	
	
	10,000

	
	
	
	50,000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Inventory
	20,000
	
	

	Debtors
	20,000
	
	

	Cash
	5,000
	
	45,000

	Total Assets
	
	
	95,000

	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	

	Capital Accounts:
	
	
	

	Sharon
	30,000
	
	

	Lillian
	30,000
	
	

	Allan
	10,000
	
	70,000

	Current Accounts:
	
	
	

	Sharon
	8,000
	
	

	Lillian
	5,000
	
	

	Allan
	(8,000)
	
	5,000

	
	
	
	

	Current Liabilities
	
	
	

	Creditors
	
	
	20,000

	Total Equity and Liabilities
	
	
	95,000


Additional Information:
1) The Assets other than cash, are sold for Shs 60,000.

2) Realisation expenses amount to Shs 2,000.

3) The creditors are settled for Shs 18,000.

4) Allan is insolvent.

Required;
The Ledger Accounts necessary to record all the transactions.

Solution:
The accounts are initially prepared on exactly the same lines as before, the loss on realization being transferred to the Capital Accounts in the profit sharing ratio. The Garner Vs Murray rule only applies to debit balances on Capital Accounts, not losses on realisation. This means that even the insolvent partner is debited with his share of any loss on realisation.

	Realisation Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Property
	40,000
	
	Cash
	60,000

	
	Equipment
	10,000
	
	Creditors - Gain
	2,000

	
	Inventory
	20,000
	
	Capital - Sharon (Loss)
	15,000

	
	Debtors
	20,000
	
	Capital - Lillian (Loss)
	10,000

	
	Cash - Realisation Exps
	2,000
	
	Capital - Allan (Loss)
	5,000

	
	
	92,000
	
	
	92,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Cash
	18,000
	
	Balance B/d
	20,000

	
	Realisation - Gain
	2,000
	
	
	

	
	
	20,000
	
	
	20,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Balance B/d
	5,000
	
	Realisation Exps
	2,000

	
	Realisation Account
	60,000
	
	Creditors
	18,000

	
	
	
	
	Capital - Sharon **
	21,500

	
	
	
	
	Capital - Lillian **
	23,500

	
	
	65,000
	
	
	65,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	** NB: The Balance C/d on the Cash Account; Shs 45,000 is shared out between Sharon and Lillian


Partners’ Capital Accounts
	
	Sharon
	Lillian
	Allan
	
	Sharon
	Lillian
	Allan

	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs
	
	Shs
	Shs
	Shs

	Current Accounts B/d
	-
	-
	8,000
	Balance B/d
	30,000
	30,000
	10,000

	Realisation Loss
	15,000
	10,000
	5,000
	Current A/c B/d
	8,000
	5,000
	-

	Balance C/d
	23,000
	25,000
	
	Balance C/d
	-
	-
	3,000

	
	38,000
	35,000
	13,000
	
	38,000
	35,000
	13,000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Balance B/d
	-
	-
	3,000
	Balance B/d
	23,000
	25,000
	-

	Share of the Deficiency
	1,500
	1,500
	-
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	21,500
	23,500
	
	
	
	
	

	
	23,000
	25,000
	3,000
	
	23,000
	25,000
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	NB: Share of the deficiency will be done in their last agreed fixed capital i.e. the Balance Sheet figures; 30,000:30,000. Therefore 30,000/60,000 x 3,000                = Shs 1,500 each.


The total capital balances must equal the total cash in hand always, i.e. Shs 45,000. If Allan was solvent, he would have brought in Shs 3,000 to clear his debit balance, which would enable Sharon and Lillian to be paid their full entitlement.

If Allan is unable to bring in the Shs 3,000 needed to clear his debit balance the other two partners must bear the deficit. The Shs 3,000 is therefore transferred to their accounts, not in the profit sharing ratio of 3:2, but in the ratio of their last agreed capitals i.e. Shs 30,000: Shs 30,000 (see the figures from the Balance Sheet). Both Sharon and Lillian will therefore have a debit of Shs 1,500 transferred from Allan’s Account, which can then be closed. Hence Sharon’s new Capital balance will be Shs 21,500 while that of Lillian will be Shs 23,500.

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 10
Depreciation and Disposal of Non Current Assets

10.1
Introduction

Depreciation, Disposals and the effect of changing the estimated useful life of an Asset and revaluations are dealt with in this chapter. Generally, it is best to keep three accounts to record Non Currents (Fixed Assets) – for Cost, Accumulated Depreciation and Disposals.

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Compute depreciation expenses using any method

· Dispose off Non Current Assets.

· Know the accounting treatment to recognize the proceeds from disposal.

All Non Current Assets except Land have a limited useful life which can be predicted (estimated). Therefore, their cost must be allocated as an expense through the years in which these Assets are used.

Depreciation is the way in which we spread the cost of a Non Current Asset over the accounting periods which benefit from its use. The cost to be allocated must be net of salvage value. Salvage value or residual value refers to the expected proceeds from the sale of a Non Current Asset after its useful life.



Depreciation Cost = Cost – Salvage Value.

There are several ways in which we can depreciate Non Current Assets. We shall consider two methods (Straight Line, and Reducing Balance/Double Declining) which are commonly used in practice.

10.2
Methods of Computing for Depreciation

1) Straight Line Method
This method allocates costs in a number of years equally. Each year takes equal amounts of costs. Depreciation Expense for each year is computed as follows;

Depreciation Expense   =   Cost – Salvage Value
                                                    Useful Life

Example 1

If an Asset is bought for Shs 1,500,000  and is to last for 4 years after which it will be sold for Shs 300,000.

Depreciation per year will be;   Shs 1,500,000 – Shs 300,000  =  Shs 300,000

                                                                    4 years

The journal entry to pass will be;


       Shs
    
Shs

Dr  Depreciation Expense Account – Machine 
300,000

Cr   Accumulated Depreciation Account – Machine

300,000


To record the deprecation expense on Machines for the year.


2) Reducing Balance/Double Declining Method

This method charges a higher depreciation in the earlier years of the Asset use which goes on reducing as the Asset becomes older. There are two reasons for such an allocation i.e. of higher costs at the beginning and a lower later.

· The method assumes that when the Asset is still new, its productive capacity and therefore income generation potential is high, which goes on reducing as the Asset becomes older. A high charge (cost) is therefore made when the Asset is new and a lower cost in the declining periods.

· The repair and maintenance cost of a new Asset are low but increase as the Asset becomes older. Therefore it is imperative to allocate a higher charge when the repair and maintenance costs are low and reduce this charge as the repair and maintenance costs increase.

There are many who share the view that Assets depreciate more in the earlier years than they do in the later years of their useful life. This method reflects this view by applying a constant percentage to the net depreciated value of the Asset brought forward at the beginning of each year. This means that the percentage remains the same, but since it is applied to a reducing balance brought forward, the actual amount will be less each successive year. The actual percentage rate that will result in a lifetime write off equal to the original cost of the Asset (Less its residual value) can be derived from the formula;

Dp=(1- n√R/C) x 100; where

Dp = Depreciation percentage.                     n = useful life of asset in yrs

r = residual value of the asset                     c = cost of the asset

10.3
Disposal of Non Current Assets
A Non Current Asset can be disposed off during its useful life or at the end of its useful life or a number of years past its useful life.  Disposal takes a number of forms, most commonly being sale. Others may include donations, throwing away the Asset, etc.

Stage 1
When we sell a Non Current Asset we must remove the original cost of that Asset from our accounting records. This is achieved by crediting the appropriate category of Non Current Asset in the Balance Sheet with the Asset’s original cost. A disposal account is set up in the Profit and Loss Account to which the original cost is debited.

Dr    Disposal of Non Current Asset Account (Profit and Loss)

Cr   Non Current Asset (Balance Sheet)

Stage 2
Once the Asset’s original cost is removed from our records we must also remove all depreciation which has been charged on that Asset. This is achieved by debiting the appropriate provision for Depreciation Account. The credit entry is to the Disposal Account.  

Dr    Accumulated Depreciation Account (Balance Sheet)

Cr   Disposal of Non Current Asset Account (Profit and Loss)

Stage 3
At this stage, after removing the Asset from the accounting records, then we need to recognize if the disposal has generated any sales proceeds. As with any cash receipts, when we receive the proceeds from disposal, it must be recorded in the cash book, with the double entry being a credit to the Disposal Account.

Dr    Cash/Bank Account (Balance Sheet)

Cr   Disposal of Non Current Asset Account (Profit and Loss)

Example 2
United Company Ltd on 31st December, 1999 had a balance on its Motor Vehicles Account of Shs 100,000,000. This balance represents the vehicles at cost. The balance on the Depreciation Provision Account was Shs 40,000,000. On 31st December, 2000 the company sold one of its Delivery Vans for Shs 1,500,000. It had been purchased five years earlier on 1st January, 1996 for Shs 15,000,000 at which time the company had estimated its useful economic life at five years and its residual value after that time of Shs 1,000,000. 

The company policy is to write off such vehicles at 20% straight line. The Vehicle had been subject to a depreciation charge of (Shs 15,000,000 – 1,000,000)/5 = Shs 2,800,000 per annum. The company policy is also to depreciate Assets in the year of purchase but not in the year of sale.

Required;
a) Prepare Motor Vehicles Account

b) Prepare Accumulated Depreciation Account – Motor Vehicle

c) Disposal of Motor Vehicles Account

d) Explain why it is necessary to provide for depreciation in accounts of business organizations.

Solution:

There is need to determine the profit or loss on disposal and the current year must reflect that. This is determined as;


Shs

Purchase Cost (1st January, 1996)
15,000,000

Depreciation 4 years x Shs 2,800,000
11,200,000

 3,800,000

Sale Proceeds
 1,500,000
Loss on Disposal
 2,300,000
To account for this disposal the company would make the following entries to the accounts;

· The original cost of the vehicle disposed is transferred from Motor Vehicles Account to a Disposal of Motor Vehicle Account.

· The cumulative depreciation on the vehicle to the end of the previous year is transferred from the Accumulated Depreciation Account to the Disposal Account.

· The disposal of the Asset Account is credited with the proceeds and the resulting balance represents the profit or loss on disposal - and is transferred at the year end to the Profit and Loss Account.

The entries for the full procedure would appear thus.

NB: The depreciation charge for 2000 was agreed as 20% straight line on Shs 85,000,000 i.e. Shs 17,000,000.

	Motor Vehicles Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	01-Jan-00
	Balance B/d
	100,000
	31-Dec-00
	Disposal Account
	15,000

	
	
	
	
	Balance C/d
	85,000

	
	
	100,000
	
	
	100,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Jan-01
	Balance B/d
	85,000
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated Depreciation Account - Motor Vehicle

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	31-Dec-00
	Disposal A/c
	11,200
	01-Jan-00
	Balance B/d
	40,000

	31-Dec-00
	Balance C/d
	45,800
	31-Dec-00
	Depreciation A/c
	17,000

	
	
	57,000
	
	
	57,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Jan-01
	Balance B/d
	45,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Disposal Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	31-Dec-00
	Motor Vehicle A/c
	15,000
	31-Dec-00
	Accumulated Depreciation A/c
	11,200

	
	
	
	31-Dec-00
	Proceeds
	1,500

	
	
	
	
	Loss on Disposal
	2,300

	
	
	15,000
	
	
	15,000

	
	
	
	
	
	


 Extract from Profit and Loss Account for the year.


       Shs

Depreciation Expense
17,000,000

Loss on Disposal of Vehicle
  2,300,000

Extract from Balance Sheet

                                                      Cost                 Accum Dep                 NBV

  Non Current Assets              Shs (‘000’)              Shs (‘000’)             Shs (‘000’)

Motor Vehicles                          85,000                    45,800 *                39,200


    Shs (‘000’)

* NB: The provision to previous year end 
      40,000

        Additional Depreciation for current year             17,000
                                                                                           57,000

Less: Accumulated Depreciation on Disposal of Vehicle      
    11,200
                                                                                          45,800

 Review Questions
1. 

Unit 11
Non Profit Organisations

11.1
Introduction

This chapter will look at accounts of Non Profit Organisations and will provide a framework for the treatment of accounting aspects which underlie such Organisations.

Objectives
At the end of this chapter you should be able to;

· Know how to compute the subscriptions for the period.

· Define Receipts and Payments Account.

· Define Income and Expenditure Account. 

Organizations can be classified in many different ways, for instance by size, legal status, type of activity, profit oriented and non profit oriented, etc. Whatever the classification, all Organizations need to prepare one form of accounting statement or another after the end of a year’s activities. Some of the Organizations are compelled by law to prepare these accounting statements and some of them only need these statements in order to satisfy the requirements of third parties.

Some Organizations are not profit oriented but they too still need to prepare their accounting statement at the end of their year’s activities. Examples of Not for Profit Organization include, Societies (i.e. Building Societies), Trade Associations, Clubs, Charitable Organizations. Some clubs are extremely small while others could have substantial Assets and a very high level of income. Regardless of their size, income could be received through donations and subscriptions and, therefore, financial records must be kept.

11.2
Receipts and Payments Accounts

For smaller Non-Profit making Organizations minimum requirements for accounting records will be a Cash Book and a Petty Cash Book. These should enable them to prepare their Receipts and Payments Accounts (R & P A/c).

The Receipts and Payments Account is an important record, which in effect is a summary of the cash transactions entered into by the Organization during the reporting period. Receipts and Payments Accounts records will probably be kept in the form of an analyzed Cash Book. 

The Members/Treasurers of small Non Profit making Organizations frequently will have little or no understanding of accounting and therefore the Receipts and Payments Account allows them to present the information in a readily understandable form. Usually Receipts and Payments Account is prepared in a T-Account format with the left hand side representing the debit side and the right hand and being the credit side.

The Account is drawn up on a single entry basis with cash receipts recorded as a debit and cash paid out entered as a credit and no double-entry book-keeping takes place.

Cash received might be analyzed under different headings, such as, subscriptions, donations, bank interests received, receipts from sales (e.g. bar-takings, food), etc. The credit side will show payments such as rent, printing, stationery, telephone, postage, etc.

The T-Account format for Receipts and Payments Account will look like the example below.

Happy People Social Club

	Receipts and Payments Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	
	Subscriptions
	xxx
	
	Rent
	xxx

	
	Bar Takings
	xxx
	
	Bar Manager's Wages
	xxx

	
	Donations
	xxx
	
	Stationery
	xxx

	
	Bank and Buildings
	xxx
	
	Printing and Postage
	xxx

	
	Society Interest
	xxx
	
	Bar Expenses
	xxx

	
	
	
	
	Telephone
	xxx

	
	
	
	
	Heta and Light
	xxx

	
	
	xxx
	
	
	xxx

	
	
	
	
	
	


11.2
Income and Expenditure Accounts

As the Club becomes bigger there will be a necessity to prepare, in addition the Receipts and Payments Account another Account known as the Income and Expenditure Account. This Account is similar to the Profit and Loss Account of a trading concern.

With a Non Profit making Organization when there is an excess of income over expenditure this is not referred to as a profit but a surplus; alternatively when there is an excess of expenditure over income this is not called a loss but a deficit.
Steps of conversion from Receipts and Payments Statement/Account to Income and Expenditure Account
1) Eliminate opening and closing cash balances

2) Eliminate all items of capital receipts and payments

3) Eliminate income of the previous period received this period and income received in arrears/advance.

4) Provide for income earned during the period but not received and current income received in the previous period.

5) Exclude expenditure of the previous period and succeeding period.

6) Provide for expenditure incurred but not yet paid

7) Provide for bad debts and depreciation.

Sources of Income 

The possible sources of income to be credited to the Income and Expectative Account are; 

1) Members’ Subscriptions 

2) Profit from a trading activity 

3) Bank interest received 

4) Donations. 

Members’ Subscriptions 

Members will usually be expected to pay their subscriptions in advance and, therefore, subscriptions may be received towards the end of one period which relate to the next period. These payments in advance to the club would be shown in the Balance Sheet as a Current Liability. If members are in arrears with their subscriptions, then they are Debtors of the Club and will be shown as a Current Asset in the Balance Sheet and described under the heading of Subscriptions in Arrears.

	Subscription Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs)

	01-Jan-98
	Balance B/d
	xxx
	01-Jan-98
	Balance B/d
	xxx

	31-Dec-98
	I and E Account
	xxx
	
	R & P Account
	xxx

	31-Dec-98
	Balance C/d
	xxx
	31-Dec-98
	Balance C/d
	xxx

	
	
	xxx
	
	
	xxx

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Jan-99
	Balance B/d (Debtors)
	xxx
	01-Jan-99
	Balance B/d (Creditors)
	xxx

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	I and E Account; Income and Expenditure Account
	
	
	

	R & P; Receipts and Payments Account
	
	
	


Life Members’ Subscriptions 

Occasionally Clubs offer membership for life in return for lump sum subscriptions. The members would, therefore, not be liable for any further subscriptions and the Club has a sum of money which it can invest. The interest from these investments can be accounted for as income in the Income and Expenditure Account. As these payments do not relate only to the accounting period in which they are made they are credited to a separate life Membership Subscription Account. 

There are two possible ways of treating the life memberships; 

1) Keep the money in a Life Membership Fund Account with a Bank or Building Society. The interest received is credited annually to the Income and Expenditure Account. When the life member dies the amount paid for the life membership is transferred to the Accumulated Funds Account. 

2) An arbitrary figure such as 20 years may be chosen over which the life subscription will be written off to the Income and Expenditure Account. The capital amount will earn interest over the period of time in which it is amortized. 

Profitable Trading Activities
This is a common source of income to Clubs and Societies. Frequently they may run a bar or organize fund raising events such as dances, cultural gala, etc. After the event the club would need to prepare an account for this activity to establish whether a profit or loss has been made. If the Club makes a profit from this activity it would credit the Income and Expenditure Account, if the loss is made this will be debited to the Income and Expenditure Account.

Separate Trading Account would contain all details of income and expenditure relating to the activity.  For example, if a bar is being run then a Bar Trading Account would be prepared which would show Bar Receipts and all related expenditure. The profit or loss from the Bar will be taken to the Income and Expenditure Account. 

Special Funds
A Club may set-up a special fund for a specific purpose such as building, training, health care, etc. Income and donations should be credited to a separate account and shown in the Balance Sheet as a separate fund e.g. Research Fund. Income delivered from the venture should be added to the fund and expenses incurred for that venture should be deducted from the fund. These items will not appear in the overall Income and Expenditure Statements.

Bank /Building Society Interest
It is common practice for surplus funds to be invested in interest bearing accounts in a Bank or Building Society. The interest received will be debited to the Receipts and Payments Account and credited to the Income and Expenditure Account. 

Donations
Clubs and Societies form time to time receive a gift from members or well wishers in the community. Again this will be debited to the Receipts and Payments Account and credited to the Income and Expenditure Account.

Sale of Investments and Non Current Assets

Occasionally a Club or Society might dispose of Investments, such as, shares or sale of Non Current Assets as Land. The profit or loss is represented by the difference between the original cost and the sale value. The treatment of this profit or loss with a Non Profit Organisation will be different from that of a normal trading company. 

a) In the case of the sale of Investments the profit or loss is not shown in the Income and Expenditure Account but is taken directly to the Accumulated Fund Account and credited or debited there as the case may be.

b) In the case of sale of Non Current Assets where they were subject to depreciation during their useful life, then the profit or loss will be recorded in the Income and Expenditure Account. This is because during their lives the depreciation had been recorded in the Income and Expenditure Account and therefore it is appropriate for the profit/loss to be reported in the same account. 

c) Where the Non Current Asset had not been subject to depreciation through the Income and Expenditure Account then the profit/loss is taken directly to the Accumulated Fund Account.

Balance Sheet
The Balance Sheet of a Non Trading Concern is similar to that of a Trading Concern but there are few areas of difference.

1) Accumulated Funds – this represents the capital of the Organisation but it is not referred to as capital. It is an accumulation of surpluses over the years and hence the term Accumulated Fund. In actual fact the Accumulated Fund is the difference between the debit and credit columns of the Trial Balance.

2) The Profit of a Non Profit making Concern is normally referred to a surplus or excess of income over expenditure. Then the loss is referred to as a deficit or excess of expenditure over income. Either will be treated the same way as in the Balance Sheet of a profit making Organisation.
Example 1
You have agreed to take over the role of an Accountant for AB Sports and Social Club. The summarized Balance Sheet on 31st December, 1994 as prepared by the previous Accountant contained the following items;

	Assets:
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Heating Oil for Clubhouse
	
	
	1,000

	Bar and Café Stocks
	
	
	7,000

	New Sports Wear, for sale, at cost
	
	
	3,000

	Used Sports Wear, for hire, at valuation
	
	
	750

	Equipment for grounds person - Cost
	5,000
	
	

	Equipment for grounds person - Depreciation
	(3,500)
	
	1,500

	Subscriptions due
	
	
	200

	Bank - Current Account
	
	
	1,000

	Bank - Deposit Account
	
	
	10,000

	
	
	
	

	Claims:
	
	
	

	Accumulated Fund
	
	
	23,150

	Creditors - Bar and Café Stocks
	
	
	1,000

	Creditors - Sports Wear
	
	
	300


The Bank Account summary for the year to 31st December 1995 contained the following items;

	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Receipts:
	
	
	

	Subscriptions
	
	
	11,000

	Banking - Bar and Café
	
	
	20,000

	Banking - Sale of Sports Wear
	
	
	5,000

	Banking - Hire of Sports Wear
	
	
	3,000

	Interest on Deposit Accounts
	
	
	800

	
	
	
	

	Payments:
	
	
	

	Rent and Repairs of Club House
	
	
	6,000

	Heating Oil
	
	
	4,000

	Sports Wear
	
	
	4,500

	Grounds person
	
	
	10,000

	Bar and Café Purchases
	
	
	9,000

	Transfer to Deposit Account
	
	
	6,000


You discover that the subscriptions due figure as at 31st December, 1994 was arrived at as follows:

	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Subscriptions Unpaid for 1993
	
	
	10

	Subscriptions Unpaid for 1994
	
	
	230

	Subscriptions Paid for 1995
	
	
	40


Corresponding figures at 31st December, 1995 are;

	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Subscriptions Unpaid for 1993
	
	
	10

	Subscriptions Unpaid for 1994
	
	
	20

	Subscriptions Unpaid for 1995
	
	
	90

	Subscriptions Paid for 1996
	
	
	200


Subscriptions due for more than 12 months should be written off with effect from 1st January, 1995;

	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Asset balances at 31st Dec 1995 include:
	
	
	

	Heating Oil for Club House
	
	
	700

	Bar and Café Stocks
	
	
	5,000

	New Sports Wear, for sale, at cost
	
	
	4,000

	Used Sports Wear, for hire, at valuation
	
	
	1,000


	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Closing Creditors at 31st  Dec, 1995 are:
	
	
	

	For Bar and Café Stocks
	
	
	800

	For Sports Wear
	
	
	450

	For Heating Oil for Club House
	
	
	200


Two-thirds of the sportswear purchases made in 1995 had been added to stock of new sportswear in the figures given in the list of Assets above, and one-third had been added directly to the stock of used sportswear for hire. Half of the resulting new sportswear for sale at cost on 31st December, 1995 is actually over two years old. You decide, with effect from 31st December, 1995 to transfer these older items into the stock of used sportswear, at a valuation of 25% of their original cost. No cash balances are held at 31st December, 1994 or 31st December, 1995. The equipment for the grounds person is to be depreciated at 10% per annum, on cost.

Required;
Prepare the Income and Expenditure Account and Balance Sheet for the AB Sports Club for 1995 for 1995, in a form suitable for circulation to members. The information given should be as complete and informative as possible within the limits of the information given to you.
Solution:
1) Prepare a Receipt and Payments Account for the Club establishing the closing balance as at the end of the period

2) Open relevant Ledger Accounts for accounts like Subscriptions, Bar Creditors, Sports Wear Accounts, etc.

3) Prepare the Income and Expenditure Account

4) Prepare the Balance Sheet as at the end of the period.

AB Sports and Social Club

(1)

	Receipts and Payments Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Bal B/d - Current A/c
	1,000
	
	Rent and Repairs
	6,000

	
	Bal B/d - Deposit A/c
	10,000
	
	Heating Oil
	4,000

	
	Subscriptions
	11,000
	
	Sports Wear
	4,500

	
	Bar and Café
	20,000
	
	Ground Person Wages
	10,000

	
	Sale of Sports Wear
	5,000
	
	Bar and Café purchases
	9,000

	
	Hire of Sports wear
	3,000
	
	
	

	
	Bank Interest
	800
	
	Bal C/d
	17,300

	
	
	50,800
	
	
	50,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(2)
	
	
	
	
	

	Subscription Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	01-Jan-95
	Balance C/d
	-
	01-Jan-95
	Balance B/d
	40

	01-Jan-94
	Balance C/d
	230
	
	R & P Account
	11,000

	01-Jan-93
	Balance C/d
	10
	31-Dec-95
	I & E A/c - 93 w/off
	10

	
	I and E Account
	10,720
	
	I & E A/c - 94 w/off
	20

	31-Dec-95
	Balance C/d
	200
	
	Balance C/d
	90

	
	
	11,160
	
	
	11,160

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Jan-96
	Balance B/d (Debtors)
	90
	
	Balance B/d (Creditors)
	200

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	(3)
	
	
	
	

	Bar and Café Trading Account ( NB: it should be drawn in a vertical format)

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Opening Stock
	7,000
	
	Sales
	20,000

	
	Purchases
	8,800
	
	
	

	
	
	15,800
	
	
	

	
	Closing Stock C/d
	5,000
	
	
	

	
	Cost of sales
	10,800
	
	
	

	
	I & E (Gross Profit)
	9,200
	
	
	

	
	
	20,000
	
	
	20,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(4)
	
	
	
	
	

	Bar and Café Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	R & P Account
	9,000
	01-Jan-95
	Balance B/d
	1,000

	
	
	
	
	Purchases
	8,800

	
	Balance C/d
	800
	
	
	

	
	
	9,800
	
	
	9,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Jan-96
	Balance B/d
	800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(5)
	
	
	
	
	

	Sports Wear Trading Account ( NB: it should be drawn in a vertical format)

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Opening Stock
	3,000
	
	Sales
	5,000

	
	Purchases
	3,100
	
	Transfer to Hire A/c
	500

	
	
	6,100
	
	Loss on Transfer I & E
	1,500

	
	Closing Stock C/d
	2,000
	
	
	

	
	Cost of sales
	4,100
	
	
	

	
	I & E (Gross Profit)
	2,900
	
	
	

	
	
	7,000
	
	
	7,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(6)
	
	
	
	
	

	Sports Wear Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	R & P A/c (2/3 x 4,500)
	3,000
	01-Jan-95
	Balance B/d
	700

	
	
	
	
	Purchases (2/3 x 4,650)
	3,100

	31-Dec-95
	Bal C/d (2/3 x 450)
	300
	
	
	

	
	
	3,300
	
	
	3,800

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Jan-96
	Balance B/d
	300

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(7)
	
	
	
	
	

	Sports Wear Hire Account ( NB: it should be drawn in a vertical format)

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	Opening Stock
	750
	
	Sales
	3,000

	
	Purchases
	1,550
	
	
	

	
	
	2,300
	
	
	

	
	Closing Stock C/d
	1,000
	
	
	

	
	Cost of sales
	1,300
	
	
	

	
	I & E (Gross Profit)
	1,700
	
	
	

	
	
	3,000
	
	
	3,000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(8)
	
	
	
	
	

	Sports Wear Hire Creditors Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	
	R & P A/c (1/3 x 4,500)
	1,500
	01-Jan-95
	Balance B/d (1/3 x 300)
	100

	
	
	
	
	Purchases (1/3 x 4,650)
	1,550

	31-Dec-95
	Bal C/d (1/3 x 450)
	150
	
	
	

	
	
	1,650
	
	
	1,650

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	01-Jan-96
	Balance B/d
	150

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	(9)
	
	
	
	
	

	Heating Oil Account

	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')
	Date
	Details
	Amount     (Shs '000')

	01-Jan-95
	Balance B/d
	1,000
	01-Jan-95
	I and E Account
	4,500

	
	R & P Account
	4,000
	
	
	

	31-Dec-95
	Balance C/d (Creditors)
	200
	31-Dec-95
	Balance C/d
	700

	
	
	5,200
	
	
	5,200

	
	
	
	
	
	

	01-Jan-96
	Balance B/d (Debtors)
	700
	
	Balance B/d (Creditors)
	200

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


	AB Sports and Social Club

	Income and Expenditure Account

	for the year ended 31st December, 1995

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Working  /Ledger No
	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Income:
	
	
	
	
	

	Subscriptions
	(2)
	
	10,720
	
	

	Bar and Café Trading Profit
	(3)
	
	9,200
	
	

	Sports Wear Trading Profit
	(5)
	
	2,900
	
	

	Sports Wear Hire Profit
	(7)
	
	1,700
	
	

	Deposit A/c Interest
	(1)
	
	800
	
	25,320

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Less Expenditure:
	
	
	
	
	

	Loss on transfer of Sportswear Stock
	(5)
	
	1,500
	
	

	Subscriptions - written off 93
	(2)
	
	10
	
	

	Subscriptions - written off 94
	(2)
	
	20
	
	

	Rent and Repairs
	
	
	6,000
	
	

	Heating Oil
	(9)
	
	4,500
	
	

	Ground person wages
	
	
	10,000
	
	

	Depreciation: Equipment (10% x 5,000)
	
	
	500
	
	22,530

	Surplus/Excess of Income over Expenditure for the year
	
	
	
	2,790

	AB Sports and Social Club

	Balance Sheet

	as at 31st December, 1995

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cost
	
	Acc Dep
	
	NBV

	Non Current Assets:
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')
	
	Shs ('000')

	Equipment
	5,000
	
	4,000
	
	1,000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	
	
	

	Stocks:
	
	
	
	
	

	Heating Oil
	
	
	700
	
	

	Bar and Café
	
	
	5,000
	
	

	New Sports Wear
	
	
	2,000
	
	

	Used Sports Wear
	
	
	1,500
	
	

	Debtors for Subscriptions
	
	
	90
	
	

	Bank
	
	
	9,290
	
	

	Current Account  (1)
	1,300
	
	
	
	

	Deposit Account  (1)
	16,000
	
	17,300
	
	26,590

	Total Assets
	
	
	
	
	27,590

	
	
	
	
	
	

	Financed By:
	
	
	
	
	

	Accumulated Fund 31st Dec 94 Bal B/d
	
	
	
	
	23,150

	Add: Excess of Income over Expenditure for the year
	
	
	
	2,790

	Accumulated Fund 31st Dec 95 Bal C/d
	
	
	
	
	25,940

	Current Liabilities:
	
	
	
	
	

	Creditors:
	
	
	
	
	

	Bar and Café               (4)
	
	
	800
	
	

	New Sports Wear         (6)
	
	
	300
	
	

	Used Sports Wear         (8)
	
	
	150
	
	

	Heating Oil                  (9)
	
	
	200
	
	

	Subscriptions Prepaid    (2)
	
	
	200
	
	1,650

	Total Accumulated Fund and Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	27,590


NB: Ledger Accounts that require adjustments have been opened. However, those Accounts which require no adjustments have not been opened and the figures have been taken directly to either the Income and Expenditure or Balance Sheet.

Conclusion
 It is worth noting that in a developed society a large percentage of economic activities are carried on by Non Profit Entities. These include central and local governments (which are responsible for activities such as provision of education, health, national defence, fire protection, etc) churches, social clubs, and societies. This is, therefore, an important area which all students should be aware of for examination purposes and also because charities and other Non Profit making Organizations are a growing area of employment for Accountants.

 Review Questions
1. 
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